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CITY OF COCKBURN

MINUTES OF ORDINARY COUNCIL MEETING
HELD ON THURSDAY, 13 AUGUST 2020 AT 7.00 PM

PRESENT:

ELECTED MEMBERS

Mr L Howlett

Ms L Kirkwood
Mr K Allen

Mr M Separovich
Ms P Corke

Ms L Smith

Dr C Terblanche
Mr P Eva

Ms C Stone

Mr T Widenbar

IN ATTENDANCE

Mr D Arndt

Mr S Downing
Mr C Sullivan
Mrs G Bowman

Ms R Pleasant
Mrs B Pinto

Mr S Cecins
Mrs V Frankson
Ms S D’Agnone

Mayor (Presiding Member)
Deputy Mayor

Councillor

Councillor

Councillor

Councillor

Councillor

Councillor

Councillor

Councillor

Acting Chief Executive Officer

Director Finance and Corporate Services
Director Engineering and Works

Acting Director Governance and Community
Services

Acting Director Planning and Development
Governance Officer

Media and Communications Officer
Executive Assistant to Directors

Council Minute Officer

DECLARATION OF MEETING

The Presiding Member declared the meeting open at 7.00pm.

“Kaya, Wanju Wadjuk Budjar” which means “Hello, Welcome to Wadjuk Land”

The Presiding Member acknowledged the Nyungar People who are the
traditional custodians of the land on which we are gathered and pay respect to
the Elders of the Nyungar Nation, both past, present and emerging, and
extend that respect to Indigenous Australians who are with us tonight.

This Council meeting will be electronically recorded and live streamed on the
City’s website, except where Council resolves to go behind closed doors.

All recordings are retained in accordance with the General Disposal Authority
for Local Government Records, produced by the State Records Office.
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A copy of the recorded proceedings of the Council meeting, will be available
on the website within two business days of the Council meeting.

Images of the public gallery are not included in the webcast, however the
voices of people will be captured and streamed.

Mayor Howlett reminded everybody present to be mindful of their conduct as
this will be recorded.

Live streaming meetings is a Council initiative, aimed at increasing
transparency and openness, as well as making Council meetings more
accessible to our communities and those beyond.

2. APPOINTMENT OF PRESIDING MEMBER

N/Al

3. DISCLAIMER (READ ALOUD BY PRESIDING MEMBER)

Members of the public, who attend Council Meetings, should not act
immediately on anything they hear at the Meetings, without first seeking
clarification of Council's position. Persons are advised to wait for written
advice from the Council prior to taking action on any matter that they may
have before Council.

4, ACKNOWLEDGEMENT OF RECEIPT OF WRITTEN
DECLARATIONS OF FINANCIAL INTERESTS AND CONFLICT
OF INTEREST (BY PRESIDING MEMBER)

Mr Daniel Arndt - Financial Interest - ltem 18.1

5. APOLOGIES AND LEAVE OF ABSENCE
Mr D Green,

Director Governance
and Community Services - Annual Leave

6. WRITTEN REQUESTS FOR LEAVE OF ABSENCE
Nil

7. RESPONSE TO PREVIOUS PUBLIC QUESTIONS TAKEN ON
NOTICE

Nil
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8. PUBLIC QUESTION TIME

Richard McPherson, Harrisdale

The Presiding Member advised that as Mr McPherson was not present at the

meetin

g, a response to his question will be provided in writing.

Judy Fogarty, Spearwood

Manning Park - Trail Bike Riders and Endangered and Threatened Flora and

Fauna

Q1.

Al.

Q2.

A2.

Q3.

What recent research has the City done in relation to the endangered
and threatened flora and fauna communities in Manning Park Ridge?

The Director Engineering and Works advised that the City undertakes
regular flora and fauna surveys in Manning Park to guide management
practices to support endangered flora and fauna populations that are
identified. This occurs every four years. The last surveys were
undertaken in 2017.

Why are there no signs prohibiting the riding or otherwise illegal use of
unsanctified trails constantly damaging the environment vegetation by
the mountain bike riders? A simple sign at the beginning and end of
each train stating: ‘Trail Closed to all Users, Damage to Vegetation. Top
and bottom. Why can’t that be done?

The Director Engineering and Works advised that the Beeliar Regional
Park Management Plan indicates that cycling is a permitted use in the
upland region of Manning Park. The use of bicycles is not a prohibited
use. The removal of vegetation and killing of wildlife is illegal. Offenders
will be prosecuted if suitable evidence is provided to enable offenders to
be identified.

The Manning Park Mountain Bike Concept Plan was recently out for
public comment. Feedback indicated that the trails that exist are used
by walkers, orienteering groups, trail runners and mountain bikers.
Closing down the existing trails will disadvantage all users.

The City would prefer to formalise and rationalise the trails to enable
some of the unsanctioned and poorly designed trails to be shut down
permanently. The City will form a working group made up of
representatives of trail users and local residents, to gain consensus on
the establishment of dedicated mountain bike trails.

What happens to damaged vegetation in the meantime? This could be
six months or a year. All users, walkers included, no just trail bike
riders, thee trails just keep honeycombing. No signs have been up for
years and the trails are getting wider and wider and more of them.
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A3. The Presiding Member advised Ms Fogarty that if she required a further
explanation to the question, she should speak to the Director
Engineering and Works at the conclusion of the meeting, or contact the
Director via email.

Q4. What has the City done to protect walkers in Manning Park when tralil
bike riders cross over sanctified trails, like a road base established by
the City of Cockburn, at speed, from their own made trails? It is not
possible to get their names and to contact CoSafe, they are going too
fast. You just have to leap out of their way.

A4. The Director Engineering and Works advised that some trails have
been shut down due to them being considered unsafe, and illegal
structures have also been removed to enable safer pedestrian
movement on the trails. Ranger patrols are also undertaken advising
cyclists to stick to designated trails and be aware of others using the
trails.

Mayor Howlett thanked Ms Fogarty for her questions

Mayor Howlett invited Cr Lee-Anne Smith to make a statement.

“1. A complaint was made to the Local Government Standards Panel, in
which it was alleged that | contravened the Local Government (Rules of
Conduct) Regulations 2007 (WA) when | did not remove material from a
facebook page relating to a petition regarding Bartram Road Footbridge
that incorrectly referred to the involvement of the Lions Club Australia.

2. The Panel found that | breached regulation 7(1)(b) of the said Regulations
as my conduct in refusing a reasonable request to remove the material
was improper and deserving of a penalty.

3. [l accept that | should have removed the relevant material from facebook
upon request.

4. | now apologise to the Lions Club Australia, my fellow Councillors and the
public.’

Mayor Howlett thanked Cr Smith.

8 of 532
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9. CONFIRMATION OF MINUTES

9.1

(2020/MINUTE NO 0160) MINUTES OF THE ORDINARY
COUNCIL MEETING - 9/07/2020

RECOMMENDATION
That Council confirms the Minutes of the Ordinary Council Meeting held
on Thursday, 9 July 2020 as a true and accurate record.

COUNCIL DECISION
MOVED Cr K Allen SECONDED Cr C Stone

That the recommendation be adopted.
CARRIED 10/0

9.2

(2020/MINUTE NO 0161) MINUTES OF THE SPECIAL COUNCIL
MEETING - 23/07/2020

RECOMMENDATION
That Council confirms the Minutes of the Special Council Meeting held
on Thursday, 23 July 2020 as a true and accurate record.

COUNCIL DECISION
MOVED Cr K Allen SECONDED Cr P Corke

That the recommendation be adopted.
CARRIED 10/0

10. DEPUTATIONS

Nil

11. BUSINESS LEFT OVER FROM PREVIOUS MEETING (IF
ADJOURNED)

Nil

12. DECLARATION BY MEMBERS WHO HAVE NOT GIVEN DUE
CONSIDERATION TO MATTERS CONTAINED IN THE
BUSINESS PAPER PRESENTED BEFORE THE MEETING

Nil
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AT THIS POINT IN THE MEETING, THE TIME BEING 7.12PM THE
FOLLOWING ITEMS WERE CARRIED BY ‘EN BLOC’ RESOLUTION OF

COUNCIL
13.4 141 15.1 16.1 17.1 21.1 22.1
14.2 15.2 22.3
14.3
14.4
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13. COUNCIL MATTERS

13.1

(2020/MINUTE NO 0162) MINUTES OF GRANTS AND
DONATIONS COMMITTEE MEETING - 21 JULY 2020

Author(s) K Jamieson

Attachments 1. Minutes of Grants and Donations Committee
Meeting - 21 July 2020 &

RECOMMENDATION

That Council receives the Minutes of the Grants and Donations
Committee Meeting held on Tuesday, 21 July 2020 and adopts the
recommendations contained therein.

COUNCIL DECISION
MOVED Cr T Widenbar SECONDED Cr K Allen

That Council adopt the recommendation subject to the exclusion of Item
9.1 “Cockburn Community Men’s Shed Funding Submission and Key
Performance Indicators’, which will be considered separately.

CARRIED 10/0

(2020/MINUTE NO 0163) COCKBURN COMMUNITY MEN'S SHED
FUNDING SUBMISSION AND KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

COUNCIL DECISION
MOVED Cr T Widenbar SECONDED Cr C Stone

That Council adopt the Committee recommendation subject to the
inclusion of the additional Key Performance Indicator (KPI) number 10
as below:

10. Community Engagement

the Shed is to monitor community engagement through the number
of people attending shed events, number of items built or provided
to the Cockburn community, and any other relevant community
engagements by the Shed. Proposed KPI — Increase community
engagement at a minimum rate of not less than 5% each year.

CARRIED 8/2

Reason for Decision

Currently the Men’s Shed does not gather data on the number of
engagements it has with the Cockburn Community. | propose that the
Men’s Shed incorporate an additional KPI to measure their engagement

with the community and aim to increase this engagement in the same
fashion as they aim to increase their membership numbers in KPI

number 2. The additional KPI to be included in the KPI List ‘Look
Forward — 2020 and Beyond'.
Background
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The Grants and Donations Committee conducted a meeting on 21 July
2020. The Minutes of the meeting are required to be presented.

Submission
N/A

Report

The Committee recommendations are now presented for consideration
by Council and if accepted, are endorsed as the decisions of Council.
Any Elected Member may withdraw any item from the Committee
meeting for discussion and propose an alternative recommendation for
Council’s consideration. Any such, items will be dealt with separately,
as provided for in Council’'s Standing Orders.

A budget for Grants and Donations for 2020/2021 of $1,455,000 has
been proposed, subject to Council approval, to be distributed as grants,
donations, sponsorships and subsidies. The Grants and Donations
Committee is empowered to recommend to Council how these funds
should be distributed.

The primary focus of this meeting was to determine the allocation of
funds for the new financial year, and receive annual funding reports
from Native ARC and The Wetlands Centre, Cockburn.

Funding submissions from the Cockburn Community Men’s Shed and
Melville Cockburn Chamber of Commerce (MCCC) were also
considered and are recommended for funding.

Strategic Plans/Policy Implications

Community, Lifestyle and Security

A vibrant healthy, safe, inclusive and connected community.

Provide a diverse range of accessible, inclusive and targeted
community services, recreation programs, events and cultural activities
that enrich our community.

Foster local community identity and connection through social inclusion,
community development, and volunteering opportunities.

Listening and Leading

A community focused, sustainable, accountable and progressive
organisation.

Ensure good governance through transparent and accountable,
planning, processes, reporting, policy and decision making.

12 of 532
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Budget/Financial Implications

A budget of $1,455,000 for grants, donations and sponsorships for
2020/2021 has been proposed, which is subject to Council approval.

Following is a summary of the proposed grants, donations and
sponsorship allocations:

Summary of Proposed Allocations

Committed/Contractual Donations $500,000
Donations $240,000
Sponsorship $100,000
Specific Grant Programs $615,000
Total $1,455,000
Total Funds Available $1,455,000
Less Total of Proposed Allocations $1,455,000
Balance $0

There is also an unspent amount of $113,543 from the 2019/2020
Grants and Donations Budget which will be carried forward for the
COVID-19 Community Funding Program.

Legal Implications
N/A
Community Consultation

Council’s grants, donations and sponsorships are advertised widely in
the local community through the City’s website, local media, social
media, and Council networks. It is recommended that advertising start
immediately following the Council decision to ensure a wider
representation of applications.

Risk Management Implications

The Council allocates a significant amount of money to support
individuals and groups through a range of funding programs. There are
clear guidelines and criteria established to ensure that Council’s intent
for the allocation of funds are met. To ensure the integrity of the
process there is an acquittal process for individuals and groups to
ensure funds are used for the purpose they have been allocated.

The reputation of the City of Cockburn could be seriously compromised
should funds be allocated to individuals or groups who did not meet the
criteria and guidelines and or did not use the funds for the purposes
they were provided. Adherence to these requirements is essential.
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Advice to Proponent(s)/Submitters

N/A

Implications of Section 3.18(3) Local Government Act 1995
Nil
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City of
Cockburn

wetlands to waves

City of Cockburn
Grants & Donations Committee
Minutes

For Tuesday, 21 July 2020

These Minutes are subject to confirmation

Presiding Member’s signature

Date:

15 of 532
Document Set ID: 9674303
Version: 3, Version Date: 17/09/2020




ltem 13.1 Attachment 1 OCM 13/08/2020

GAD 21/07/2020

CITY OF COCKBURN

SUMMARY OF MINUTES OF THE GRANTS & DONATIONS COMMITTEE
MEETING HELD ON TUESDAY, 21 JULY 2020 AT 6:00 PM
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GAD 21/07/2020

CITY OF COCKBURN

MINUTES OF GRANTS & DONATIONS COMMITTEE
HELD ON TUESDAY, 21 JULY 2020 AT 6:00 PM

PRESENT:

ELECTED MEMBERS

Mr L Howlett - Mayor (Presiding Member)
Ms L Smith - Councillor (via mobile phone)
Ms P Corke - Councillor

Mr P Eva - Councillor

Dr C Terblanche - Councillor (Observer)

IN ATTENDANCE

Mr D Arndt - Acting Chief Executive Officer (Observer)
Ms K Jamieson - Manager Community Development

Ms M Bolland - Grants and Research Coordinator

Ms B Miller - Grants and Research Officer

Ms S Seymour-Eyles - Manager Corporate Communications

Ms S Kahle - Business Engagement Officer

1. DECLARATION OF MEETING
The Presiding Member declared the meeting open at 6.00pm.
“Kaya, Wanju Wadjuk Budjar” which means “Hello, Welcome to Wadjuk Land”

The Presiding Member acknowledged the Nyungar People who are the
traditional custodians of the land on which the meeting is being held and pay
respect to the Elders of the Nyungar Nation, both past and present and extend
that respect to Indigenous Australians who are with us tonight.

The Presiding Member advised the meeting that Cr Lee-Anne Smith, OAM
would be participating in the meeting via mobile phone, and that he would
notify those attending the meeting of Cr Smith’s vote on each occasion.

2. APPOINTMENT OF PRESIDING MEMBER (IF REQUIRED)
Nil
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GAD 21/07/2020

3. ACKNOWLEDGEMENT OF RECEIPT OF WRITTEN
DECLARATIONS OF FINANCIAL INTERESTS AND CONFLICT
OF INTEREST (BY PRESIDING MEMBER)
Nil

4. APOLOGIES & LEAVE OF ABSENCE

Nil
5. CONFIRMATION OF MINUTES

51  (2020/MINUTE NO 0004) MINUTES OF THE GRANTS &
DONATIONS COMMITTEE MEETING - 21/04/2020

RECOMMENDATION

That Committee confirms the Minutes of the Grants & Donations
Committee Meeting held on Tuesday, 21 April 2020 as a true and
accurate record.

COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION
MOVED Cr P Eva SECONDED Cr P Corke

That the recommendation be adopted.

CARRIED 4/0

6. DEPUTATIONS
Nil

7. BUSINESS LEFT OVER FROM PREVIOUS MEETING (IF
ADJOURNED)
Nil

8. DECLARATION BY MEMBERS WHO HAVE NOT GIVEN DUE
CONSIDERATION TO MATTERS CONTAINED IN THE
BUSINESS PAPER PRESENTED BEFORE THE MEETING

Nil
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ltem 13.1 Attachment 1

Item 9.1

GAD 21/07/2020

9. COUNCIL MATTERS

9.1

(2020/MINUTE NO 0005) COCKBURN COMMUNITY MEN'S
SHED FUNDING SUBMISSION AND KEY PERFORMANCE
INDICATORS

Author(s) K Jamieson

Attachments 1. Cockburn Community Men's Shed Funding
Submission I

RECOMMENDATION

That Council approves the donation request from Cockburn Community
Men’s Shed for funding towards the annual coordination and
administration costs ($36,000 (ex. GST) for 2020/21) for a period of
three years, indexed annually according to Perth consumer price index
and subject to provision of an annual report detailing progress towards
meeting the proposed Key Performance Indicators.

COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION

MOVED Cr P Corke SECONDED Cr P Eva

That Council approves the donation request from Cockburn Community
Men’s Shed for funding towards the annual coordination and
administration costs ($36,000 ex. GST) for 2020/21, and will review
funding for further years subject to provision of an annual report,
including financial report, and detailing progress towards meeting the

proposed Key Performance Indicators.
CARRIED 4/0

Reason for Decision

The Committee would like to review the 2020 Financial Report prior to
committing funding for further years.

Background

At the Ordinary Council Meeting held in October 2011, Council resolved
to allocate funds to appoint a consultant to undertake research and a
Feasibility Study for a Men’s Shed in the City of Cockburn in February
2012.

The Feasibility Study included:
¢ community, stakeholder and staff consultation;
e needs analysis;
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o facility and service model research and recommendations for
Cockburn’s requirements; and

¢ development of a management plan sufficient to be used for a
funding application.

The Men’s Shed Feasibility Study report was received by Council at the
December 2012 OCM. Based on Recommendation 11 from the
Feasibility Study, “That the longer term management model for the
Purpose Built Community Men’s Shed is an independent incorporated
not for profit organisation with a Management Committee and a
coordinator funded by a Grant from the City”, Council resolved that the
incorporated organisation receive funding from the City of Cockburn of
$47,500 in 2013/14 and 2014/15 financial years to employ a
coordinator.

The coordinator’s role was established to undertake organisation of
programming, budgeting and shed management. This funding was
deferred due to the delay in the construction of the new Men’s Shed in
Cockburn Central. A condition of the funding included ongoing
participation by appropriate City staff on the Management Committee,
which is contained in the Men's Shed constitution n. Resourcing for
existing staff liaison with the Management Committee and attendance
at committee meetings is already allocated within existing budgets.

The Men’s Shed Feasibility Report and Council decisions were
provided to Lottery West as part of the capital grant application process
for the new purpose-built shed. The Council commitment to funding a
part-time coordinator and the allocation of the land were considered key
criteria by Lottery West for the grant application being successful.

The application was successful and the City received $484,200 in May
2016 for the project to which the City provided $687,590, plus in-kind
project management costs and the land on which it sits.

The Men’s Shed relocated from the interim site in Wattleup to the
purpose-built facility at 2 Sullivan Road Cockburn Central on 13 June
2018.

As to the Management Plan and Council Decision on 10 August 2017
to support the annual administration costs of a part-time coordinator,
security, maintenance, utilities and equipment, the City provided
funding as follows:

2017/18 FY $39,500 (March 2018 $39,500)
2018/19 FY $47,500 (October 2018 $30,000, June 2019 $17,500)
2019/20 FY $47,500 (September 2019 $30,000, March 2020 $17,500)

This three-year funding arrangement expired at the end of the 2019/20
Financial Year.
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Submission
The funding submission is attached to the report.
Report

Funding is sought by the Cockburn Community Men’s Shed to enable
the continued employment of the Shed’s coordinator and for associated
administrative requirements for three years from 2020/21 to 2022/23, as
contained in the following table. It is proposed to increase coordination
hours by approximately four hours each week over the next two
financial years based on service demand, plus an annual CPIl increase
for the hourly rate.

Financial Year | Purpose Funding
(ex. GST)
2020/21 Shed coordination (22 hours x 50 weeks | $36,000

x $30ph) = $33,000

Coardination administration
(management operating systems and
office consumables) = $3,000

2021/22 Shed coordination (26 hours x 50 weeks | $42,780
x $30.60 [CPI 2%]) = $39,780

Coordination administration
(management operating systems and
office consumables) = $3,000

2022/23 Shed coordination (30 hours x 50 weeks | $49,800
x $31.20 [CPI 2%]) = $46,800

Coordination administration
(management operating systems and
office consumables) = $3,000

Three-year total $128,580

For 2020/21, the Cockburn Community Men’s Shed is seeking funding
of $36,000 (ex. GST) towards its annual coordination and
administration costs to provide a part-time coordinator for overseeing
the organisation’s operations and provision of unique services to the
Cockburn community.

The Cockburn Community Men’s Shed provides a welcoming
environment for all Cockburn residents including those who are
vulnerable and disadvantaged within the community. The organisation
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is very active in the community by providing assistance to many
community organisations listed in the attached submission and is well
supported as evidenced by the attached letters of support.

They wish to obtain agreement for long-term funding to provide the
organisation with surety and the ability to undertake long-term planning.
The Cockburn Community Men's Shed has proposed the following Key
Performance Indicators to report to the Grants and Donations
Committee each year.

Key Performance Indicators

Overview

The Shed is judged by being true to its legislative and operating
requirements (mission, objects and values), together with its nominated
strategic and operating plans.

Proposed KPIs - Management, executive and committee ensuring that:
compliance is maximised as well as outcomes achieved;
e that the Shed is welcoming;

» that safety and wellbeing of members is an absolute priority; and

e to maintain and expand one of the Shed’s cornerstones of
contribution to the community, particularly within the City of Cockburn

1. Governance

Proposed KPI - Maintain a high standard of governance ensuring
that the Shed does not come under notice for non - compliance or
any other administrative matters.

2. Membership

Currently the membership is 105, of which 100 members reside in
the City of Cockburn.

Proposed KPI - Increase membership at a minimum rate of not
less than 5% each year.

3. Financial Stability
Continue to maintain financial stability.

Proposed KPIs
* [ncrease Shed sponsorships and/or donations to enable the
Shed to be self-supporting.

o Apply and receive DGR status once the legislation has been
proclaimed.
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s Contribute towards increasing the net worth of Shed facilities and
equipment.

4. Activities/Options

With the re-organisation in the workshops, together with provision of
additional equipment, installation of workshop patio, storage
facilities, stairs and balustrading around the mezzanine floor, this
will enable significantly more flexibility of what can be undertaken
and achieved

Proposed KPIs

s [ncrease the number of activities and options which both
members and the community will be able to access, fo a
minimum of 2 additional each year, and

o Continue to provide and/or support community activities and/or
projects.

5. Community Projects

Continue to contribute resources to deliver by way of time,
materials, requested products that add value to the community.

Proposed KPIs

* [ncrease Shed’s contribution in both products and activities by a
minimum of 10% each year based upon 2019/20 — time and
value, and

e ytilising recycled material in its products, where possible
6. Nominated Priority Groups - Disadvantaged

Continue to provide support to agencies and organisations, such as
but not limited to, Department of Justice, Disability Service
organisations, Alzheimer’'s Australia, Independent Living Centre,
Centrelink and those who they assist.

Proposed KPI - Ensure that as far as is practicable, support is
provided to a greater number of agencies / organisations as well as
those who they assist.

7. Occupational Safety and Health

Continue to maintain a high standard of safety and health within the
workshop and other activities undertaken.

Proposed KPI - Ensure that as far as is practicable that no one is
injured in an incident, accident, or exposed to a hazardous
substance.
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8. Seminars, Tool-Box Discussions and Guest Speakers

Proposed KPI - Continue to provide to members and others a
minimum of four sessions each year on identified key areas to
further enhance knowledge, patrticulatly related to health and
wellbeing.

9. Advisors

Currently the Shed has nine appointed professional advisors to
assist with governance and/or specialist advice.

Proposed KPI - Continue the assistance provided to ensure that
the Shed maintains ‘best practice’ standards outputs and outcomes.

Strategic Plans/Policy Implications

The submission meets the criteria for funding in Category G of the
Policy ‘Community Funding for Community Organisations and
Individuals (Grants, Donations and Sponsorships)’ and associated
Guidelines.

Community, Lifestyle & Security

A vibrant healthy, safe, inclusive and connected community

Provide a diverse range of accessible, inclusive and targeted
community services, recreation programs, events and cultural activities
that enrich our community.

Foster local community identity and connection through social inclusion,
community development, and volunteering opportunities.

Listening & Leading

A community focused, sustainable, accountable and progressive
organisation.

Ensure good governance through transparent and accountable,
planning, processes, reporting, policy and decision making.

Budget/Financial Implications

This report recommends that $36,000 (ex. GST) for 2020/21, with an
increase in coordination hours by approximately four hours per week
each year, based on service demand and indexed annually according
to Perth consumer price index, for a period of three years, to be
recorded against the Grants and Donations Budget Project Account
8896.
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Legal Implications
N/A
Community Consultation

N/A
Risk Management Implications

Without funding security, the Cockburn Community Men’s Shed will not
have a coordinator to run this vital community facility and service and
provide activities and benefits to the Cockburn community and beyond.

The Council allocates a significant amount of money to support
individuals and groups through a range of funding programs. There are
clear guidelines and criteria established to ensure that Council’s intent
for the allocation of funds are met. To ensure the integrity of the
process there is an acquittal process for individuals and groups to
ensure funds are used for the purpose they have been allocated.

The reputation of the City of Cockburn could be seriously compromised
should funds allocated to individuals or groups who did not meet the
criteria and guidelines and / or did not use the funds for the purposes
they were provided. Adherence to these requirements is essential.

Advice to Proponent(s)/Submitters

The Cockburn Community Men's Shed has been advised that their
submission is to be considered at the 21 July 2020 Grants & Donations
Committee Meeting and then an outcome will be advised following the
13 August 2020 Council Meeting.

Implications of Section 3.18(3) Local Government Act, 1995

Nil
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Community Funding Application

Submission Contents

e |etter — Funding Request
¢ FA1- Funding Application
= FA2- Looking Forward
= FA 3 - Key Performance Indicators
e Appendices
1. Certificate of Incorporation

2. ABN Detail
3. Insurance - Certificate of Currency
4. Lease Schedule — Extract
5. Mission, Objects Vision and Values
6. Strategic Plan - 2018/19 - 2019/20
7. Operating Plan - 2018/19
8. Fulfilment of Original Management Plan Considerations — July 2014
9. Shed Contributions
10. Budget Estimates — Income and Expenditure 2019/20 and 2020/21
11. Annual Report and Audit - 2018/19
12. Organisation Chart
13. Listing of key Documents — Codes, Policies, Operating Procedures
14. Letters of Support - [5]
Cockburn Community Men's Shed Inc. Shed Co-ordination Funding Request - July 2020 Page 1 of 1
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Cockburn Community Men's Shed Inec.
2 Sullivan St, Cockburn Central WA 6164
Tel: 042292 0948

Email: coord@ccmshed.org.au

cockburn Commum':,,
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Men's shed In<
Chairman: Tel. 0451 30 6423
Email: Chairman@ccmshed.org.au
Secretary. Tel: 0417 17 6446
Email: Secretary@ccmshed.org.au

K Jamieson

Manager Community Development

City of Cockburn

9 Coleville Crescent, Spearwood WA 6163
PO Box 1215 Bibra Lake DC WA 6965

Community Funding Application — Shed Co-ordination

Enclosed is the Shed’s application for a continuation of funding for Shed co-ordination after current funding
expires in September. The request is for the next ensuing three years. — 2020/21 to 22/23.

Community Funding application and associated documents attachments] are enclosed for your consideration
and approval.

In brief our request for Shed co-ordination is for $128,580 over three years for the continued employment of
the Shed Co-ordinator and associated consumables. The increase includes an additional four [4] hours [22 to
26] in year [2021/22] and a further increase of four [4] hours 26 to 30] in year 3 [2022/23].

With respect to the fulfilment of the original management plan considerations [12] all but one [DGR status]
has been more than satisfied.

Further, as an appreciation of what the Shed has contributed over the past two years, particularly, is as
follows:
* Acquisition [purchase and donation] of equipment, tools, installation of new capital items e.g. storage
sheds and infills, patio and blinds, stairs, balustrading, and enhancements to the Shed - $200 - 225000
* Projects and activities
2018/19 Estimated Hours - 1600 Value $48 — 64000 Estimated product value $12.5 - 15000
2019/20 Estimated Hours - 1800 Value $54 — 72000 Estimated products value $15 - 20000
Detail of the above is contained in the various attached documents including ‘Looking Forward’ beyond 2020.

On behalf of the Executive and members | would like to express our sincere appreciation for all the assistance
provided by the Council and particularly staff. It is greatly appreciated.

Should you require further detail please do not hesitate to make contact.

Yours in Shedding

Fetey Hadgsan

Peter Hodgson

Chairman

July 6, 2020
Cockburn Community Men's Shed Inc.  Shed Co-ordination Funding Request — July 2020 Pagelofl
Established: April 4, 2013 Incorporated: February 7, 2014 Reg. No. A10175597 ABN: 26171535 893
Charitable Collections Licence No. CC21804 of & Men's Shed Associations  Rev.2. Feb. 2020
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Community Funding Application Attachment FA.1
Shed Co-ordination
1. Applicant: Cockburn Community Men’s Shed Inc.
2 Sullivan Street Cockburn Central 6164
2. Certificate of Incorporation = No. A1017559Z - Attachment 1
3.  Australian Business Register — No. 26 171 535 893 — Attachment 2
4. Insurance — Ansvar Insurance - Certificate of Currency — Attachment 3
o Expiry date: February 28, 2021
. Description of Covers - Public Liability $40m  Products Liability $40m
5. Lease Agreement [Extract] - Attachment 4
6. City's Strategic Plan — Themes
The two themes which the Shed contributes significantly to are:
* Community Lifestyle and Security and Social Responsibility - sustainable future
Strategies used by the Men's Shed to engage members from the Priority Groups are:
* Providing a welcoming environment that facilitates, friendship mutual support and fair go for
everyone [See the Shed's Mission, Objects, Vision and Values. Attachment 5
¢ Having defined and actioned strategic and operational plans [Attachments 6 & 7] including
financial to maximise the Shed’s ‘Diversity and Capacity Building’ program
Being pro-active
Providing as far as practicable personalised supports and services
Actively participating in community activities/projects etc
Working co-operatively with agencies, organisations, and individuals, particularly those defined in
the disadvantaged classifications to ensure life is more fulfilling
e  Working closely with the City of Cockburn’s various community, welfare and senior service
divisions and departments
Fulfilment of Original Management Plan Considerations
Please see report at Attachment 8.
Funding Request
The Shed Executive and members express their sincere gratitude to the Council for previously funding the
Coordinators position as well as providing for shed enhancements as well as for equipment and consumables.
For 2019/20 funds provided were:
* Shed Coordination $30000 expiring end of September 2020
e Shed enhancements etc $17500 for the financial year ending June 30, 2020
As this funding will expire assistance is sought to enable the continued employment of the Sheds Co-
ordinator and associated administrative functions for the ensuing three years [2020/21, 2021/22 and
2021/22] as follows:
*  2020/21 - 22 hours x 50 weeks x $30ph [October to September] $33000
Currently the Shed is open on Tuesday Wednesday & Friday — 8.30am — 2.30pm
Saturday 9.00am — 1.00pm Mote: The Shed is open to the public including children 10 years and over.
A fee is charged to cover any incidental costs.
Co-ordination administration [*Management operating systems & office consumables) $3000
$36000
* Office 365, MYOB, WIX [Website], Membership, Asset Management, Square Card
s 2021/22 - 26 hours x 50 weeks x 530.60 [CPPI 2%) $39780
Proposed use of the additional 4 hours depending on ascertained needs could be utilised to open either
Monday or Friday 8.30am - 12.30pm
Cockburn Community Men's Shed Inc. Shed Co-ordination Funding Request - July 2020 Page1of7
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Co-ordination administration [Management operating systems & office consumables] $3000
542780
e 2022/23 - 30 hours x 50 weeks x 531.20 [CPI 2%)] S46800

Proposed use of the additional 4 hours depending on ascertained needs could be utilised to open either
Monday or Friday 8.30am - 12.30pm or alternatively open of an evening/s or a combination.

Co-ordination administration [Management operating systems & office consumables] $3000
$49800
Total funding request 5128580
Membership

As at June 30 the Shed's membership was 105 and as is appreciated the operation of the Shed is on the scale
of a medium size multi-faceted industrial business together with many aspects which would not normally be
dealt with in industry to the same extent as what the Shed under-takes.

It is for this reason, particularly the role of shed coordination is of the utmost importance.

Note: Currently out of 105 members only 5 do not reside in the defined Cockburn Council
boundaries. These reside in either Melville or Canning Vale and all chose to come to the Shed
because the proposed Shed to be built in Melville did not eventuate.

In support of this request detailed is ‘Looking Forward’ - 2020 and Beyond which is at pages 3 and 4 - FA2
which follows.

All other operating expense will be met by the Shed.

Budget Estimates [Income and Expenditure] for 2018/20 and 2020421 are at Attachment 9. ##

One of the significant roadblocks in achieving sustainable sponsorships and/or donations is that Community
Sheds do not currently have Deductible gift recipient status [DGR]. In this regard the Federal Government has
proposed an amendment [new general category] with Sheds being defined as a public institution provided the
defined definitions are satisfied. It is anticipated that the legislation will be legislated towards the end of this
year [2020]. It was proposed to be legislated to commence on Jul 1 this year. No problems are foreseen in
meeting the currently draft definitions.

ABILITY TO DELIVER

It is considered that the Shed has ability to continue to deliver increasing positive outcome because of:

Strong governance supported by its -
« Constitution
* Policies and Operating Procedures
* Strategic & Operating Plans [forward planning -short & longer terms] Drafts relating to
2020/21 & 2021/22 prepared for sign off]
+ Financial Management -Budgeting and day to day = [Income and Expenditure] and
comprehensive audit — Attachment 10 ## for Budget and 11 for 2018/19 Audit]. For YE June
30, 2020 documentation is currently being finalised.
* Comprehensive and integrated computing platform
s Competent and enthusiastic Executive as well as Management and Occupational Safety and
Health Committee members and Shed Co-ordinator
¢ Highly qualified and experienced Advisers [10]
*  Ability to maintain viability since inception [April 14, 2013]
+ Well established and maintained partnerships and community participation achieving positive
outcomes.
Fulfilment of original Management Plan considerations — Attachment 8 refers
Shed contributions — Attachment 9 refers

REQUEST
The reasons and establishment of the Capacity and Diversity Building Programs were determined by:

those defined in both the Shed’s Strategic and Operational Plans [Attachments 6 & 7]

listening, learning, leading, evaluating and determining a justifiable need which was based upon but
not limited to:

providing accommaodation of the ABS nominated priority groups within the Shed as well as others,
these being members who come from all the priority groups; namely:

* Disability Mental illness Migrant  Isolated - living alone

Cockburn Community Men's Shed Inc. Shed Co-ordination Funding Request - July 2020 Page 20f 7
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* suffering drug and/or alcohol abuse  Defence Veterans Unemployed and those
*  Seeking support for a variety of reasons including relationship issues, social interaction after
retiring
e providing an infrastructure enabling participation in a greater number of activities - personal and
community

¢ facilitating a safer and more effective/efficient environment

* sustainable use of resources
The Executive, members and significant others have expressed that they are extremely proud of overall

achievements in particular over the past three years that is the transition to the new shed as well as the
financial and overall sustainability — increased membership and program delivery. This will further continue
with what is in place and/or planned for the forthcoming year.

Cockburn Community Men's Shed Inc. Shed Co-ordination Funding Request - July 2020 Page3of 7
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Looking Forward — 2020 and Beyond

The Management Committee has defined opportunities for the Shed to further expand, develop, and/or improve its
services in the most efficient and effective way. As well as advocating it will continue to provide advice, but not limited
to such matters as legislation, new policies, emerging issues as well as likely changes in the way the Shed and/or other
service providers may operate.

To achieve the under mentioned it has been determined from a strategic and operating perspective that the major
objective for 2019/20 year and this and forthcoming years will be the focus and as such additional strategies developed
to achieve meaningful outcomes for but not limited to:-
* Capacity Building and Diversity
Finalise all commenced actions and continue providing community services in 2019/20 by:
* Continuing training, instruction, and skill development to fulfill each member’s determined needs
*  Providing additional options for members to which they can participate and/or contribute to
*  Seeking funding by way of but not limited to grants, sponsorship events, donations etc
* Purchasing of additional equipment for wood and metal workshops in particular
« Installation of work area patio, blinds, bollards, equipment, and work benches
#  Acquisition and installation of storage sheds and shelving
*  Acquisition and installation of stairs and balustrading to and on mezzanine floor
+ Continuing and finalising the review of Workshops etc, layout, design etc and consequential change to
better meet needs
* Providing and fulfilling requested Community projects and activities. Listed below are organisations
which the Shed assisted/contributed to over the past 12 menths. Given this mementum, knowledge of
the Shed's existence together with the quality of work produced the view is held that this will

substantially increase in the forthcoming years

Whilst all these required actions and outcomes etc are important the key role and challenge is to translate the use into
meaningful outcomes which both the Strategic and Operating Plans focus on. In this regard given the increased interest
and generated capacity — new equipment [tools, facilities -~ working patio, storage and infills and access to the
mezzanine floor- installation of stairs and balustrading an excellent opportunity is provided to do more. As such, given
what is required to be finalised the tasks outlined above for this year 2020/21 and settling in and the determination of
the way forward for the following two years much is required. It has been concluded that given all the new equipment,
facilities, increasing membership, differing and varying opportunities that could be provided as well as greater number of
requests from the community for assistance the Shed’s operating hours need to be increased. Therefore, it has been
assessed that an increase of four hours in 2021/22 and a further four hours in 2022/23 would enable the considered
voids filled. The provision of the addition lots of four hours will provide great flexibility when the extra hours are used.
These new sessions could either be on, for example Monday or Friday mornings or week-day evening sessions. Having
access to the mezzanine floor will provide greater flexibility and opportunity to diversify into such areas of arts and crafts
etc. Having access to the mezzanine floor will provide greater flexibility and opportunity to diversify into such areas of
arts and crafts etc.

Planning is underway to progress intergenerational and DIY workshops, women's evening classes, establishment cycle

and music, arts, and craft as well as recreational groups. Final determination will be made as to the nature and type of
after further assessment.
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. Office Works Jandakot Clean out of resident’s sheds etc - e.g. husband’s workshop

It should be noted that almost all that has been undertaken has been to support the Cockburn community Further all of
the other support has come from requests have had a direct link to members of the Shed who have acknowledged their

appreciation of being able to access such a facility and service.

Further, Shed members have also assisted Bunnings in conducting their Father's as well children’s DIY projects.

Cockburn Community Men's Shed Inc. Shed Co-ordination Funding Request - July 2020 Page Sof 7

18 of 227

32 of 532
Document Set ID: 9674303
Version: 3, Version Date: 17/09/2(420




OCM 13/08/2020 ltem 13.1 Attachment 1

GAD 21/07/2020 Item 9.1 Attachment 1

cockburn Cornmm,-,y

=

Men's shed o&

Looking Forward — 2020 and Beyond Attachment FA. 3
City of Cockburn — Community Funding
Shed Co-ordination
Key Performance Indicators

Overview
The Shed is judged by being true to its legislative and operating requirements that is, mission.
objects and values together with its nominated strategic and operating plans.
KPI = Management executive and committee ensuring that compliance is maximised as well as outcomes
achieved

- That the Shed is welcoming, safety and wellbeing of members is an absolute priority; and

- Maintain and expand one of the Shed’s cornerstones is contribution to the community, particularly

that within the City of Cockburn.

1. Governance
KPI — Maintain a high standard of governance ensuring that the Shed does not come under notice for
compliance or any other matter.

2. Membership
Currently the membership 105.
Proposed KPI - Increase membership at a minimum rate of not less than 5% each year.

3. Financial Stability
Continue to maintain financial stability.
Proposed KPI - Increase Shed sponsorships and/or donations to enable the Shed to be self-supporting.
Appy and receive DGR status once the legislation has been proclaimed.
Contributing towards Increasing the nett worth of Shed facilities, equipment etc.

4, Activities/Options
With the re-organisation in the workshops together with provision of additional equipment, installation of
workshop patio, storage facilities [sheds], stairs to and balustrading around the mezzanine floor will enable a
significant more flexibility of what can be undertaken/achieved.
Proposed KPI — Increase the number of activities and options which both members and the community will be
able to access, that is as a minimum 2-3 additional each year.

- Continue to provide and/or support external to the Shed community activities and/or projects.

5. Community Projects
Continue to contribute resources to deliver by way of time, material etc requested products etc that at value
to the community.
Proposed KPI - Increase Shed’s contribution both production of products, activities etc by as a minimum of
10% each year based upon 2019/20 - time and value as well as utilising recycled material.

6. Nominated Priority Groups -Disadvantaged
Continue to provide support to agencies, organisations etc such as but not limited to Dept of Justice, Disability
Service organisations, Alzheimer’s Aust., Independent Living Centre, Centrelink etc and those who they assist.
Proposed KPI — Ensure that as far as is practicable that support is provided to a greater number of agencies
organisations as well as those who they assist.

7. Occupational Safety and Health
Continue to maintain a high standard safety and health within the workshop and other activities undertaken.
Proposed KPI — Ensure that as far as is practicable that no one is involved in an incident, accident, injury or
exposed to a hazardous substance.
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8. Seminars, Tool-Box Discussi and Guest Sp £3
Proposed KPI - Continue to provide to members and others as a minimum four to six sessions each year on
identified key areas to further enhance knowledge, particularly health and wellbeing.

9. Advisors
Currently the Shed has nine [9] appointed professional advisors to assist with governance and/or specialist
advice.
Proposed KPI - Continue the assistance provided to ensure that the Shed maintains ‘best practice standards
outputs and outcomes.
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Government of Western Australia
Department of Commerce

WESTERN AUSTRALIA
Associations Incorporation Act 1987
(Section 9(1))

Registered No: A1017559Z

Certificate of Incorporation

This is to certify that
COCKBURN COMMUNITYMEN'S SHED INC

has this day been incorporated
under the Associations Incorporation Act 1987

Dated this seventh day of February 2014
’ l
/

Commissioner for Consumer Protection
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ABN Lookup

Current details for ABN 26 171 535 893

ABN details

Entity name Cockburr Communizy Mens Shed Tn
ABN status:

Entity type:

Good: efvices Tax (G

Main business lecation:

Deductible gift recipient status

Mot eatitled (o recehse L devuctible gifts

ABM last updated 15)un 2015 Record evtracted: (8 jun 219

Disclaimer

anit and accurate informaticn on this site. T

The Regisirar makes every reasonable ef
if you use AE for inf
dircurstances you will be protected ¥. Fe re Information see digslalme

awation purposes and that infarmetion
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@,

anNsvar.

MNSsUre

Certificate of Currency

This is to certify that this Ansvar Insurance Limited policy of insurance is current as at the date of issue
of this Certificate of Currency, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy indemnifying the Insured

as follows:

Policy Number:
Name of Insured:

Type of Policy:

Description of Covers:

Deductible:

Business Description:

Situation of Risk:
Interested Party:

Period of Insurance:

1300 650 530
Ansvar.com.au
GPO Box 1655
Mebourne VIC 3001

MENS003
Cockburn Community Mens Shed Inc

Gallagher Men’s Shed Policy

Public Liability: $40,000,000
Products Liability: $40,000,000

$1,000 each and every claim

Principle activities include, manual workshop activities,
project work such as metal work, woodworking and
other associated work for the shed and local
communities. BBQ's and putting up a static signs to

direct traffic and not physically redirecting the traffic
whilst on the road.

Anywhere in Australia

28/02/2020 From 4:00pm 28/02/2021 to 4:00pm

Signed for and on behalf of Ansvar Insurance Limited

Amanda Seng
BUSINESS DEVELOPMENT UNDERWRITER MANAGER
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SCHEDULE

G;,og@.}.bum
L ane

ITEM 1

ITEM 2

ITEM 3

ITEM 4

ITEM 5

ITEM 6

ITEM 7

ITEM 8

ITEM9

ITEM 10

ANNEXURE A

ANNEXURE B

ANNEXURE C

ANNEXURE D

#hiéds and any future additions.

LAND

Lot 73 on Diagram Plan 222578 being the whole of the land comprised wit.i~
Crown Land Title Volume 3151 and Folio 370 and being the whole of Resei<ve
12243, approximately 4249m? in area.

BUILDING -
The Community Centre constructed by the Lessor on the Land, including t
fixtures, fittings and additions.

PREMISES

That part of the Building and the Land identjfied on the sketch annexed here
as Annexure B as “Lease Area Plan”, including the fixtures, fittings, ‘stol

LETTABLE AREA
2121 m*

COMMENCEMENT DATE
\/7/18

INITIAL TERM
Five (5) years commencing on \\;’1/!3 and expiring on 10/7/2-5

FURTHER TERM 8
Five (5) years commencingon  \(/ 7/23 and expiringon  1© / 7/ 2

RENT
$1 (one dollar) per annum exclusive of GST, payable on request by the Lessor

PERMITTED PURPOSE - _
Community Centre and Men's Shed activities

PUBLIC LIABILITY INSURANCE
Twenty million dollars ($20,000,000.00)

MINISTER FOR LAND'S CONSENT
LEASE AREA PLAN
COMMUNITY ACCESS INCLUSION PLAN

LEASING & LICENSING POLICY

Enquiries — Leasing & Licensing Officer (0B) 9411 3495
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Attachment 5

cockburn tommum,y

N

Men's shed In*

Approved and current as from December 6, 2018

MISSION, OBJECTS, POWERS, VISION and VALUES

3.1 Mission

The Association’s [the Shed] primary purpose and reason for its existence is to maintain and improve
the well-being of men with respect to, but not limited to:

) inter connected dimensions of physical, mental, and social well-being that extend beyond the
traditional definition of health; and

. provision of choices and activities aimed at achieving physical vitality, mental alacrity, social
satisfaction, a sense of accomplishment, and personal fulfilment.

3.2 Objects

The objects of the Association are:

a) to promote, develop and provide leadership, including:

0] the management and promotion of;

(i the provision of leadership to, and encouragement of, relationships with Affiliated
Associations, and all other men’s sheds, persons, groups and associations involved in the

(i) the maintenance and promotion of the affiliation of the Association with, and its
representation on and with such other body or bodies as the Management Committee thinks fit;

) the maintenance and the promotion of relationships between the Association and others;

(b) to control, manage, improve and promote, to the greatest extent possible, the use of the
Association’s facilities for the benefit of Members and the community at large; and

le) to control, manage, improve and promote, to the greatest extent possible, the use of the

facilities and activities for purposes of public benevolence that benefits the community at large.
3.3 Powers of the Association shall have:

{a) the powers set out in Section 13 of the Act; and

] the power to do all such acts and things as the Management Committee considers incidental
or conducive to the attainment of all or any of the objects set out in Rule 3.2.

el set out in Rule 3.2.

Mission and Objects as prescribed in the Constitution. These are supported by:
* Vision [View of the future]
The Shed aspires to achieve a lasting and positive impact on the wellbeing of all to the extent
required and significant others by contributing to the public good.
e Values
The Shed by reason of its existence and focus is committed to:
* Achieving positive outcomes for all to the extent required;
¢ Men have the inherent right as other members of society to realise their individual capacities
for the whole of self-well-being and quality of life;
e Establishing and maintaining high levels of leadership through but not limited to ethical and
corporate governance standards that reflect integrity, openness, fairness and accountability;
e Valuing and acknowledging the advice, opinions and contributions of individuals, families,
carers, significant others and Associations;
e Maintaining strength gained by unity and focus; and
e Continuous disclosure on a timely basis.
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Cockburn Community Men’s Shed Inc.
Strategic Plan 2019/20 and 2020/21

Attachment 6

MISSION [Purpose]
The Association’s [the Shed] primary purpose and reason for its existence is to maintain and improve the well-
being of men with respect to, but not limited to:

inter-connected dimensions of physical, mental, and social well-being that extend beyond the
traditional definition of health.

* provision of choices and activities aimed at achieving physical vitality, mental alacrity, social
satisfaction, a sense of accomplishment, and personal fulfilment.

VISION [View of the future]

The Shed aspires to achieve a lasting and positive impact on the wellbeing of all to the extent required and
significant others by contributing to the public good.

VALUES

The Shed by reason of its existence and focus is committed to:

Achieving positive outcomes for all to the extent required;

Men have the inherent right as other members of society to realise their individual capacities for the
whole of self-well-being and guality of life;

Establishing and maintaining high levels of leadership through but not limited to ethical and corporate
governance standards that reflect integrity, openness, fairness and accountability;

Valuing and acknowledging the advice, opinions and contributions of individuals, families, carers,
significant others and Associations;

Maintaining strength gained by unity and focus; and

Continuous disclosure on a timely basis.

KEY FOCUS AREAS
The Shed is committed to:

Conducting itself in a professional manner and with integrity always;

Providing leadership by way of example such as strong member representation;

Harnessing the skills, drive and energy of all to leverage maximum support in all strategic areas;
Actively promoting to the extent required the Australian Men’s Shed objectives;

Safeguarding rights through strong advocacy and consultation;

Promoting equality by way of inclusion to enable individual needs to be better met;

Enhancing quality of life [all aspects] and promoting independence;

Assisting the further development and sustainability of an individual's capacity;

Encouraging action on issues that affect members/individuals and/or that are systemic;

Continuous improvement through consultation, needs assessment, implementation and review;
Building on achievements continuing the development and sustainability of strong collaborative
partnerships;

To co-operate with or support any Authority, Association, and Agency or like bodies, having objects
like the Shed;

Maintaining a unified sense of purpose, capacity and flexibility to respond effectively to change or
needs;

Promoting innovation and creative solutions to enhance the quality of life of members and other
people including but not limited to families and significant others;

Advancing knowledge, pursuit of change and good practice;

To engage with government for the purpose of fostering good relations, providing advice and
influencing policy and its administration in matters relating to the Association’s mission and values
Providing sound financial and physical resource management; and

Acquiring funds to provide, but not limited to, amenities, programs and services
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KEY RESULT AREAS
The Shed has identified the following key result areas and translated them into outcome objectives, success
factors and targets.
* Corporate Governance;
* Advocacy and Awareness;
* Financial; and
* Capacity Building and Diversity [Major objective]
This was identified to be a further cornerstone for moving forward with purpose and achieving meaningful
outcomes particularly over the next two [2] and as such additional strategies developed to achieve these
which included but not limited to the following:

Quality of Life; physical, mental, and social well-being
Legislation and Policy;
Membership.

¢ Seek funding by way of but not limited to grants, sponsorship events, donations etc
e Purchase of additional equipment for wood and metal workshops in particular

e Acquisition and installation of work area patio, blinds and bollards

*  Acqguisition and installation of storage sheds and shelving

*  Acquisition and installation of stairs and balustrading to and on mezzanine floor
¢ Review of Workshops etc, layout, design etc and consequential change to better meet needs
Cockburn Community Men's Shed Inc.

KEY RESULT AREAS
Key Result Area

1.Corporate
Governance

Cockburn Community Men's Shed Inc. = Strategic Planning = 2019/20 - 2019/21

Planned Results

- Review Constitution and associated
documentation in accordance with
the Incorporated Associations [WA],
Public Benevolent Institutions [PBI]
and Australian Charities and Not for
profit Commission’s [Deductible Gift
Recipient] [DGR] legislative
requirements.

- Strategic and Operational Planning

Provide appropriate & timely
information.

Undertake sound financial and
physical resource management.

- Ensure robust and adequate
operational and financial controls are
in place.

- Act lawfully and exercise good
management practices and
principles.

- As a minimum undertake yearly
operational and financial Audits.

- Maintain a unified sense of
purpose, capacity and flexibility to
respond to the needs of members
and significant others

Strategies

Undertake review as and when required due
to legislative and/or operational changes and
where required recommend any changes to
Special General Meeting.

Undertake and review strategic planning
every two wyears as a minimum and
operational planning each reporting/financial
year [July to June inclusive].

Members receive Management Committee
Meeting minutes and associated material of
meetings as minimum 3 weeks before the
next management committee meeting.

Ensure financial documents are prepared and
reported upon at each meeting.

Utilise recognised and robust operational and
financial tools.

The Shed remains legislative compliant and
receives a clear audit report.

Appoint an auditor with appropriate audit
qualification, knowledge and skills.

Ensure  that  the Management/Sub-
Committee/s andfor Advisors/Consultants
have and maintain appropriate knowledge,
skills and competencies to fulfil their
responsibilities.
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2. Quality of Life

3. Advocacy and
Awareness

4. Shed Facilities

Cockburn Community Men's Shed Inc. - Strategic Planning = 2019/20 - 2019/21

- Community development

- Promote the Shed's vision,
priorities and pathways.
- MaintainfEstablish strong and

sustainable partnerships.

- Assist with the building and
utilisation of El sustainable
Sponsorship and Volunteers base.

- Promote innovation and creative
solutions.

- Participation and contribution to all
aspects of life.

- Ensure that men with disabilities,
mental illness, families, carers and
significant others rights and needs
are fulfilled to the highest practicable
level.

- Ensure equality by way of inclusion
to enable individual needs to be met

- Continuous improvement through
consultation, needs assessment,
implementation and review

- As a Consumer Representative
provide advice and influence policy
and its administration.

To further progress identified

projects and/or activities

Existing — Ensure high standards are
maintained.

Work co-operatively with Communities which
genuinely welcome, respect and value the
involvement of men, people with disability
and mental iliness, their families and carers.

As far as is practicable continue to raise
awareness and undertake projects/activities
that are designed to support actions that
work towards maximising communities to
become more welcoming and affirming
places for men including those with disability,
mental illness, their families and carers.

The established partnerships are sustainable
and continually build on achievements.

Seek the co-operation of existing sponsors,
volunteer organisations and members to
provide support as and when required.

Research and consult to achieve optimum
outcomes.

Contribute to programs/activities that are,
but not limited, to responsive, innovative and
keep pace with demand.

Be pro-active and ensure that networks are
established, maintained and effective.

Continually promote the Shed's vision and
principles, through partnerships.

Maintain constant listening and monitoring
to ensure that needs remain clearly in view
and effective responses are developed and
introduced. Ensure that there are strong,
open and receptive relationships.

Continually monitor existing and proposed
legislation, policy  and/or  operating
procedures and their administration and
where needed initiate appropriate action.

Through but not limited to delegated Sub-
Committee/s, Working Groups, Partnerships
and Communities continue create
awareness raising events e.g. Expo and
Celebrations that support all, in particular
local communities, in becoming more
welcoming and affirming places for men in
particular with disabilities, mental illness,
families, carers and significant others. This
will be based upon Men's Shed principles and
pathways.

to

Continually strive to provide the best possible
facilities which include operating conditions,
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5. Legislation and
Policy

6. Financial

7. Membership

Cockburn Community Men's Shed Inc. = Strategic Planning = 2019/20 - 2019/21

Proposed - Review the proposed
Stage 2 and make recommendations
that will assist both the Shed and
community at large to derive
benefits in both the short and longer
terms.

- Monitor and where appropriate
influence change to existing and/or
proposed legislation, policy andfor
operating procedures.

- Manage services and funds in a
manner that is transparent, effective,
efficient and accountable.

-Establish/maintain partnerships
with the corporate sector where
appropriate to ensure that projects
are developed to their maximum

- To maximise robust
applications

grant

Continue major fundraising to
support the ‘Shed’s operations and
other determined outcomes

- Maximise  all
classifications.

membership

equipment, tools etc.

Establish and maintain consultative group to
determine  appropriate  strategies and
formulate a strategic plan to fulfil all needs
e.g. financial, public demand, operational etc

Ensure that the Shed remains solvent and has
sufficient funds to meet approved requests
and general operating expense.

Strive towards becoming self-funded with
respect to operational matters through
sponsorships, contracts, grants, general
fundraising, projects and activities.

Develop a business plan incorporating a
priority program [minimum 3 years] to
further pursue corporate sponsorships as
well as partnerships. Also be ever vigilant
pursuing other opportunities as they arise.

Monitor  grant  funders and  where
appropriate apply.
Approach organisations/persons when

appropriate for donations to maximise

project viability.

Promote using various strategies to increase
membership as a minimum by 10%.
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Attachment 7

Cockburn Community Men’s Shed Inc.

OPERATIONAL PLAN — 2019/20
Key Result Areas
1, Corporate Governance
» Review and prepare Strategic and Operational Plans;
» Continually monitor to ensure that the Shed has effective corporate governance in relation to its Constitution
and associated Legislation, Codes, Policies, Notices and Operating Procedures are effectively adhered to and that
they remain relevant;
» Maintain strong governance and practices over all activities and/or actions to ensure that the Shed maintains its
strong creditability with members as well as the community at large; and
» Maintain strong participation consultative and collaborative processes etc with members to ensure that current
and emerging needs are best met.
2. Partnerships and Memberships
It is recognised that the Shed nor any single entity alone can satisfactorily deliver on all challenges and best results can
only be achieved through local and national partnerships/memberships as well as the sharing of knowledge and good
practices. Consequently, the Shed will continue to maintain and build upon those partnerships and memberships as
required when the need arises.
3. Management Committee [Help from those with enthusiasm and vision]
The role of the Management Committee [delegated in accordance with the Constitution] is to research, evaluate, advise
and consult as widely as is practicable on any issues and/or make recommendations requiring decision at general,
extraordinary or annual general meetings. Further, the Management Committee has a responsibility to co-ordinate any
required actions including but not limited to the annual report. Matters dealt with by the Management Committee are
reported to all members at each general meeting and circulated through various minutes and notes. The Management
Committee will highlight opportunities for the Shed to expand, develop and/or improve its services in the most efficient
and effective way. As well as advocating it provides advice, but not limited to such matters as legislation, new policies,
emerging issues as well as likely changes in the way the Shed and/or other service providers may operate.
To achieve the under mentioned it has been determined from a strategic perspective that the major objective for this
year and next year would focus upon and as such additional strategies developed to achieve meaningful outcomes for but
not limited to-
«  Capacity Building and Diversity

* Seek funding by way of but not limited to grants, sponsorship events, donations etc

*  Purchase of additional equipment for wood and metal workshops in particular

*  Acquisition and installation of work area patio, blinds and bollards

«  Acquisition and installation of storage sheds and shelving

+  Acquisition and installation of stairs and balustrading to and on mezzanine floor

* Review of Workshops etc, layout, design etc and consequential change to better meet needs
4, Quality of Life

» Ensure that the Shed's primary purpose and reason for existence that is maintaining and improving the well-
being of men is maximised to the extent required;

» Continue to promote and support Men's Shed objectives, principles, priorities, and pathways with the key focus
on the agreed projects and/or activities;

» Continue to promote the principles of the to ensure as far as practicable that the aspirational needs of all are
better met;

» Contribute to and participate in agreed projects and activities to ensure efficient and effective implementation
and subsequent conclusion;

»  Assist, but not limited to other service providers in determining future programs and/or requirements to further
enhance the Shed's Constitution; Mission and Vision.

#  Assist to the extent required promote associated internal and/or external programs as determined

> Support all who seek assistance to maximise and/or contribute to their own quality of life or that of other
persons.
5. Advocacy and Awareness

» Undertake general advocacy in accordance with the Shed's Constitutional Objects;

> Ensure that people for example with disability, mental illness, families, carers and significant others rights and
needs are fulfilled to the highest practicable level.

» Ensure equality by way of inclusion to enable individual needs to be better met;
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> Promote but not limited to [name projects etc] as part of the Shed's role and outcomes associated with systemic
advocacy;
Participate in all Political Parties policy development as consumer representative;

» Monitor and where appropriate influence positive legislative and/or policy change at Local Government, State
and Federal levels;

= Assist significant others to further enhance their services, in particular to achieve better outcomes for all; and

¥ Further inform and assist members, families and carers and significant others with respect to the Shed and its
role.

6. Legislation and Policy
Monitor the outcomes because of any reviews undertaken which may/do impact on the Shed’ activities and take
action as deemed appropriate.
7. Financial
»  To prepare and ensure that all annual and financial reporting is in accordance with legislative requirements;
»  Establish corporate and other partnerships to ensure the Shed's sustainability in both the short and longer
terms;
» To raise sufficient funds through sponsorship, general fundraising, and projects/activities over the next 12
maonths to enable identified needs to be made more sustainable over the short and longer terms;
»  Maximise grant funding applications with the view to better meet Shed and project/activity development needs;
»  Ensure that all grant applications, acquittals and reports are robust and of a high standard; and
» To maintain strong governance over-all including the Shed’s management [operational and financial] including
but not limited to projects/activities that are facilitated by the Management Committee and/or sub-committee
under delegated authority.
8. Membership
»  Conduct briefing sessions for significant others to create greater awareness of what the Shed undertakes and the
way it may be able to assist;
» Increase membership, as a minimum by 10%.
9. Advisors and Consultants
»  Select and/for retain advisors/consultants who are specialists that have more and deeper knowledge in a specific
area that can assist the Shed to better fulfil its Constitutional objects and operational requirements.
10. General
» Continue to ensure that the Shed's website etc contributes and brings greater knowledge to all members and
public at large to assist in making a difference;
» Undertake the following and other projects as determined by Members and/or Management Committee; and
» Administration
o Amend Constitution, Policies, Notices and Operating Procedures
o Maintain the Occupational Safety and Health Committee
o Facilitate training as determined
o Continue to upgrade all the ‘Shed’ facilities e.g. Mezzanine Floor [Stairs, Balustrading, Furniture etc],
Storage Sheds and Shelving, Patio, Workbenches [All ability], Paint and Finishing Room, and Equipment
[minor and major]
o Continue to review Shed operations to further enhance and support progress towards better meeting
the needs of members and the community
o Conduct welcome to the ‘Shed’ for members, partners’ and friends
o Participate in WA Men’'s Shed Association’s Zone meetings
» Operations
o Undertake and fulfil projects and/or activities as determined and maintain at a high standard
o Conduct Bunning’s Family BBQ evening
o Provide assistance with the operation of Oberthur Primary School, Bullcreek Boys Shed
o Provide assistance with the operation of Disadvantaged Youth Workshops
o Review the establishment of alternative programs etc on the Shed’s vacant land
o Facilitate and participate in community awareness in meaningful ways that related to health and
wellbeing which promotes positive outcomes e.g. Lions Eye, Hearing and Skin Clinics
o Provide to organisations and/or individuals who seek assistance through nominated programs
o Participate in Cockburn City activities such as but not limited to:
= Spring Fair, Men’s Health and wellbeing Day, Sustainable Christmas Expo
o Arrange and facilitate ‘Toolbox discussion/information sessions on key topics
o For other detail please consult the monthly diary of events calendar as well as Shed Co-ordinator’s newsletter
and for other communications.
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Fulfillment of Original Management Plan Considerations — August 2015
1. Objective and Philosophy
The original Objective and Philosophy of the Men's Shed Movement have been expanded taking into
consideration that it is now defined as Cockburn Community Men’s Shed the Shed] with a strong focus on
both. Consequently, the Shed's constitution was revised taking this into account which was approved by the
Department of Commerce on December 6, 2018. Extract is at attachment 5.

2. Management Structure and Governance
The original management structure and governance was reviewed and revised to meet the overall changing
needs as well as better meet its legislative and best practice objectives. Schematic overview of the operations
of the Shed is at attachment 8. It will be noted that the Shed has appointed ten professional advisors to assist
with the meeting of our obligations etc.

Also, the Management Committee continues to maintain an appropriate and appointed Council
representative.

It was stated that Shed will access the SMART system developed by the AMSA which was done and is still
referred to. However, the Shed has significantly enhanced and more comprehensively dealt with all legislative
and management requirements. In this regard please see attachment 3 which is a list of all key operating
documents.

With respect to the other nominated management areas brief comment on each as follows:
3. Management and Planning

Each year the Shed reviews and prepares both Strategic and Operation Plans which include the key
components of the initial Shed Management Plan. These are presented to members at the AGM for
endorsement. Attachments 6 and 7 refer. Both documents form the basis of further progressing the Shed to meet
the planned strategies and defined outcomes. This is achieved by having defined programs and activities. To
this end special Working Groups have been established which are member driven and have proved to highly
beneficial in that all outcomes that have come to or nearing finalisation been or will achieved.

4. Financial Management
Each year the Shed prepares a budget for each financial year by a Working Group and then approved by the
Management Committee. All financial actions are in accordance with policy and operating procedures
including the Treasurer presenting a detailed report at each Management Committee meeting. All
transactions are recorded on MYOB accounting package as well as the production of a comprehensive set of
reports. At the end of the financial year the accounts are audited and presented at the AGM.

5. Information Technology — Computing etc Requirements

On review the Management Committee determined that the Shed’s initial information platform was not
seamless, nor did it have the capacity to be extended due to the technology being utilised being non-
conforming. The Shed was fortunate that one of its members had the knowledge and expertise to work
towards and facilitate the consolidation and taking control of the Shed's digital footprint and bringing
together all the Shed's corporate memory. This was achieved by using Office365, which enabled the setting
up delegated and controlled access which further allows when there is a change of delegated persons e.g.
executive etc] the information and history remains consolidated in one location. In an additional
enhancement are being researched such as having a more integrated membership management system.
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With the introduction of these changes together with other proposed changes have and will continue to
provide a much-improved corporate governance platform.

6. Health and Safety
The Shed has a specially constituted 0S&H Committee which is scheduled to meet as a minimum of 10 times
which then reports to the Management Committee. The Shed also has an appointed OS&H Facilitator. As can
be seen from attachment 13 the Shed has comprehensive codes, policies, and operating procedures.
It is pleasing to note that to-date the Shed has no reported near misses, incidents, accidents, or exposure to
hazardous substances.

It is worthy of note that the members qualified electricians designed, constructed, and installed a
comprehensive Emergency/Duress system which is operated independently out of each area. Once the
emergency/duress button is pushed the area is then identified and the siren and flashing blue lights
commence operating in all areas. Further, instantaneously all equipment is shut down and with this all
proceed to the assembly area. Return to normal functions is controlled by the Shed Coordinator which
includes turning the power back on after each machine has been checked.

7. Membership - Application, Inclusion, Induction and Membership Management
Membership criteria etc is clearly defined within the Constitution as well as policy and operating procedures
with its management dealt with confidentially by delegated persons with records being maintained on the
computer or manually as determined, this includes a comprehensive induction, training and instruction to the
extent required.

It is also worthy of note that currently the Shed membership consists of all the ABS identified socially
disadvantaged male priority groups namely: males with disability, mental iliness, migrant, isolated - live at
home alone, suffering drug and/or alcohol abuse, defence veterans, those who need support due to
relationship issues.

Regarding inclusion each member has an opportunity to be included/participate in management, committees,
working groups, activities to the extent they so choose and those allowable. To-date we believe that this has
been maximised by those who choose. Further, regarding inclusion the Shed prides itself with the number of
people with disability [members] along with their support person and mental illness to actively participate. In
addition, we work co-operatively with the Department of Justice where they attend the Shed on a weekly
basis with persons reguired to undertake community service. To this can be added that the Shed is an
approved Centre-Link Voluntary Activity Provider [Work for the Dole (WFTD) Program and has had persons
actively participating.

To meet changing needs additional membership categories and criteria have been added.

With respect to the Shed’s current membership currently out of 105 members only 5 do not reside in the
defined Cockburn Council boundaries. These reside in either Melville or Canning Vale and all chose to come to
the Shed because the proposed Shed to be built in Melville did not eventuate. The following are the average
attendances at the Shed over the past 12 months:

Tuesday — 35 Wednesday - 30 Thursday - 30 Saturday - 20

8. Communication and Media
Shed has maintained excellent communication with its members by way of a weekly newsletter as well as all
receiving all minutes of the management and occupational safety and health committees plus a diary of
forthcoming events etc. Further, the Shed has recently updated its web hosting site to be more interactive,
particularly with the community. When appropriate the Shed engages with external media to promote the
Shed as well as acknowledging those who have assisted.
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9. Mentoring and Child Protection
Regarding mentoring the Shed has conducted and plans to run more DIY [Do It Yourself] Programs
Members of the Shed have engaged particularly with several schools to mentor students as well as assisting
with projects both at the Shed and school. All who directly participate have the necessary Police clearances.

10. Disadvantaged Groups
The Shed membership is made up of all the defined disadvantaged groups. In this regard every effort is made
to ensure that the assistance provided in some way to living a more fulfilled life. The Shed is currently working
in close liaison with such organisations such as Centrelink Dept. of Justice various disability service providers
Independent Living Centre, Alzheimer’s Aust. as well as each member’s professional health etc consultant as
and when requested.

11. Shed Co-ordination
The Shed has appointed Co-ordinators [2] since inception who have had both the social and technical skills to
fulfill the role. However, as the Shed has evolved the role has changed to that first proposed in that it now is
about overall day to day Shed management [all aspects] who is supported by Workshop and Facilities
Facilitators and where appropriate specially formed working groups, coupled with that of the Executive. This
has to-date overall been the most effective and acceptable to members.

Rostering of members proved to be ineffective and in efficient due to the lack of continuity, skills, knowledge,
and competencies in many which was not fair on the member and/or other members.

Further, the Co-ordinator is the initial point of contact for the community as well as those seeking
membership which has increased significantly e.g. number of enquiries, projects/activities the Shed has and is
involved with

plus, the growth in membership 30 = currently 105 and still increasing. It will be noted that the Shed has not
advertised for members. The location and word of mouth has we believe being achieved by its manner,
environment and what is offered.

12. Grants Writer
Currently the Secretary undertakes this delegated role with assistance, which has proved to be very successful
and will continue until circumstances change. It is worthy of note that Of the seven grants applied for four
have been successful, and one unsuccessful and a further two we are awaiting the outcome for each. We
were fortunate to receive sponsorship for the unsuccessful one which provide the Shed with roundly $40,000.

13. Building Maintenance
When required building maintenance main structure is co-ordinated by Council. With respect to all other
maintenance such as electrical, equipment and facilities is undertaken by competent members. To-date this
has been both effective and efficient.

14. Shed's Contributions

Detail of the Shed's contributions regarding, additions fit-outs, enhancements, projects, and activities are
listed at attachment 12,
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Attachment 9

cockburn Cnmmunigy

i

Men's Shed 10

Shed Contributions — 2018/19 and 2019/20

One of the strategic objectives for the Shed was to strive towards becoming self-funded as well as providing
programs and equipment etc to meet the needs of the members as well as the community. In this regard
since the Shed was opened in June 2018 it took some time to set the Shed up which was followed by training
and instruction to meeting legislative as well as insurance requirements. This has been ongoing with
substantial additional pieces of equipment, work benches and capital items [Shed additions] being acquired
to the largest extent through grant funding and sponsorships.
Details are as follows:
Shed additions including fit-outs

¢ Workshop Patio and Blinds

* Dust extraction units and sheds

* Storage Facilities [3 x 20-foot containers and 2 x meter infills] — currently being progressed

e Installation of Stairs and Balustrading to Mezzanine Floor = currently being progressed

¢ Emergency and Duress Alarm System

* Mobile paint and refurbishing booth
Equipment etc — 40 pieces

* lathes — wood and metal

* Pedestal Drills = wood and metal

*  Metal Workshop - welding equipment and fume extraction

* Variety of equipment associated with wood working

o E.g.saws, planers, thicknessers, sanders, routers

* Dust extraction units including storage sheds

¢ Hazardous substances storage unit

s Workshop workbenches [wood and metal] including electric/hydraulic ‘All-ability’ benches
Shed Enhancements

* Installation of Emergency/Duress system

* Electrical upgrades — Power outlets, lighting

* Patio Blinds — installation

e Consumable cupboards to accommodate but not limited to — hand tools, PPE, nuts, bolts, screws etc

e Kitchen cupboards = installation

e Signage — Entrance

* Resurfacing of all workshop floors
Hand Tools

*  Many and varied
The estimated contributions both financial and in-kind donations equate to $90-95000 with a further
allocation of roundly $50000 this forthcoming financial year.
Projects and Activities
2018/19 Projects and Activities
Whilst there was delay in maximising projects and activities at the commencement of the year due to the
opening [June 13, 2018] and associated transition as well as the requirement for all members to undertake
induction/instruction on the use of machine/equipment the following was achieved.
Over 1600 hours [*] was undertaken on community projects/ activities which included construction and/or
installation of, but not limited to:

Cockburn Community Men's Shed Inc. Shed Co-ordination Funding Request - July 2020 Page 10f 2

| | 35 of 227

Document Set ID: 9674303

Version: 3, Version Date: 17/09/2020

ltem 13.1 Attachment 1

49 of 532



Item 13.1 Attachment 1 OCM 13/08/2020

Item 9.1 Attachment 1 GAD 21/07/2020
*  Mud kitchens Cubby house Outdoor lounge chairs Street libraries
* Bird havens Prefab Bird Boxes Clap sticks Tee Pee
e Buddy benches Coin drops Dolls houses Rocking horse
e Wheel chair ramp Table tennis bats Micro bug havens
* Pioneer Memorial fencing Garden shade cloth shelters Kangaroo Rocking Chair
¢ Puppet Theatre Winners Dias Restoration and/or repair of furniture

Estimated net value approximately $12500 - $15000
Based upon a conservative estimate of hours [1600] invested at a cost of $30 - 540 per hour the Shed as a
minimum has provided services to the value between $48,000 and $64,000.
It should be noted that to the largest extent recycled material was utilised.
Other
e Teaching primary school students basic ‘Do it yourself' skills [DIY]
e Conduct Bunning's Family BBQ evening
* Provide assistance with the operation of Oberthur Primary School, Bullcreek Boys Shed
A significant number of members have availed themselves of the facilities to manufacture, repair etc many
items for themselves, family and friends.
2019/20
Activities
e Health Expo in conjunction with City of Cockburn
*  Women's woodworking groups - 2 x 3 hours x 6 weeks duration
e Teaching primary school students basic ‘Do it yourself' skills [DIY]
¢ Conduct Bunning's Family BBQ evening
e Provide assistance with the operation of Oberthur Primary School, Bullcreek Boys Shed
*  Assistance provided by Dept. of Justice
Projects:
* Refurbishment of furniture — e.g. jarrah table-top and legs
* Old Jandakot school - refurbishing/painting desk, bench, and picture rails
e Bunnings — Assistance with Fathers’ Day and Christmas Programs

* Replica WW1 trench furniture, rifles, and pistols Chicken coop

* Buddy benches Mud kitchens Fold-up desk

* Picnic tables and bench seat Furniture refurbishment Puppet theatre
e Plant stands Garden arch Chicken coop

* Smoothie Bike Ice-cream-cart Water tank refurbishment
* Small game table Games board Coin dropper

* Honour board Cutting and platter boards Fob watch case
+ Cupboards and bench tops Possum boxes Bird boxes

+ Street libraries Spearwood P S - animal cut-outs [12]

« Christmas tree replicas - timber Christmas tree replicas - books Clap sticks

+ Kangaroo rocking chair Rifle and Pistol Targets Table tennis bats

«  Assistance with the clean-up of deceased estates etc
e Further, the Shed has been involved in many one-off tasks e.g. upgrade, repair of furniture and other
products.
* A significant number of members have availed themselves of the facilities to manufacture, repair etc
many items for themselves, family and friends.
Estimated net value approximately between $15000 - 520000
Due to the Corona Virus closure some projects were awaiting finalisation and/or commencement we are now
open for business more requests have been forthcoming. All of this together with personal projects will
provide an opportunity to use the new equipment.
Again, based upon a conservative estimate of hours [1800] invested at a cost of 530 - 540 per hour the Shed
as a minimum has provided services to the value between $54,000 and $72,000.
It should be noted that to the largest extent recycled material, a significant amount was donated which was
utilised.
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Budget Estimates
INCOME
Budget Item Description 2019/20 Committed 2020/21
S00 S00 Soo
Brought Forward from 2018/19 49.1 49.0
1. Shed Co-ordination -Co-ordinator [C of C] 30.0 251
Grant request $33.0 C/Fwd $7.1 as it would expire end of Sept 2021
®  Management Systems & Consumables [Administration] 3.0
2. Shed Enhancements [C of C] 17.5
3. Membership 7.8 10.0
4. Grants [4] 29.5 8.0
5. Sponsored Events [2] 4.6 15.0
6. Sale of Products etc 73 10.0
7. Fundraising 2.0 5.0
8. Donations 1.0 8.0
9. Miscellaneous - Bank interest, Rent .5 1.0
Total $149.3 5134.1
EXPENSE
1. Shed Co-ordination
Co-ordinator 31.0 2.0+ 330
Management Systems 2.2 2.5
Consumables [Administration] 1.3 1.5
2. Insurance 34 4.0
3. Grant Funding [Equipment, Tools, Patio, Blinds] 26.2 9.1 * 15.0
4. Sponsored Events [Equipment] 4.6
5. Equipment/Tools/Tools 12.5 8.0
6. Equipment Maintenance 4.3 6.0
7. Shed Maintenance 8.1 5.0
8. Shed Enhancements .5 17.0# 8.0
9. Materials 3.8 6.0
10. Consumables 3.7 8.0
11. Memberships [AMSA & WAMSA] 5 8
12. Miscellaneous 1.2 1.0
Total $103.3 28.1 94.8
122.9
Anticipated carry over of funds 549.0 511.2

+ City of Cockburn [Expires Sept 2020]  $2.0
* Grant Funding
# Shed Funding

Cockburn Community Men's Shed Inc.

Balustrading $4.7 Tools & Equipment
Installation of Sheds & Infills $17.0

[Paid September 2019]

Shed Co-ordination Funding Request - July 2020

Corona virus $1.5
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Cockburn Community Men’s Shed Inc.

ANNUAL REPORT 2018-19

Chair's Message

Last year at the AGM | referred to the previous year as a year of transition and change. We had successfully
moved from our old Shed in Wattleup to the new Shed we now enjoy. That transition has been mostly
successful, but | do recognise that the move has not suited everyone. | also accept that whatever change
occurs in the Shed will not suit everyone or be considered positive by everyone. Change brings about
positive outcomes but also leaves some people to prefer the way things were. Such is the situation in this
Shed.

My view is that this Shed is moving towards the goals that were set back at the establishment stage of the
Cockburn Community Men’s Shed and we should not ignore the objectives set in the early Funding and
Business Plans. While many of you were not around at that time it was always the intent to create a
Community Shed that would be used to benefit multiple Community Groups and become a positive
Community Facility in the City of Cockburn. Having said that, the primary purpose of this Shed will be to its
members and our objective of improving and maintaining the physical and mental health of Men.

| believe the current Committee Members are cognisant of those responsibilities and will continue working
towards those goals. For those members who think we have lost some direction and purpose in moving to
this new Shed | ask them to also reflect on those commitments that were made in the establishment days
and also support the progress towards a true Community Men's Shed.

If the previous year was about transition this year has been about consolidation. When we moved, we had
48 members and today, on our books, we have over 120. We have 80 financial members and that is
growing.

Our Constitution is now embedded. We have a register of all our equipment. Our insurance has been
clarified and we currently get better per head costs than previously. We have a duress alarm system that
will be an envy of every other Shed which compliments an emergency/duress and evacuation system. We
have Strategic and Operational Plans (including budget estimates) that take us forward to achieve our
objectives.

Most of this has come about because of the hard work and diligence of our secretary Bevan who devotes
many hours of his time and no-one works harder or puts in more hours than Bevan.

We have a cohesive Management Committee which has assisted in maintaining our focus and making
decisions that are best for the Shed. My thanks to the committee members.

Our hardworking Treasurer continues to keep our finances in order and his experience on the Committee is
invaluable. Many thanks to Geoff.

The Occupational Safety and Health Committee continues to focus on everyone's well-being and we now
have a dedicated OS&H Facilitator, thanks Brian and to the members of that committee.

We have an effective shed coordination process and we've enjoyed the skills of Spud as our Shed
Coordinator and Marc as our Saturday and relief Coordinator. Both men have a commitment to the
objectives of our Shed and the Men's Shed objectives, but more importantly, they are very talented men in
their own right and a huge asset to the Shed.

Cockburn Community Men’s Shed Inc. Annual Report 2018/19 Ver.3F September 2019 Page 3

40 of 227

54 of 532
Document Set ID: 9674303
Version: 3, Version Date: 17/09/2(420




OCM 13/08/2020 ltem 13.1 Attachment 1

GAD 21/07/2020 Item 9.1 Attachment 1

We've had three Bunnings Sausage Sizzles in the past year and Burt has continued to facilitate these. Don't
think this is easy and Burt does extremely well to continue this excellent fundraising opportunity.

Special mention to Greg who managed our projects this year. Greg has been a great resource and will be
greatly missed in the Project Manager position.

We've done very well from some of our projects this year and thanks have to go to all the members
involved. | believe the commitment to refine the cost and quote process on projects will greatly benefit the
Shed in the long term

One of the best days I've spent as a Shedder was at the Cockburn Lakes Warriors Amateur Football Club.
The football club has a community day each year where they identify a community group to benefit from
the proceeds of a special day they conduct at their Club once a year. We were the recipients this year and
the members who attended the day had a great time. We were treated very well by the footy club
members and the Club raised 53,080 which it donated to the Shed.

There are many examples of standout efforts by members of this Shed and | would take too long to
mention all of them, and I'd probably forget someone and feel bad if | did that.

But | must take the time to thank all those that step up and help, sausage sizzles, garden maintenance,
clean ups and any other thing that requires hands on deck. This Shed is a great Shed because of you.

Going forward we will need more help and we’ll be calling on all members to stand up and not leave it to
the few. I'll remind members that their signed membership application includes a commitment to
volunteer for Shed activities. It is my hope we don’t have to enforce that; it would be much more in line
with the principles of this Shed for men to jump at the chance to help out, Shoulder to shoulder.

We continue to receive significant support from the City of Cockburn both in funding and in-kind
contributions. Do not have any doubt, if not for the ongoing support of the City of Cockburn this Shed
would not be able to continue. Qur great thanks go to the Mayor and all the staff that assist us.

I'd like to take this opportunity to launch a new fund-raising initiative. The Cockburn Community Men's
Shed 100 Club. Each membership to this Club will cost $100. If we are able to sell all 100 memberships, we
will raise $10,000 and cover the costs of our external storage sheds. This does not mean members are
required to buy a membership (but it would be nice if that happens). | encourage each member to offer this
opportunity to join the 100 Club to friends, relatives and business owners you may know. Obviously, the
more memberships we sell the better off the Shed will be.

This is my third AGM and I'll finish off exactly as | have in the past two AGM Chair's report;
The object of the Men’s Shed is to foster and improve the physical and mental health of men. We do this by
providing a welcoming environment that provides encouragement, companionship, understanding and

cooperation.

Thank you and | look forward to another positive year at the Shed.

Peter Hadgsan

Peter Hodgson

(s a Shed we de not want te fe by what is etched en a tambstone. We want it to be defined
in what is etched in the lives and heants of thase we have tauched.
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Cockburn Community Men’s Shed Inc.
Governance

Continuous Disclosure

One of the Shed's principles is that of continuous disclosure about actual and/or potentially disclosable
matters or events as when they arise to enable members and significant others to make informed decisions
or provide feedback. All major matters, in particular related to policy are always referred to a Management
Committee Meeting for resolution and action. Members are kept informed by comprehensive management
and occupational safety and health minutes as well as the Shed C-ordinator’s newsletters and messages.

Constitution

The Shed continues to remain strategic and focused on the key elements of its Constitutional Objects,
which translates into continuing positive outcomes in the best interests of members and significant others.
These being:

* Safeguarding rights through strong advocacy and consultation;

* Promoting equality by way of inclusion to enable individual needs to be better met;

e Enhancing quality of life [all aspects] and promoting independence;

*  Assisting the further development and sustainability of an individual’s and/or family’s capacity;

* Developing and maintaining strong and sustainable collaborative partnerships;

e Advancing knowledge, in the pursuit of change and good practice;

* Encouraging action on issues that affect in particular members and/or significant others that are
systemic; and

*  Acquiring funds to provide for, but not limited to, needs such as programs, services, and amenities.

As in the past, to achieve the best outcomes the Shed has continued to use a wide range of strategies,
actions and support to effectively meet each identified need by taking an enthusiastic and pro-active
approach.

Constitution and Associated Documents

A complete review during the years [2017/18 and 2018/19] of the Constitution and associated documents
because of the legislative changes which saw significant changes to all the previous documentation. These
were approved by the Department of Mines, Industry Regulation and Safety effective from December 6,
2018. Further, since that date the Shed has continued to monitor all associated legislative, policy and
operational issues and where appropriate has approved of either new or amendments which were
subsequently introduced.

As a consequence of the amended/additional constitution, policy and operating procedures it is considered
that it has enabled the Shed to better meet governance obligations. However worthy of note the daily
operation of the Shed has not impeded on the manner in which it operates.

e the end aof each yeay the Sthed will nat be fudged by Rowe many vequests i fias veceived ox fioe much maoney
& fras veceived but fowe many great things i fas dane to make a diffevence. You ave what you de, not what
o say yow bt do. Tt tafes each af us o make a difference fox all.

Strategic and Operational Plans — 2019/20 and 2020/21

In late June the Management Committee undertook a review of the past strategic and operational plans to
ensure that the Shed remained focussed on what had been agreed. It was determined that the plans for
2018/19 were in the majority more than adequately met. As such the Management Committee is proud to
continue its commitment to its activity supporting and engaging with members as well as significant others
in particular, the Cockburn Community. By further developing both the proposed strategic and operational
plans it challenges and adopts for today and tomorrow. These were endorsed at the September
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Management Committee meeting and will be tabled at today’s AGM. It is therefore the Shed’s intention to
ensure it continues to be the best for all concerned.

Financial Planning

In conjunction with the above-mentioned review the Shed’s financial management and planning was
undertaken by way of consultation with the Executive as well as the Shed’'s key operational workshop
members. Both income and expenditure budget estimates were constructed establishing essential, priority
and beneficial items. The budgets were endorsed at the August Management Committee meeting and will
be tabled at today's AGM.

Membership

As at July 1 2018 the Shed's membership was 48 and on June 30 2019 it had increased to 105 which is over
a 100% significantly greater than that anticipated [25%)]. The overall contributions both internally and
externally are worthy of note and are described further in this report.

The Shed considers it is worthy to acknowledge the manner in which people with disability their support
and/or care have been accepted and seamlessly integrated. All are thanked for their contribution. Further it
is pleasing to note all that sought membership and joined have continued to make an excellent overall
contribution.

Highlights
To ensure the Shed remained true to its Constitutional Objects success in part was measured by its
achievements, actions and subsequent outcomes throughout the year.

Projects and Activities

Whilst there was delay in maximising projects and activities at the commencement of the year due to the
opening [June 13, 2018] and associated transition as well as the requirement for all members to undertake
induction/instruction on the use of machine/equipment the following was achieved.

Over 1600 hours [*] was undertaken on community projects/ activities which included construction and/or
installation of, but not limited to:

¢  Mud kitchens Cubby house

* Outdoor lounge chairs Street libraries

* Bird havens Prefab Bird Boxes

*  Clap sticks Tee Pee

* Buddy benches Coin drops

+ Dolls houses Rocking horse

®  Wheel chair ramp Table tennis bats

* Micro bug havens Pioneer Memoaorial fencing
¢ Garden shade cloth shelters Kangaroo Rocking Chair

* Puppet Theatre Winners Dias

[*] Based upon a conservative estimate of hours [1600] invested at a cost of 530 - 540 per hour the Shed as
a minimum has provided services to the value between 548,000 and $64,000.
It should be noted that to the largest extent recycled material was utilised.
Other
* Restoration and/or repair of furniture
¢ Teaching primary school students basic ‘Do it yourself’ skills [DIY]
* Conduct Bunning's Family BBQ evening

* Provide assistance with the operation of Oberthur Primary School, Bullcreek Boys Shed

All who contributed are sincerely thanked and in particular strong leadership by the Project Manager as
well as those who accepted responsibility to co-ordinate ffacilitate projects and activities.

Further, a significant of members have availed themselves of the facilities to manufacture, repair etc many
items for themselves, family and friends.

SHED ENHANCEMENTS
Installation of:
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Other:

Finalised installation after relocation of all equipment etc in the Shed

Dust extraction systems [2]

Duress/emergency alarm system

Blinds [2] on patio

Additional power points [internal and external]
Computing for members use

Kitchen cupboards

Emergency equipment storage

Workshops [3] Personal Protective Equipment [PPE] storage
PV Strip Curtains in workshop door
Workbenches [external]

Chemical and solvents storage cabinet
Additional equipment

Resurfacing [non slip] of the workshop floor walkways
Acquisition of personal aids — wheelchairs, walkers, crutches

Progressing:

Consolidating and upgrading the use of information technology

Modification/construction of two electric/hydraulic adjustable work benches [#]

Planning/approval installation of:

o modular timber and general sheds and associated storage facilities

o workplace patio, blinds and bollard
Installation of stairs and hand rails to the mezzanine floor
Relocation of internal dust extraction unit to external location

Grant applications to obtain funding to undertake the above-mentioned items

Partnerships to further strengthen community participation

# It is worthy to note that the Shed has further determined that there is a lack of suitable workshop
facilities [unmet need of priority], in particular associated with various activities such as but not limited
to wood working and metal work. This is particularly related to people with disability including those in
wheelchairs of various sizes, amputees, skeletal and medical conditions requiring members to be
seated or being able to adjust the height at which they can work comfortably. As a consequence, the
Shed is currently designing through a significant consultative process and has applied for grant funding
to suitably equip the adjustable work benches.

All of this has/will significantly add value to the Shed as well as make its operation more effective and
efficient. The majority of this work has/will be undertaken by members which has provided significant
benefit to Shed members.

Induction/Familiarisation/Training
All members received re-induction/familiarisation on each piece of equipment within the Shed
Use of various equipment, in particular those in the machine, wood, metal and hand tool workshops

Wood turning
Welding

First Aid

Emergency Control
Safe Talk Workshop

Tool Box Discussions etc

Independent Living Centre — Discussion and display
Men's Health
Wood turning

Other Activities

Cockburn Community Men’s Shed Inc. Annual Report 2018/19 Ver.3F
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* Sundowners [3]
¢ Cockburn Rotary Spring Fair
* Froggies Fathers’ Day Sausage Sizzle
e Car Park Sales — Beeliar Rotary Sunday Markets

Approved Centre-Link Organisation

The Shed was approved in early June as a non-for-profit-organisation a “Work for The Dole’ [WFTD]
voluntary activity provider. Currently the Shed has a person participating in the ‘Shed’s various activities to
fulfil his obligations which he has found to be more than beneficial.

I cannot strongly express to all members and significant others, particularly the recipients of community
projects/activities as well as individuals and families a big enough thank you for your personal efforts and
contributions. This has provided excellent outcomes including enhancement of the Shed’s place within the
Cockburn Community.

Information Technology — Computing etc Requirements

On review the Management Committee determined that the information platform was not seamless nor
did it have the capacity to be extended due to the technology being utilised being non- conforming. As such
Bentec Computing, our Shed Advisor was asked to assist in determining the future computing and
communication platforms including enhancement but not limited to face book &/or similar, web page as
well as service provider/s.

Bentec provided an excellent overview and recommended approach which the Management Committee
endorsed. For this the Shed is most appreciative of their support and advice.

The Shed was fortunate that one of its members had the knowledge and expertise to work towards and
facilitate the consolidation and taking control of the Shed's digital foot print. The access and management
of the Shed’s Domain name: http://www.ccmshed.org.au/ was initially established and setup by a previous
manager. As such it was necessary over a period of time to take full control of this domain and register it
under the Cockburn Community Men’s Shed. This now allows detail to be recorded and in future which will
facilitate a seamless transfer when personnel change.

From this access was gained to our website so that we are able to add and update content. This site is
managed by a company Melbourne called ‘Zuver’ and with their assistance the Shed was were able to gain
access to the site and lock in the domain controls. Further, to this Facebook was the next challenge and
finally the Shed has control. With this control the Shed now has a presence as well as being able to find and
post information.

The final step being progressed is bringing together all of the Shed’s corporate memaory. This is being done
using Office365, which enables then setting up the different executive officer holders with the office title
for ease of reference and controlled access. In this way as people change the information and history all
stays in one spot. This is currently being rolled out and training being provided to the executive officer
holders who will be using the software and systems.

As an additional enhancement we are researching the possibility having an integrated membership
management system. This will further enhance the Shed’s ability to serve its members but also manage our
membership details, such as personal [emergency assist etc], payment of fees, training and other as
determined. This will take a little time but we will be announcing at a later date. Before going live, we will
have a presentation to the membership of the whole package.

With the introduced changes it is considered that this together with other changes will provide significantly
improved corporate governance platform.
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Occupational Safety and Health

It is pleasing to report that No near misses, incidents, accidents or exposures to hazardous substances were
reported throughout the year. For this, all members are thanked for their due diligence to accomplish this
achievement.

The occupational and safety committee has played a significant role in insuring that the Shed operated
effectively and that any matter that required attention was dealt with promptly. Further, as stated earlier a
complete review together with continuous review of all policies and operating procedures have been
introduced. Three nominated members undertake a comprehensive inspection of all aspects of the Shed's
operations including status of previous required actions on a monthly basis. The inspection report is
submitted to each meeting where recommended required actions are determined and submitted to the
Management Committee. Since the Committee was established it has met on nine occasions with all
recommended required actions ratified by the Management Committee.

As the result of several emergency situations which arose that further and better medical particulars were
needed to ensure the best possible outcome could be achieved. As a consequence, consultation with
significant medical providers as well as members to ascertain how to best meet the various needs. It was
determined that to best assist members and significant others the Shed should require each member,
support person and/or carer to provide confidential Emergency Assist Information [medical etc]. As such this
enables, should there be an incident that this detail is available to be utilised and provided to achieve the
best possible outcome. The process has now been successfully introduced.

Further, the Shed commenced a significant upgrade that is installing a comprehensive Duress/Emergency
system throughout the Shed [6 key locations] which is being undertaken by qualified members. This in turn
is has necessitated a revision of all of the Shed’s written and practical evacuation procedures. It is
anticipated that the system will be operational by mid-September.

Property, Plant and Equipment

The Shed does not own any property or plant but does have some equipment as recorded in the Assets/
Equipment Register. A major stocktake was undertaken on February 1, 2019 with each piece being given a
unique identifying number [adhesive sticker] and has been recorded electronically which is continually
updated [acquisitions, sales or write offs].

Shed Memberships

e Australian Men’s Shed Association [AMSA]

e Western Australia Men's Shed Association [WAMSA]

The Shed hosted a Zone meeting and those in attendance were shown over the new facilities and
commended all who facilitated and assisted in bringing completion of the new facilities.

Membership to the above noted organisations has, as in the past, continued to provide the Shed with
greater ability to network and assist in influencing others to achieve, further and better outcomes.

Relationships

Relationships in particular these of partnerships ave never abiout pawex, and is
ane way to avoid the will ta pawer is ta chaase ta limit ane-self- ta sewwe.

The Shed through the Management Committee has recognised that no single entity alone can satisfactorily
deliver on all challenges and that the best results can only be accomplished through local and national
relationships, the sharing of knowledge and good practices. As such, the Shed is again indebted to those
that partnered in further enhancing support to our constituents:

In addition, the Shed is indebted to many individuals who have also assisted by provision of their wisdom,
knowledge, time and energy to enhance the Shed’s progress. We look forward to the continued
sustainability and strengthening of all our partnerships so that the Shed can continually achieve greater
benefits by the synergy created.
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Financial Reporting

a Compliance

The Shed’s financial report is a special purpose financial report prepared in order to satisfy the reporting
requirements of the Associations Incorporations WA Act (1987) and Charitable Collections Act (1946),
Regulations (1947). The Management Committee has determined that the Shed is not a reporting entity.

In addition, the Shed was compliant with its own Financial Compliance and Public Fundraising Code, which
includes reporting of the Shed’'s accounting practices, financial reconciliation and statement preparation
[based on historical costs] in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards.

Registered Australian Business [ABN] and Goods and Services Tax [G5T]
The Shed is registered with the Australian Taxation Office [ATO] as an Australian Business [ABN 21 902 498
771] effective from February 7, 2014.

Public Benefit Institution [PBI] and Deductible Gift Recipient [DGR]

The Shed has not sought to apply for PBI and DGR status as it is awaiting the outcome of possible change to
Federal legislation which is planned during next financial year 2019/20, associated with all Sheds within
Australia.

Charitable Collections Licence

The then Department of Consumer and Employment Protection [now Department of Mines, Industry
Regulation and Safety] initially granted the Shed a Licence - No. 20543 on December 9, 2014, which was
reviewed and re-approved this year and is now valid until January 17, 2021.

The Shed has complied with its Code - Financial Compliance including Public Fundraising - during this past
financial year and arranged for its financial and reporting statements to be audited in accordance with the
Code. Please see Financial Report which includes the Audit.

a Financial Statements
A copy of the Shed's detailed financial and reporting statements can be provided separate to this report on

request,

INCOME

Where the Shed receives specific grants and/or donations as to its prescribed use or when a donation is
significant the Management Committee determines its use and is accounted for accordingly.

Summarised details are as follows:

Financials: Cheque Account $17143.14
Grant = Cockburn City Council $31850.98 Total Bank Statement $48994.12
Petty Cash S 126.75
Total Cash on Hand $49120.87
Trade Debtors S 600.00
Total Cash plus debtors 549720.87
Financials breakdown:
Grant Cockburn City Council $47500.00
Interest $35.53
Income Membership Dues S 7485.00
Donations $1611.00
Hire Building 5 450.00
Project Sales $5404.00
Sale of machinery materials etc $1705.00
Sausage sizzles fundraisers (Net) $2464.93
Coffee sales (net) $ 815.90
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Expenses

Dues/Subscriptions $ 199.70

Insurance 51052.98

Sundry Office Expenses $2119.67

Materials purchased 55656.63

Shed Co-ordinator Services $18637.50

Training Expenses $1245.60

Net Profit $37341.13

Total Cash Carry Forward 2019-20 $49120.87

For full detail please see Balance Sheet, Income and Expenditure statement.

MNotes to and forming part of the financial statements for the Shed ‘a not for profit’ association for the
year ended June 30, 2019, together with the Management Committee’s Report and letter provided to the
Auditor are available to members on request.

It should be noted the Shed has been able to more than adequately meet all of its financial commitments
and/or requests that have been asked of it. Further, at the time this report was prepared the Shed remains
solvent.

u] Audit — 2018/19

An independent audit was carried out by Mark Hill CPA and in his opinion, it was determined that the
financial reporting of the Shed was presented fairly and in accordance with all requirements. Copy of that
opinion will be made available to members on request.

It is noted that all requirements under the Associations Incorporations WA Act (1987) and Charitable
Collections Act (1946), Regulations (1947) for 2017/18 were fully met as reported to the Department of
Mines, Industry Regulation and Safety in November 2018. The report for 2018/19 has been submitted

The Shed wishes to acknowledge and sincerely appreciates Mark Hill's contribution once again by
undertaking the Audit free of charge.

o Financial Planning — 2019/20 -2021/22
The Shed commenced a comprehensive review to determine the way forward over the next three years
which entails but not limited to:
* Income projections from current sources as well as new opportunities including corporate
sponsorship, new projects, partnerships, grants etc
* Expenditure projections based on current activity, together with the possible new projects as well as
determining what new and/or replacement facilities and equipment.
e Copy of the budget estimates for 2019/20 is available on request.

=l Insurance

The Shed has comprehensive insurance [commercial package] with Arthur J Gallagher & Co [Aust] Ltd that
covers all members as well as significant others which was renewed commencing on February 28. Due to the
amended membership categories when the newly approved constitution was introduced the Shed revised all
of its membership as well as support persons and carers policies, operating procedures and membership
forms which were duly endorsed and introduced.

The City of Cockburn as the Lessee also provides public liability insurance to the extent of $20m.

u] Deed of Lease — City of Cockburn

Initial Term = 5 years expires July 10, 2023
Further Term -5 years

Cockburn Community Men’s Shed Inc. Annual Report 2018/19 Ver.3F September 2019 Page 11

48 of 227

62 of 532
Document Set ID: 9674303
Version: 3, Version Date: 17/09/2(420




OCM 13/08/2020 ltem 13.1 Attachment 1

GAD 21/07/2020 Item 9.1 Attachment 1

Acknowledgements

In Memoriam
Dante Pacini

Life Membership
It is with pleasure that the Shed will be presenting Life Membership to:

¢ Michael Manning

*  Geoff Webb, and

*  Andre Frei
for their outstanding contribution through energy, knowledge and wisdom that they have brought to the
Shed, in particular as executives on the Management Committee and Shed activities since the Shed’s
inception.
Congratulations and sincere thanks for your contributions to help make the Shed what it is today.

Partnerships and Sponsors
More than ever we have seen what partnership and sponsorship strength can bring to the Shed’s overall
well-being particularly that associated with its key projects and activities. Having sound principles has also
contributed which were evident, such as, but not limited to:

* Commitment to improve social and cultural outcomes

* Collaboration

*  Mutual trust and respect coupled with openness and transparency

* Recognition of the value that collective contributions can make

¢ Continuity of commitment that make projects and/or activities more sustainable.
Because of the interest and commitment this has once again allowed the Shed to achieve - for this we wish
to acknowledge each and every one and thank all for your contributions that take many different forms and
the difference together you have helped us make.

Advisors

The Shed, in particular this year because of the continued transition to the new Shed as well as projects and
their degree of complexity, we are again indebted to you all for providing more and deeper knowledge in
areas where it has been needed and as such has enabled greater richness to the outcomes being sought.
We look forward to your continued support to help us make a collective difference. Appointments for the
forthcoming year will be on the recommendation of the Management Committee which will be presented
and endorsement sought at today’s meeting.

General Reporting Information

Meetings

The Shed Management and Occupational Safety and Health Committees [established September 2018]
have continued to meet monthly except for January. The Management Committee comprises the Shed’s
executive office bearers and general membership were elected at the annual general meeting. Also, the
Occupational Safety and Health Committee was elected at the annual general meeting.

At Management Committee meetings amongst general governance opportunities to further expand,
develop and/or improve its services in the most efficient and effective way is provided.

The role of the Management Committee has been but not limited to research, advise and consult as
widely as is practicable on any issues and/or make recommendations requiring decision at general,
extraordinary or annual general meetings. Matters dealt with by the Management Committee have been
reported to all members by way of circulated minutes, e-mails and newsletters.

Detail of formal meetings and other activities is as follows:
a Special General Meeting - 1 [Constitutional amendments]
2 Annual General Meeting - 1
aQ Management Committee Meetings - 11
Q Sub-Committee
o Occupational Safety and Health — 9 [Established September 2018]
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Consultations, Briefings etc. - 6

Attendance - General Meetings at organisations, which the Shed has an affiliation - 2
Exhibitions — 3

Project Meetings — 8

Presentations — 4

ooooo

Each time someone stands up for an idea, ox acts to improve the lot of others, ox stuiftes eut against an
injustic, the sen foth tin ipple of ape.

Executive, Committees, Advisors and Shed Facilitation
Help from those with enthusiasm and vision
Management Committee Executive
¢ Chairperson - Peter Hodgson
¢ Deputy Chairperson - Michael Staines
* Secretary - Bevan Dellar
* Treasurer - Geoff Webb
* Project Manager - Greg Reynolds [#]
Management Committee [6]
e Gary Clark Terry Burford Chris Holliday Paul Hogan David Jones Allan Bassula
Non-voting appointments

¢ City of Cockburn — Jill Zumach Rotary Club of Cockburn - Geoff Webb
Occupational Safety and Health Committee

o Chair Peter Hodgson

* Project Manager  Greg Reynolds [#] [Automatic appointment]

e Shed Co-ordinator Michael Murphy [Automatic appointment]

e Adviser Ryan Charles [LHR Marine]

* Management Committee Representative - Gary Clark

* Representatives [3] - Terry Burford, Chris Decke, Brian Ward

Other Nominated Positions

* Patron Logan Howlett JP
* Auditor Mark Hill CPA
Advisors
e legal Glen Giles LLB - Taylor Smart [Solicitors & Notaries)
e Financial/Accounting Trove Advisory Group [Mark Hill]
e Occupational Safety & Health  Ryan Charles [LHR Marine]
* Information Technology Ben D'Silva - Bentec Computing
*  Medical Dr Allan Wright
o Disability Carl Stroman [Former Manager, Disability Services Commission]
* Training Brian Broadbent - SETS [Safety & Emergency Training Services)
*  Building Design Richard Vernon — Vernon Design Group
¢ Public Relations City of Cockburn
Shed Co-ordinator and Chief Warden
* Michael Murphy Marc Dimmick

Shed Facilitation
+ Shed Plan Layouts - Drafting etc Mike Manning

We are most appreciative for the contributions to assist to take the Shed forward during 2018/19 and
further the excellent pathways to follow during this forthcoming year.
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/

@5 Government of Western Australia
af Department of Mines, Industry Regulation and Safety
i L. Consumer Protection

AUDIT REPORT: AUDITOR APPOINTED BY SPECIAL APPROVAL
To: The Office Holders and the Charitable Collections Advisory Committee:

e | am the appeinted auditor of Cockburn Community Men’ Shed Inc for the purposes
of section 15(1) of the Charitable Colfections Act 1946,

« | am not a member of the commitlee of management of the licensed organisation, or
involved in any other way in the management or the preparation of the accounts of
the organisation.

« | have reviewed the gaverning document/s of the licensed organisation and its
accounting records including the cash book (paper or electronic), receipt book, bank
statements, register of assels and delails of debtors and creditors.

« | have reviewed and considered the accounting and reporting requirements of the
Charitable Collections Act 1946 (the Act) and the Charitable Collections Regulations

e 1947 (the Regulations) which are described below.

Responsibilities of Officers and Auditor

The officers of the licensed organisation are responsible for the preparation of accounts in
accordance with the requirements of the Act and the Regulations. It is my responsibility to
undertake an audit of the accounts as required by section 15(7) of the Act and to state
whether particular matters have come to my attention.

Basis of the Audit Statement

My examination of the accounts has been carried out in accordance with the requirements of
section 15(1) of the Act. It includes a review of the accounting recerds kept by the
organisation and a comparison of the accounts presented with those records. It also
includes a consideration of any unusual items or disclosures in the accounts and
explanations have been sought from the licence holder with regard to any such matters. In
reviewing the accounting records | have taken into consideration the control requirements
contained in the Act and the Regulations. ’ )

The procedures undertaken do not provide all of the evidence that would be required in an
audit conducted in accordance with Australian Standards on Assurance Engagements
issued by the Auditing and Assurance Standards Board, and consequently | do not express
an audit opinion with reference to those Standards.

Independent Audit Statement

In the course of my examination, no matter has come to my attention (other than as
disclosed below) which gives me reasonable cause to believe that in any material respect
the licensee has:

1. Failed to comply with the control requirements contained in the Act and the
Regulations and listed at Appendix A;
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= Govemment of Western Australla
h Departrnent of Mines, Industry Regulation and Safety
L Consumer Protection

od fgn-n

2. Failed to keep complete and accurate accounting records sefting out the money and
goods collected or recaived for a charitable purpose and particulars of the manner in
which those monies and goods have been dealt with; or

3. Failed to prepare accounts in accordance with the accounting records.

The matter/s which have come to my attention and are disclosed are: Nil

(if insufficlent room please attach an annexure)

11 AT
Signature: e e ] A = e R
Auditor Name: Mark Hill (CPA 178 7328)
Address: C/- Level 1, 143 Hay Street

Subiaco WA 6008
Date:  .ooeo 1”%(’““2‘3“{

ACCOUNTING AND REPORTING REQUIREMENTS OF THE CHARITABLE
COLLECTIONS ACT 1946 AND THE CHARITABLE COLLECTIONS REGULATIONS 1947

The following financial control requirements apply to all licensed charities:

» Monies received by the licensee must be banked within 7 days of receipt in
accordance with regulation 11(1)

« An asset register must be maintained in accordance with regulation 11(3)

« Every bank account must be operated by two (2) officers of the organisation in
accordance with regulation 11(4)

» Monies received from collectors and fundraisers must be paid to the licence holder
within 14 days of receipt in accordance with regulation 11(2)

e The income and expenditure statemnent must be sufficiently detailed to enable
identification of all charitable collections received and the manner in which the
collections have been dealt with in accordance with secticn 15(1). To satisfy this
obligation fundraising expenses (i.e. salaries, wages, commissions and any
professional fundraising fees) must be disclosad separately in the accounts.

e Investments must be in a fixed deposit in a registered bank or in an authorised trust
investment in accordance with regulation 16 of the Charitable Collections
Amendment Regulations (1998)

Further information and links to the Act and Regulations can be found at
www.commerce.wa.cov.au/charities
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~ Madical - Health & Wellbelrig
Occupational Safety & Hoalth
Information Technology/Sccial Media

Disability

Bullding Design

gocstuen Cwnmu.,’

Morr's Gred W<

2 Sullivan Street
Cockburn Central WA 8184

Operates under Associations Incorporations Act (1887)
which includes Shed specific:
Constitution complimented by Operating Codes,

Policies and Procedures

Strategic and Operating Plans

Shed Co-ordinator
[Contracted Empioyee]

by o

i Manage the Shed's tay to day operations——
Management Committee SN o Shakie chy I 0 Cpwde:
Chair Membership - sopiication nduction ate
Gl Chaly e
Public Relations Secretary
Training Treasurer
Project Manager

Members [min 4 - 6]
Non voting members

Workshops [4] Yard
Facllities/Services  Electrical

< Shed Facilitators [7]

City of Cockburn
Rotary Club of Cockbum

i

%—J Occupational Safety
- & Health
4 Sul;Cg.r'nmm:o:tm ™ . Shed Co-ordinator
First Aiders [8] perate under delegated a ity. c:;grlr;gt;

Other - As and when determined ¥

.Grants and Fundraising 5
.Review of Facilities/Equipment cm::mn

Usage & Layout (201e/20/21) Deputy Wardens

——

Incorporated February 7. 2014 [Reg. No. A10175592)
WNSEION (Purpose]
The Association’s orimery purpose and reason 1or its sxistence (s 10 impcove the
| Teing Of poopio wilh respect 1o, but not limited 1

OBJECTS aro:

mmﬁ m‘b‘gmwmm“m incudirg:
management and pro

(F)the provision of to, ard mmmmaw.

803 9l oFor MON'S $H9CS, POrsons, fm

(iijthe maintarance and promotion aﬂumm-moammw

Wmmnmm;nmbﬂyuu{uun Mu-q-n-nl&rnlh-linxrl

and the anc othars,

(bJto conurel, manage, IMarove and promote, i e grastest sxtent possible, B Lse of e
Associaior's faciiies fcr the benefit of Members and the communty al large:

and
()0 contrel, Manage, IMmprove and promete, 1o e Greatest mxtent possible, the use of 1n
fecilitias and activilies fcr purposes of public benevoience that banefits the ccmmunity at large.
Charitable Collections Licence (21004] Insurance
Expiry Date: January 17, 2021 Policy: Arthur J Gellagher 'sShad ]
Amv'hl Limited Policy

Telephone: Website ReveB
E-mail
0422 920 948 @ Sdoraan ccmshed.org.au Aprit, 2020
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Wn“ﬂm
Merv's sred
Listing of Key Operating Documents Attachment 13

Constitution Including index
Attachments

1 - Definitions and Interpretations

2 — Management Committee

3 - Eleclion of Management Commillee - Office Holders and Ordinary i it C I s

4 - Membership

5 - Listing of Key Operaling Documents

= Stralegic Plan Operaling Plan

* Organisational Chart

Codes
1. Code of Conduct
2. Code for Effeclive Corporate Govemnance - Key Elements
3. Code of Practice for Financial Compliance and Public Fundraising [include Incorporalion Association Matters|
4. Code of Practice for Volunteers
Policies
1. Membership Overview

. 1A Members

+ 1B Junior Members and 12 years and under

- 1C = Non Members Support Persons or Carer Responsibililies Guests by Invitation
. 1 D Honorary Members
Privacy

Complaint Mechanism

Recognition of Aboriginal People as Traditional Custodians of Country 4.1 Tindale Map of WA Aboriginal Tribal Boundaries
Police Clearance

Permission to Take and Use Images - Consent

Copyright

Occupational Safety and Health

Social Media and Website Disclaimers

10. Client Service Policy

Financial Operating Procedures

1. Financial Compliance

WE DN

2. Electronic Funds Transfer

3. Non Cash - eWay Merchant Banking Facilities

4. Internet Merchant Banking Facilities

5. Donations elc - Collection, Receipting & Banking

6. Petty Cash

7. Granl/Funding Applications - Delegation of Autharity
8 Bequest

9. Memorial Gift

104 Annual Financial Statements — Supporting Information Pro-forma
10B. Audit Requirements and Associated Forms

11. Annual Balance Sheel, Income and Expendilure Slatements
12, Annual Audit Opinion [2018/19]

13, Equipment Register including Hand Tools

14, Equipment Disposal Register

15, Chart of Accounlts

16. Budget — Current

17. Square Card Tap and Go Reader Procedure

Operating Procedures and Annual Reporting Documents elc
Mission, Vision & Values

Orientation/induction

Stewardship Principles and Practices

Operational Guidelines for Effective Engag t, C -ation and Cor
Confidentiality Obligations

Duties of Office Bearers including Committee Members
Sub-Committees - Delegation of Authority

Material Personal Interests Disclosure

Comment to Media and/or Significant Others

10. Dnver's Licence — Currency and Validation Records

11. Consent to Use Images

12. Disciplinary Action, Dispules and Medialion

13. Association's [CCMS] Identifiers

14, E-mail and Website Disclaimers

15. Logos - Use of the Association's & Significant Others

16, General Equipment Loan Agreement

17, Project Business Planning [Example]

18. Project Risk Analysis [Example]

[ R
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19. Risk Management Assessments — Activities/Projects
20. Strategic Plan
21, Operating Plan
22. Annual Report including Financials
23. Annual Audits
24. Conduct/Obligations of Volunteers
25. Contractors, Employers/Employees Duty of Care
26. Members General Duty of Care
27. Job/Project Description/Detail - Enguiry and Costing etc
28. Assels Register, Classifications and Numbering System
. Occupalional Safety and Health Operaling Procedures
= Nolice to Members and Significant Others
+ (OS&H Committee Composition, Role and Responsibilities
Risk Assessment [ISO 31000] —-Example Checklist
ThinkSafe Principles
Job Safety Analysis [JSA] - Principles
0S& Guidelines - Take 5 [Detailed Analysis Examples]
Shed Inspection Register
Individual Risk Assessment Report
Manual Handling - Potential Hazards
Hazard Management and Record of Exposure lo Hazardous Substances
Emergency Evacuation Procedures
10. Motor Vehicles
11. Communication with Isolated Members/Volunleers
12. Reporting and Investigalion of Accidents/Incidents
13, IncidentfAccidentiHazard Exposure Register including First Aid Treatment
14. Event Emergency Action Planning
15, Injury Management
16. OS&H Training Guide
17. OS&H - Induction Checklist - Example
18. OS&H Review Meeting Agenda/Minutes — p
19. Emergency Assist
20. Take 5 - Role and Accountability
21, Take 5 - Poster
22, Hazardous Substances - MSDS Register
23. Tesling, Tagging of Portable Electrical Equipment and RCD's
24, Isolation of Plant - Lockoul and Tag
25. First Aid
26, Shed Co-Ordinator - OH&S Role and Responsibilities
27. Personal Protective Equipment [PPE]
28. Machine Slandard Operaling Procedures
29. Members with Medial Conditions
30. Duress Emergency System
31. Duress & Emergency System
32, Evacualion Procedures
33. Duress and Emergency Post Checklists
+  Agreements and Memorandum of Understanding
1 Grant Request for Community Parinership Funding - Example
2 Guide to Grant Submission Preparation & Writing Process.
3. Joint Venture Agreement - Example & Notes
40

W~ 0N =

of Under ing - Example
Forms [Significant Documents]
Forms Index [ ship = Ordinary Memb
1.1 Orientation/induction Checklist
1,1A  Junior Membership Application
1.18  Affiliate Membership Application
1.1C Corporate/Organisation Membership Application
1.1D Honorary Membership Application
1.2 Non Members
1.2.1 Support Person, Organisational and Insurance Detail 1.2A Support Person Delail
1.2B Carer Detail 1.2C Guest Detail
1.Membership Regisler by Class
1.1 Life Membership — Procedure and Criteria for awarding
2 Office and Cc I Register including Tenure of Office
3 Material Personal Interest Disclosure
4 Permission to Take and Use Images
5 Police Clearance
6 Driver's Licence Currency Validation
7.Take 5 Pro-forma
8 Risk Management Assessment -New/Changes for Projects/Activities etc.
9.IncidentfAccident/Hazard Register
10. Incident/Accident/Hazard Invesligalion/Reporting Form
11. Assels including Equipment Register
12. Equipment Loan Register
12.1 Tools Loan Register
13. Egquipment Loan Agreement
14. Equipment Loan Relurn Inspeclion Report
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15. Petty Cash Purchases Recoup Joumnal
16. Donation/Collections Form
17. Memorial Gift
18. Key Operating Documents - Review/Change Approval Dale/s
19. Grant Request for Community Partnership Funding
20. Granl - Project Feasibility Costing Pro-forma
21. Inventory Manufactured & Donated Products
22. Inventory Manufactured & Donated Producls [For Sale]
23. Delegation of Authority
24. Police Clearance Application
25, Conducl/Obligations of Volunteers
26. Evacuation, Fire Drills Record
27. Members Emergency Assist Information
28. Training Register
29. OS&H 5 - Shed Inspection Register
30. Equipment-Machine-Electrical Maintenance Register
31. Machine Usage Induction Training Register
32. Projects-Jobs-Tasks elc Register
33 Daily Sign In and Out Altendance Register
34. Venue Hire - Conditions and Charges
35. Approved Auditor — Qualifications
36. Audit Report Form
37. Chantable Colleclions — Office Bearers Slatement
38. Budget Pro-forma
39. Charitable Collections Licence Principal Executive Officer's Statement
40. Requeslt for Payment - Cheque or Direct Debit
41, A Request for Quote B Invoice C  Receipt Pro-forma
42, Aclivity/Project Descriplion/Detail
42,1 Activity/Project — Summary of Listings
43 First Aid Supplies List and Check List
44, Safety Equipment Locations Register
45. Members Personal Project and Costing Sheet
» Cerlificates, Regisirations, Licences, Legislation [Acls] elc
Incorporation/ Change of Name Certificate
ABN and GST Registration
Public Benevolent Institution [PBI] and Designated Gift Recipient [DGR] Status
Registered Charity Certificate
Charitable Collections Licence
Insurance — Public, Officers’ Liability ete. — Certificate of Currency [Gallaghers]
Associations Incorporation Act [2015]
Charitable Collections Act [1946] and Regulations [1947]
Awstralian Charities and Not-for-profit Commission Act [2012]
»  Position Descriptions
1. Shed Co-ordinator including OSH Role & Responsibilities
2. Project Manager
3. Workshop Facllitators
4. OH&S Committee & Role and Responsibilities
«  Minutes of Meetings
1. Annual General Meelings
2. General Meetings
3. Management Commiltee Meetings
4. Occupational Safety and Health Committee Meetings
. Hire of Venue and Facilities
1. Hire Conditions and Agreement
2. Hire of Venue Conditions - Form 35
*  Registers
1. Allendance - Sign In/Out
2. Members Emergency Assist Information
3 Incident/Accident/Exposure to Hazardous Substance/Mear Misses and Firsl Aid Treatments
4. Training
5. Toolbox Meetings
6. Job/Projects Enquiry & Required Action Detail etc
7
8
Sl
1
2
3

[

CoO~NO o RN

Assels Register — Shed

Assels Register — Personal Equipment @ the Shed
hed Lease, Plans and Layout

Shed Plan & Layout

Key Designated Location Points of Crilical Elements.

Lease Agreement — Cockburn City Council
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Men's shed Ine:

Letters of Support

Michael Manning

Kerry Hallett

Dept. of Justice — Community and Youth Justice
Josh Wilson MP — Member for Fremantle

Hon. Fran Logan MLA - Member for Cockburn

vhwNe

Cockburn Community Men's Shed Inc. Shed Co-ordination Funding Request - July 2020 Page 10f 1

l | 57 of 227

71 of 532

Document Set ID: 9674303
Version: 3, Version Date: 17/09/2020




Item 13.1 Attachment 1

OCM 13/08/2020

Item 9.1 Attachment 1

GAD 21/07/2020

WHAT DOES THE MEN’S SHED MOVEMENT MEAN TO ME?

To whom it may concern

After spending 55 years working in the general building industry. I retired at the age
of 70 some eight years ago and since that time have been actively involved in the
Men'’s Shed movement. The last 16 years of my working life were spent as building
maintenance and design consultant both for the State Government and Private
Industry. When I retired my darling wife advised me that I was not going to sit in my
recliner rocker and sleep my life away. The following week I joined the Fremantle
Men’s Shed and although I made a few friends that I can still sit and chat with I found
the shed very cold and not my cup of tea, at this time I heard through the grape vine
that the City of Cockburn were conducting a feasibility study in relation to opening
their own Men'’s Shed so I became mmvolved by attending meetings and taking part in
all activities relating to the City of Cockburn’s Community Men’s Shed.

On March 9™, 2013 we were granted access to the old fire station in Wattleup, this
building was 15 metres by 15metres and was as we thought at the time was huge. At
this time, we had about 15 fit and healthy members and we all brought in tools from
our home workshops and within a few weeks we found our huge space was far too
small. At this time [ had the ability to do computer generated drawimgs so I put a 15m
by 30 m box on a sheet of paper and put it on the notice board in the lunch area with a
note saying this is your new shed what do you want in it and it was at this point that I
new the Men’s Shed movement would provide me with what I was missing in my life
contact with other men of the same age group and with the same interest as myself.
Over the next 18 months my health started to fall away and I was diagnosed with
Chronic Obstructive Pulmonary Disease (COPD) which started to limit the amount of
effort I could put in to the physical side of the Men’s Shed. over the next year I went
from walking unaided to walking with a four wheeled walker.

In late 2013 I was in England to say my last farewell to my sister when reading a
national newspaper I saw an advert for the first National Men In Sheds Conference to
be held in London so I contacted the Organisation and obtained an invitation. On
attending the conference, I was amazed to find out that these sheds received no
funding. At each of the sheds I visited I found out that the first thing they had to do
was find a cheap shop to rent and kept themselves afloat by repairing electrical items
that had been discarded and selling them through the shop. The chairman of the
Aylesbury Shed stated to me that after five years of working this system their bank
balance was about $35.00 but unlike a lot of Shed’s they did not have any debts.

Due to the increase in membership at our Shed from 15 to 33 active members I was
getting more frustrated with the lack of space within the shed building 1 was
constantly moving equipment around so that I could get access to where I wanted to
get and work. Although I was very frustrated at times I could always sit and talk to
other members and understand their problems as they would understand mine. At this
time we were in deep consultation with the City of Cockburn in planning a new shed
and we were being asked what we wanted the Shed to look like so the pipe dream that
was on the wall in the lunch room started to take shape. We knew that we wanted a
metal work area, a woodwork area that was for hand tools and a woodwork area for
power tools we also thought that a dust free room would be good for painting finished
projects. At the same time, [ became mnterested in what was happening in other Sheds
1 found myself contacting other Shed and visiting them to gain information in what
they felt was good and bad in their Shed. In 2014 [ attended the West Australian
Men'’s Shed state conference for the first time and started to take interest in the
political side of the movement Over the next 18 months I attended many Board
meetings of the West Australian Men’s Shed Association. This gave me further
information as to how our Shed could and should evolve. In 2016 I attended the
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wood working show and won the door prise a jarrah work bench which I held in
storage until our new shed was opened and then donated it to the Cockburn
Community Men’s Shed.

In the latter half of 2016 I had two ulcers on my on my left leg both were caused by
minor injuries while working at the Men’s Shed which landed me in hospital on
Christmas day with blood poisoning, at this time I was very run down and not looking
after myself and I felt that I could no longer do justice to the position I held within the
Cockburn Community Men’s Shed so I informed the committee that [ would have to
stand down as Chairman of the Shed. On returning home in mid January 2017 I was
not allowed to attend the shed until my ulcers had fully healed which was Easter so
the next week I was back helping out as usual looking after the maintenance of the
well worn machines chatting to member and enjoying myself.

When work started on clearing the site for the new shed I was having a conversation
with my son and he advised me that at his work which is a saw doctors they had a
1700mm diameter saw blade that was going to the tip so I said do not throw it away as
I have a use for it. The next day I spoke with the Contractor at the Shed site and
asked him if he could hold one of the tree stumps for the shed to use at a later date and
T was advised that this would be done. So now we have a saw blade mounted in a tree
stump on the corner of our site advising that this is the Cockburn Men’s Shed.

Over time I have become more and more reliant on my walking frame and oxygen
some days are good and some days are not so good. My walking speed has gone from
2klm in twenty minutes in 2014 to 350m in the same time today. This year has been
very hard for me being confined to the house due to the Coronavirus but I have had
friends in the Shed that have phoned me and I have also phoned them and now we are
back at the Shed and fully enjoying each others company. I am very proud of the
building we have today and knowing in some small way I did help to get us where we
are Having said that I am extremely proud of the Shed members and their
commitment to each other because the building is not the Shed, the Shed are the
members and how we connect with each other.

My life now in 2020 is a lot slower and a lot more relaxed and I know that I do not
have to attend the Shed every day it 1s open. I know that when I get there, there will
be members willing to help me and make sure [ am safe. The current membership of
the shed is close to 100 men that in the main get on with each other or walk away
from possible confrontation.

So why am [ still upbeat about the future. I have a fantastic wife, a wonderful family
and a Men’s Shed that is willing and able to listen to the member problem and give
advice that may well mean the difference between that member turning up next week
or some of the members of our shed going to his funeral.

I strongly believe that without the Men’s Shed movement in my life I would not be

weighting this letter. Men’s Shed work because of the commitment made by each
member to help all the other members if or when they need help.

Yours in Shedding

Michael J Manning
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Kerry Hallett
7A Bzngalow Place
South Lake 6164

This is my letter of suppert for the Cockburn Men’s Shed.

| have been attending the shed for some time, initially as part of the voluntary work for the dole
scheme. However, | soon became a ‘shedder’ and the additional benefits that | have received from
the shed members, the committee and the shed coordinator are significant.

| was in a dark place mentally and financially when | started at the shed, and the camaraderie of the
shed members and the assistance | received from most notably the coordinator helped me through
that difficult time. | was made to feel welcome and part of the shed from the first time | attended
and | now have an increased sense of worth because | saw that my contributions to the shed were
not only appreciated but were also helpful to other members of the community.

| would like to especially thank the coordinator and the committee of the shed, wha have all assisted
me in my endezvours to find full or part time work and have supported me through my time at the
shed.

| have no doubt that the set up of the Cockburn Men’s Shed, with a single paint of contact for all
matters relating to the day te day running of the shed, has enhanced the members’ experience, as it
certainly has for me. | fully support this shed, its coordinator and the committee and | would wish to
see the shed continue for many years.to come.

.
A/ 4

(. '-..%'ﬁi—-d’ .‘f/
Ny ’ Pl

Kerry Hallett [/ % 77/

L /;

27 June 2020 v,
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W Department of Justice
~ Community and Youth Justice

el i
Efé% Government of Western Australia
1 i

To whom it may concern,

| am happy to provide a letter in support of the ongoing funding of the Co-Ordinator
role at the Cockburn Men's Shed.

Fremantle Adult Community Corrections have been working in partnership with the
Cockburn Men’s Shed since September 2019. This partnership facilitates offenders,
under the supervision of a Departmental officer, being able to complete community
work hours ordered by the Court and by Fines Enforcement Registry in the place of
payment of fines in conjunction with providing the Men’'s shed with assistance to
undertake various tasks.

Liaison with Mike Murphy in the role of Men’s Shed Co-Ordinator has been integral to
ensuring this partnership runs smoothly, noting that having one central point of contact
to ascertain what work the Men's Shed requires to be undertaken by our offenders
and what days are suitable for our workers to attend ensures that this arrangements
continues to meets the needs of both the Men's Shed and the Department.

Please feel free to contact me if you require any further information,

Kind Regards
e , 'I \

kY

N

Laura Fisher

South West Coastal Community Corrections Centre
Fremantle Justice Complex

8 Holdsworth Street FREMANTLE 6160

PO Box 665 Fremantle WA 6959

Telephone (08) 9335 2084 Facsimile (08) 9335 9466
www, justice.wa.gov.au

ABN 25 103 389 163

XDCSLO04
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Josh Wilson MP

FEDERAL LABOR MEMBER FOR FREMAN

Karoline Jamieson

Manager Community Development
City of Cockburn

PO Box 1215

BIBRA LAKE DC WA 6965

June 2020
Dear Karoline,

Cockburn Community Men’s Shed - Coordii I fundi

| write in support of the city’s ongoing triennial funding of the Cockburn Community Men’s
Shed (CCMS) Coordinator position, as | understand the existing contract expires in September.

Throughout my time as the member for Fremantle | have seen the CCMS more than triple in
membership and move from its previous Wattleup base to the current Cockburn Central site.
The CCMS central aim to broaden its outreach to make the facility and programs accessible to
a wider range of people has been central to many of the projects that have been supported by
federal grants administered by my office.

It’s apparent that the CCMS Coordinator serves a critical role in ensuring efficient and effective
operation of the CCMS, and it seems clear to be a position whose task load will only grow with
the focus on continuous improvement to ensure the facilities, equip tools and progr
meet the community’s needs.

The City of Cockburn is to be ded for its support of the CCMS to date, and | thank you
for idering ing funding of this valuabl ity asset.
Yours sincerely,

Josh Wilson MP
Federal Member for Fremantle

CC: Bevan Dellar, CCMS secretary
Electorate Office 62 Wray Ave Fremantie WA 6160 « Mail PO Box 1224 Fremantle WA 6959

Phone 08 9335 8555 + Email joshwilsonmp@aph.gov.au
WWW. org.au + K1 josh
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Francis Logan

Member of the Legislative Assembly — District of Cockburn
Unit 5/816 Beeliar Drive, SUCCESS WA 6164

PO Box 3483, SUCCESS WA 6964

Telephone: 08 9414 3266 Facsimile: 08 9414 3239

City of Cockburn

Community Development

PO Box 1215

BIBRALAKE DC WA 6965

To Whom It May Concern 18/06/2020

FUNDING FOR COCKBURN MEN’S SHED CO-ORDINATOR

I write in support of the application made by Cockburn Men’s Shed for funding to
extend the working hours of the community co-ordinator of the Men's Shed.

The Cockburn Men's Shed has been operating since 2018 and provides a safe
environment where men can be productive and valued. The Men’s Shed allows them
to contribute to the community as well as providing socialisation and the ability to
develop friendships with like-minded people.

Men’s Health has become a key issue over the last decade and this type of facility
provides a connection and a means for Men to communicate in a controlled and safe
environment.

The Men’s Shed is a great asset to the City of Cockburn and I strongly endorse the
application.

Yours Sincerely

Hon Francis Logan MLA
MEMBER FOR COCKBURN

|—| 63 of 227

Document Set ID: 9674303 " Of °32
Version: 3, Version Date: 17/09/2020




ltem 13.1 Attachment 1 OCM 13/08/2020

GAD 21/07/2020 Item 9.2

9.2 (2020/MINUTE NO 0006) MELVILLE COCKBURN CHAMBER OF
COMMERCE FUNDING SUBMISSION AND KEY PERFORMANCE
INDICATORS

Author(s) S Seymour-Eyles

Attachments 1. Melville Cockburn Chamber of Commerce
Funding Proposal 1L

RECOMMENDATION

That Council approves the development of a Memorandum of
Understanding (MOU) with the Melville Cockburn Chamber of
Commerce (MCCC), which formalises sponsorship funding of $20,000
(ex. GST) per annum for the next two years (2020/21 and 2021/22),
subject to the MCCC providing annual reports and meeting agreed
obligations and Key Performance Indicators.

COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION
MOVED Cr P Eva SECONDED Cr P Corke

That the recommendation be adopted.

CARRIED 4/0

Background

The Melville Cockburn Chamber of Commerce (MCCC) is an
incorporated, not-for-profit organisation that seeks to promote the
interests of businesses in the City of Cockburn and the City of Melville.

The focus and vision of the MCCC is to be the “peak body and go-to
organisation for local business”. They support members by providing an
information service, arranging networking events, conducting
workshops, and providing education and training. The MCCC provides
a platform to assist local businesses to engage with the City of
Cockburn, a resource and vehicle for local businesses to build
relationships that will be mutually beneficial, and encourages and
fosters business growth and development.

The City has provided funding and other support to the MCCC for many
years to assist with the cost of delivering information and networking
events to the City of Cockburn’s business community. Previous funding
includes:

October 2006 $20,000
October 2007 $20,000
September 2008  $20,000
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September 2009  $20,000

August 2010 $10,000 (interim funding)

March 2011 $20,000

March 2012 $20,000

March 2013 $20,000

March 2014 $20,000

March 2015 $20,000 (plus rent)

March 2016 $20,000

March 2017 $20,000 (included rent at Cockburn Health &
Community)

March 2018 $20,000

March 2019 $15,000 (plus rent at Cockburn Health &
Community)

In addition to the financial contribution requested through this agenda
item, the City proposes (subject to a separate Council Decision)
providing the MCCC with a new, larger office space at 2/25 Wentworth
Avenue, Success and a peppercorn lease for two years, which will
provide them with a venue to hold events, and an opportunity to reduce
some of their event expenditure. This is equivalent to an additional
$27,000 ex GST in addition to the $20,000 ex GST recommended in
this agenda item.

In March 2020, the MCCC submitted a sponsorship application through
the City’s regular Sponsorship funding round as well as a separate
funding proposal delivered to the Acting Chief Executive Officer.

As to the Grants and Donations Committee Meeting on 21 April 2020
and endorsed at the Ordinary Council Meeting 14 May 2020, the
following was accepted as part of the minutes:

Following direction from the Acting CEQO, the Sponsorship application
won't be considered through the Grants and Donations process and
budget, now and in future, instead the funding proposal is to be
considered by Council as a separate budget item with a suitable
agreement to be put in place once the previous year’s sponsorship
acquittal is accepted. The Business Engagement Officer is currently
investigating the funding arrangement and agreement in place with
the City of Melville.

The funding proposal has since been reviewed by Executive and
deemed to fit within the Major Funding Category G of Policy
‘Community Funding for Community Organisations and Individuals
(Grants, Donations and Sponsorships)’ for consideration through the
Grants and Donations process.

Submission

The funding submission is attached to the report.
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Report

Over the years the MCCC has supported private sector growth in the
City of Cockburn and the City of Melville through the engagement,
support, development and networking activities for businesses in the
area. The ongoing growth and viability of the MCCC is dependent on
the support of its members, sponsors and, in particular, the two local
government authorities that it serves. The MCCC has presented the
City with a proposal of how they could expand their services to the
business community, and have requested additional support from the
City to realise these activities.

The MCCC currently has 154 business members, of whom 65 are from
the City of Cockburn and 11 sponsors, of which 6 are from Cockburn.

The demands and business environment has changed considerably
since the formation of the MCCC and this environment continues to
evolve with the ongoing changes of the Australian, West Australian and
the local economy. The MCCC needs to evolve with these changing
demands. In order to evolve and meet these changing demands, the
MCCC seeks to engage with local businesses in research on identifying
local needs, deliver a range of programs based on this and alignment
with their identified Strategic Priorities, into which the City will also
provide input.

As such, the MCCC has proposed a partnership arrangement with the
City of Cockburn similar to the arrangement it has with the City of
Melville. This multi-year funding would provide certainty for the MCCC
in budgets and planning, and allow them to develop the events and
services that the local SMEs need whilst meeting the intent of the
sponsorship program with the City.

The proposal from the MCCC seeks funding of $35,000 per annum over
two years (2020/21 and 2021/22), which will allow the MCCC to
increase capacity and implement the following new programs/initiatives:

o Development of a Business Development Group, consisting of five
small / medium sized owner/operators who meet twice a year to
develop key strategies for the support of the businesses in the City.

¢ Professional development program tailored to the needs of the
businesses in the City, covering 12 topics from the skills gap
analysis.

o Three industry forums for selected industries, per year. These
forums will focus on industry-specific issues as opposed to generic
SME knowledge. They are designed to support the key industry
areas in the relevant area.

e To provide a new membership category with a reduced first year
membership fee ($150) for companies who have held an ABN for
less than two years.
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¢ To conduct an ongoing bi-annual survey of businesses to identify
key needs in the Cockburn region.

In addition to the financial contribution, the City proposes (subject to a
separate Council Report) providing the MCCC with a new, larger office
space at 2/25 Wentworth Avenue, Success and a peppercorn lease for
two years, which will provide them with a venue to hold events and an
opportunity to reduce some of their event expenditure.

By supporting the MCCC, the City will continue to receive the following
sponsorship benefits:

o Continued promotion of the City of Cockburn through their website,
publications, promotional materials, welcome packs, online and
acknowledgement at events

e Opportunity for Mayor, Councillors and City of Cockburn staff to
attend and participate as keynote speakers

o Four complimentary tickets to all events for staff, Councillors and
guests

e Opportunities to distribute publications and promotional materials at
all events

o [nclusion of City of Cockburn profile in MCCC Membership Pack

e Sponsorship benefits in line with the funding proposal benefits
checkilist.

Key Performance Indicators

In line with recommendations from the City’s Business Engagement
Officer, the funding agreement would be subject to satisfactory annual
reports on the following Key Performance Indicators:

1. Formation of an Business Development Group
The MCCC will develop a development group within the first six
months. They will develop a terms of reference for this group with
which the City is willing to assist if required. The group will have up
to two City of Cockburn staff members.

2. Events and Activities: Commitment to deliver no fewer than 18
events per year, half of which are to be held in the City of Cockburn,
which could include a selection of the following:

a. Two Development Group meetings (required) and a mix,
according to need, of:

b. Twelve professional development workshops

c. Three industry forums

d. Eight Business After - Hours events.

3. Memberships: Provision of a new membership category with a
reduced first year membership fee ($150) for companies who have
held an ABN for less than two years.
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4. Identification of local needs: Conducting a bi-annual survey of
businesses to identify key needs including skills gap analysis — to
complement and not duplicate the City’s own surveys. The City
requests to partnership on this survey.

5. Continuous Improvement: Demonstrated improvement in the
following questions as per the Business Scorecard Survey:
a. Awareness of MCCC
b. Performance Index Score
and
c. Report on membership numbers each year showing monthly
statistics of new memberships and retained members

6. Governance: Submission of annual reporting including:
a. Awudited financial statements (as per Council requirements)
b. Report on the relevant achievements (addressing KPIs and
outlining events and activities)
c. Future action plan and event schedule.

Recommendation

As the MCCC receives $25,000 (ex. GST) per annum through its MOU
with the City of Melville, it is recommended that the City of Cockburn
provides $20,000 (ex. GST) sponsorship funding per annum, in addition
to the peppercorn lease, valued at $27,500 per annum, plus GST,
which is proposed to be provided in-kind, which will take the City of
Cockburn’s contribution to the MCCC to $47,500 (ex. GST) per annum.

Strategic Plans/Policy Implications

Local Economy

A sustainable and diverse local economy that attracts increased
investment and provides local employment.

Plan for and facilitate opportunities for local business (including home
business and sole traders)l, local activity centres and industry to thrive.

Build local business capacity through partnerships, networks and skill
development.

Budget/Financial Implications

This report recommends that a financial contribution of $20,000 (ex.
GST) per annum, for 2020/21 and 2021/22, be recorded against the
Grants and Donations Budget.

68 of 227

82 of 532

Document Set ID: 9674303

Version: 3, Version Date: 17/09/2(




OCM 13/08/2020 ltem 13.1 Attachment 1

Item 9.2 GAD 21/07/2020

A separate report regarding the lease will be provided to Council which
will recommend rent being provided in-kind, valued at $27,500 per
annum, plus GST.

Legal Implications

N/A

Community Consultation

N/A

Risk Management Implications

Grants and Research Officers and the Manager Community
Development have identified issues with previous reporting and
acquittal of MCCC sponsorship funding and the quantity and quality of
information provided. These issues have been addressed by the
establishment of clear Key Performance Indicators, which will be
managed closely by the Business Engagement Officer.

Should these KPIs not be met in a satisfactory manner, a further
extension of the MOU will not be considered.

Reports addressing the KPIs will be required annually, together with
audited financial reports.

Advice to Proponent(s)/Submitters

The MCCC has been advised that their submission is to be considered
at the 21 July 2020 Grants & Donations Committee Meeting and then
an outcome will be advised following the 13 August 2020 Council
Meeting.

Implications of Section 3.18(3) Local Government Act, 1995

Nil
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WK

Ms S Kahle

Business Engagement Officer

c/o Grants and Research Business Unit
City of Cackburn

PO Box 1215

BIBRA LAKE DC 6965

13" July 2020

Dear Ms Kahle
Funding Proposal for Melville Cockburn Chamber of Commerce (MCCC)

The Melville Cockburn Chamber of Commerce is seeking funding of $35,000 over a
period of 12 months for 24 months from 2020/21 — 2021/2022) in line with the
Sponsorship objectives of the Cockburn Community Fund.

The MCCC is an incorporated not-for-profit organisation that seeks to promote the
interests of business of the Melville and Cockburn districts. Over the years the
MCCC has supported SME growth in the City of Melville (CoM) and the City of
Cockburn (CoC) through the engagement, support, development and networking
activities for SMEs in the area. Our current membership is 154 of which 85
members are from the City of Cockburn. Our current sponsors is 11 total of which 6
are from the City of Cockburn. The ongoing growth and viability of the MCCC is
dependent on the support of our members, sponsors and in particular that of the two
local government authorities (LGA’s) that it serves.

MCCC have previously received Sponsorship through the City of Cockbum, however
due to limit of funding cap under the Grant systems and not relevant respect to
services the chamber supplies. The MCCC proposes a partnership arrangement
with the City of Cockbumn like the arrangement it has with the City of Melville. This
would provide certainty in budgets and planning, which would allow the MCCC tfo
develop the services that the local SMEs need, whilst still meeting the intent of the
Sponsorship program with CoC. sponsorship benefits list attached.

MCCC is requesting in the relevant category of sponsorship annual funding of
$35,000 per year over the next 2 years for primarily for support and development of
small business within our catchment. Including branding and promotion of services
and activities to SME's within Cockburn. The following bullet points identify the main
benefits to City of Cockburn application.
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Chamber of Commerce Development Group
Survey Offering

New SME Membership Incentive

SME Development Program

Industry Forums

(see proposal for further clarification (attached)

In line with recommendations from the City’'s Business Engagement Officer, the
funding proposal would be annually reported on the following Key Performance
Indicators:

1. Events and Activities: Commitment to deliver no fewer than 18 events per
year, half of which are to be held in the City of Cockbum, which could include
a selection of the following:
a. Two SME Development Group meetings
b. Twelve professional development workshops
c. Three industry forums
d. Eight Business After Hours events
2. Memberships: Provision of a new membership category with a reduced first
year membership fee ($150) for companies who have held an ABN for less
than 2 years
3. Identification of local needs: Conducting a Bi-annual survey of businesses
to identify key needs
4. Continuous Improvement: Demonstrated improvement in the following
questions as per the Markyt Business Scorecard Survey:
a. Awareness of MCCC
b. Performance Index Score
5. Governance: Submission of annual reporting including:
a. Audited financial statements (As per Council requirements)
b. Report on the relevant achievements (Addressing KPI's & outlining
events and activities)
¢. Future action plan and event schedule

Thank you for consideration of this funding proposal, we look forward to continuing

the partnership with the City of Cockburn and providing services to the SME's within
the catchment.

Yours sincerely

il ol e
AN QNI

Monigue Williams
Executive Officer
Melville Cockburn Chamber of Commerce
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Melville and Cockburn Chamber of Commerce

HISTORY AND VALUES

FUNDING PROPOSAL FOR THE MCCC

THE ONGOING FOCUS OF THE MCCC

THE SME ENVIRONMENT

BUSINESS IN THE CITY OF COCKBURN

ABOUT THE MCCC

CONTACTS

Report Number 201%-017
Author - Gary Hitch
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The Melville and Cockburn Chamber of Commerce (MCCC) iz a
ves for excellence in the provision of

preactive orga

ith the business

services to our co and in our engagement
community of the Melville and Cockburn district.

The MCCC is an incorporated not-for-profit organisation that seeks
to promote the interests of business of the Melville and Cockburn
districts
Established in 1984 the then Melville Chamber of Commerce merged
the City of Cockburn under its auspice in 1987 and became an
incorporated body the same year. However, it wasn't until November

2007 that it took the name Melville Cockburn Chamber of Commerce.

Over the years the MCCC has supported SF
of Melville (CoM) and the City of Cockburn (CoC) through the

growth in the City

engagement, support, development and networking activities for SMEs
in the area.
The ongoing growth and viability of the MCCC is dependent on the

support of our members, sponsors and in particular that of the two

local government authorities (LGA's) Serves.

Funding proposal 3
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PROPOSAL FOR THE CHANGE
OF FUNDING FOR THE MCCC

The demands and business environment for SMEs has changed considerably since the
formation of the MCCC and this environment continues to evolve with the ongoing
changes of the Australian, West Australian and the local LGA economy. The MCCC needs
to evolve with these changing demands.

Inorderto achieve its objectives the MCCC seeks to provide the City of Cockburn (CoC) and
its SMEs with further support as outlined in this document. This will ensure the chamber
provides the most appropriate services to the CoC as its ongoing SME development
partner, whilst maintaining the correct support to strengthen the CoC SME community
and ensuring that they improve their viability and growth. Which, in turn will stengthen
the local economy and create further job opportunities.

The current funding mechanism for the MCCC from the CoC is through the grants and
donations annual allocations. The MCCC feels that this funding route is more aligned to
community structures. The maximum value and the uncertainty of these grants currently
limit the services that the MCCC considers important for the growth and voice of the SME
companies in the area.

THE MCCC proposes a partnership arrangement with the CoC similar to the arrangement
it has with the CoM. This would provide certainty in budgets and planning, which would
allow the MCCC to develop the services that the local SMEs need.

In return, the CoC would see is a stronger growth of established SMEs, which would
in turn lead to an increase in the likelihood of these businesses employing full time
employees (FTEs) in the CoC.

4 Funding proposal
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| THE ONGOING FOCUS OF THE MCCC \

BUILDING A
To assist the LGAs in the development of a suitable SME growth policy in the city,
S T R 0 N G E R B O D Y the MCCC proposes the establishment of a chamber of commerce development
group, which will meet with the cty to review the needs and problems of the
AND SUPPORTING

SME community.

THE CITY IN ITS SME

This will be supported by establishing an annual survey to monitor the concerns

D E V E LO P M E N T and needs of the local SME industries in the LGA.

BUILDING

STRONGER To support the growth of established SME companies through the provision
of affordable business knowledse specific to the needs of the local SME

G R 0 WT H F 0 R T H E community. Supported by more accessible and diverse networking activities
aimed at connecting business owners.

ESTABLISHED SME =

COMMUNITY

SUPPORTING START

UP SME ENTITIES

C) provides cons

o develop its rela
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01

Chamber of commerce
SME development
group

The chamber propose to initiste a
working group comprising of five SME
owners operating in the CoC representing
a diverse industry and SME background
This group, along with the MCCC will then
meet twice per annum with the city to
develop and liaise with the stakeholders
to develop key strategy for the support
of the SME businesses in the dty. In
providing this service the chamber will
be able to provide a better service as a
conduit for SME businesses in the city.

Proposed responsibilities.

It iz proposed that the chamber of
commerce and the CoC pool its SME data
and the CoC will assist the MCCC in the
analysis of the information in preparation
for the bi-annual meeting.

02

Survey offering.

To support the development group it is
proposed to establish an ongoing annual
survey specific to Cockbumn to identify
key needs of SMEs inthe Cockburn
region. The aim would be to achieve a
response rate of 500 SMEs to represent
the Cockburn SME demographic.

The survey will provide responses the top
S requirements of the local businesses,
with responses broken down into industry
categories and the number of employees.

The survey findings will be presented at
ore of the Chamber of Commerce - CoC
SME development group meetings.

Proposed responsibilities.

Distribution - City and chamber
Data collation - Chamber of commerce
Data analysic = Chamber of commerce

03

New SME membership
incentive

In order to promote the benefits of
networking to the local SME industries
and to reduce the funding constraints
that they may have, the MCCC propose
to provide a new membership category
with a reduced first year membership
fee ($150) for companies with an ABN
for less than 2 years. This sponsorship
arrangement will be capped at 50 per
participating council.

é Funding proposal
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04

SME development
program

To mitigate the issues associated with
the depth and complexity of knowledge
that SME owners and their staff face,
the chamber of commerce proposes to
run a specific PD development program
tailored to the needs of the SMEs in the
city, covering 12 topics from the Skills gap
analysis. Each workshop will encompass a
three-hour talk, with the focus on detailed
applicable information to reduce the
risk factors that the SMEs are currently
exposed to. These PDs are designed to
cater for established rather than start up
SME's as there is currently a gap in the
support services available to this sector.

Proposed responsibilities.

The city is to provide facilities to host
the event; the chamber will develop the
program and source relevant experts in
the nominated development areas

Both Parties to market event through
their respective networks

05

Industry Forums

To further improve the knowledge
development and support for SMEs.
The MCCC propose to run 3 forums
for selected industries. These forums
will focus on industry specific issues as
opposed to generic SME knowledge. They
are designed to support the key industry
areas inthe relevant LGA.

The 3 industry specific industry sectors
are

+ Tradesmen - construction
* Manufacturing

* Exporting

Proposed responsibilities.

The city is to provide facilities to host
the event; the Chamber will develop the
program and source relevant experts in
the nominated develepment areas.

Both parties to market the event through
their respective networks

Funding proposal 7
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THE SME ENVIRONMENT

O SUMMARY OF THE CURRENT RESEARCH
BEHIND SME GROWTH AND THE IMPORTANCE
OF LGA SUPPORT

Recent research identifies that SMEs are subject to a high failure rate, ranging from 40-60%. Refer to
section 02 for further details on the calculation of this number. The causes of these failures are further
outlired in section 03. The main failure factors that can be influenced by LGAs through supporting local
business bodies (aside from enabling access to LGA contracts] are those that mitigate the limited SME
owner knowledge levels and the knowledge levels of their personnel. This can be facilitated by the provision
of training, networking, advice and through promoting collaboration.

This approach also benefits the small businesses by providing the right ervironment to improve the
understanding, knowledge and impeortance of innovation in SMEs, which is, in itself, an important factor to
their success.

The adoption of SME support policies by LGAs is accepted as a core function of council, as outlined in
section 11. The research identifies that the provision of this support by LGAs is best provided in the form
of partnerships with supporting industry bodies and relevant business groups at alocal level.

The LGA support should be targeted to the specific needs of the SME companies in the area, with a
different focus catering for start-ups and SMEs inthe 2-3 year category. The best yvield of return in terms of
job creation is likely to be seen from companies that currently employ more than one person.

8 THE SME environment
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O é THE IMPACT OF THE LACK OF INNOVATION

The issue of innovation in SMEs is complex, Innovation covers more than that commonly associated with
disrupters. Innovation is not only about new technologies and their application. it also encompasses the
utilisation of systems to improve productivity, marketing techniques, operational efficiency, collaboration and
quality of service. The Lack of these capabilities can lead to a reduced competitive advantage *Empirical
fiterature has proven that the extent of innovative activities influences firm survival positively”® (Haase 2009).

Often a small business cwner, may not innovate simply because they do not realise that they are inefficient.
Additionally, they may not have the necessary skills or funding to implement the necessary changes. The
solution to improve this issue involves a " complicated constellation of compi tary activities, that may
be needed for success, such as: parficular collaborations; specialist in-house skills; inteliectual property;
markefing acthvities; capital investments; and training for empioyees” (Alfons Palangkaraya 2015).

O THE IMPACT AND IMPORTANCE OF
NETWORKING

Access to networking has been shown to improve asmall business owner's knowledge and provides a valuable
network of peers from which to gauge and improve their company's performance. In SMEs “the relationship
between networking capability and success has been infensively studied in small business liferature. Scholars
have empirically proved that filgher levels of networking activities or sodial capital are associated with greater
firm performance” (Haase 2009). The RBA reported that “we also observed that the SME owner-managers
were not really concerned about the importance of co-operation and networking, which literature identifies
as crucial for the firm's success” (Haase 2009).

In order to resolve this, the provision of low cost networking events at a local level, coupled with subsidised
rnembership for new members could mitigate some of the current identified issues.

O THE RELUCTANCE TO SEEK EXTERNAL ADVICE
AND THE IMPORTANCE OF IT.

Small businesses owners are often cash constrained, reluctant or simply do not have the knowledge to
understand that they can gain a competitive edge by accessing external support. This is despite the fact
that smaller firms may have a greater need for advice (Tanewski 2014). “Indeed, of the small businesses that
falf info corporate administration, manageriaf issues are the most commonfy cited cause by the externaf
administrators”. (Sam Micholls 2015)

THE SME environment 11
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THE SME ENVIRONMENT IN THE CITY OF COCKBURN

Cockburn has over 8,000 SMEs within its boundries. The City of Cockburns SME
segment is relatively successful when compared to its neighboring cities. This

is shown in table 5, which compares the SME numbers of CoC with the cities

of Melville and Canning. The growth and breakdown of small businesses is also

similar when compared to that at a state level as identified in table 3. The main o
variances are a higher growth of professional and scientific services and also in

the construction and education sectors. The construction growth may be due

to SPV entities being gernerated during development, rather than active SMEs.

It should be noted that the growth shown in the transport and warehousing
segrments is likely to correspond to the growth of LUBER drivers, these are non [
scalable industries that are likely to benefit from any growth strategy’s due to
their inherent nature.

However, the growth of SMEs in the City of Cockburn suffers the same problems

as most of Australia when considering the SME demographics. In that the growth of SME numbers is largely made up of small non-
employing and micro SMEs. Given that employment growth is more likely to be achieved from those that are already employing and
that thereis declining growth in SMEs in this sector, it would be prudent to invest in those SMEs that are employing and already exist.

Table 4 identifies the current Cockburn SME industry breakdown. Showing the change in numbers of SMEs broken down by size ft is
noted that that the growth is stilted towards smaller SMEs and the larger SMEs are growing at a lower rate or in some cases refracting.
Any development strategy should be aligned to support the growth of the smaller and established SMEs in Cockburn.

14 The SME environment in the City of Cockburn
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CITY OF COCKBURN
SUPPORTING THE GROWTH OF
ESTABLISHED SME’S

Given that the current growth of SMEs is based around small non employing entities. it may appear that the
focus should be on reducing start up failures. However, research suggests that developement of established
employing SMEs is more likely to yield better returns in FTE creation. So it may be prudent to develop an
SME support program that focuses on SME growth, rather than reducing SME failure rates.

inCockburn, the impact of supporting SME growth couldyield 141 FTEs basedon a conservative assumption
that the program would resultin 10% of the employing small businesses employing an additional one person
as a part time employee - 0.5FTE (Table 1).

This yield is greater than a program that focuses on reducing SME failure rates, reducing failure rates by 10%
would only yield circa 8 FTE's (Table 2).

e I L

Impact on FTE employed in CoC 98.7 42.6

s e

Failure rate per year (based on 30% in
first 2 years)
T N W

Number of FTE's maintained (assume 3.6 21 1.5
mid range FTE per group)

The SME environment in the City of Cockburn 15
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TABLE 4 - SME NUMBER CHANGES BY SME SIZE 2014-2018
Non EMPLOYING 1-4 EMPLOYEES 5-19 EMPLOYEES.

CITY OF COCKBURN - REGISTERED BUSINESSES 2018 2014 22’;:;0 2018 2014 zg:’i;o 2018 2014 zg:;;o
INDUSTRY EXPORTING| TOTAL ToTAL CHANGE ToTAL ToTAL CHANGE ToTAL ToTAL CHANGE
Agriculture, Forestry and Fishing Y 161 158 3 31 43 -13 9 11 -2
Mining 21 29 -7 15 £ 6 3 6 =3
Manufacturing Y 218 220 =2 127 144 -16 150 137 13
Electricity, Gas, Water and Waste Services 15 12 3 15 3 12 0 0 0
Construction 1,086 1,006 80 504 429 75 163 147 16
Wholesale Trade Y 150 131 19 95 72 23 71 57 14
Retail Trade 192 175 18 109 122 -13 79 90 -11
Accommodation and Food Services Y 57 47 10 102 66 36 93 s 20
Transport, Postal and Warehousing P 589 377 213 139 141 -2 40 47 -7
Information Media and Telecommunications 43 18 25 8 6 2 0 3 =)
Financial and Insurance Services 552 341 211 74 72 2 11 6 5

§ Rental, Hiring and Real Estate Services 712 639 72 84 74 10 27 25 2

% Professional, Scientific and Technical Services Y 525 428 97 264 225 29 62 54 8

g Administrative and Support Services 193 193 0 81 68 13 32 31 1

é' Public Administration and Safety 19 14 5 6 12 -6 6 6 0

‘3 Education and Training ¥ 61 40 21 37 32 4 4 17 -13

:J: Health Care and Social Assistance 290 152 137 93 54 39 37 24 13

i Arts and Recreation Services Y 81 54 27 32 13 19 6 9 -3

gﬁ Other Services 201 179 22 134 130 4 51 49 2

? Industry not classified 58 98 -40 23 39 -15 6 15 -9

?:— Total business 5,225 4,311 914 1,973 1,754 219 852 810 43

"J 7 Percentage increase 21% 12% 5%
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= | TABLE 5-SME NUMBER CHANGES COMPARED TO LOCAL LGA'S

:;D"

.

Z. Cockburn (C) Canning (C) Melville (C)

.t'; INDUSTRY TYPES 2018 | VARIANCE | VARIANCE | VARIANCE =~ 2018 | VARIANCE  VARIANCE | VARIANCE =~ 2018  VARIANCE | VARIANCE A VARIANCE

f‘J: ToraL NON EMPLOYING  TOTAL ToTaL NON  EMPLOYING ToTaL ToTaL NON  EMPLOYING TOTAL

5 EMPLOYING 1-19 2016-2018 EMPLOYING 1-19 2016-2018 EMPLOYING 1-19 2016-2018

= | 2016-2018 2016-2018 | 2016-2018 2016-2018 | 2016-2018 2016-2018

Q Accommodation and Food Services 282 3 37 32 | 364 24 6 24 332 7 -3 9

‘_c";‘ Administrative and Support Services 323 18 -3 4 423 75 -22 47 333 38 -17 32

Q Agriculture, Forestry and Fishing 196 4 -10 1 | 75 -11 -4 -15 173 =32 -15 -40

§' Arts and Recreation Services 117 9 3 21 | 63 -9 2 -9 118 1 -12 -2

3 Construction 1811 29 3 33 1319 -75 -21 -106 1458 -23 -28 -49
Currently Unknown 92 0 3 -4 84 -8 5 -9 139 2 1 6
Education and Training 111 7 7 15 92 -9 18 11 155 -3 2 -2
Electricity, Gas, Water and Waste Services 23 -2 1] -3 37 11 -8 5 17 -2 4 | 9
Financial and Insurance Services 661 64 -1 12 751 74 12 79 1389 59 -6 42
Health Care and Social Assistance 436 71 14 93 452 24 26 46 1020 103 -2 107
Information Media and Telecommunications 49 9 1 10 63 u 4 10 75 3 -6 | -2
Manufacturing 548 11 -16 -3 516 4 6 1 306 -11 -6 | -17
Mining as -8 2 6 | 58 5 2 7 101 -5 2 | s
Other Services 406 12 8 15 | 495 1 28 22 387 2 13 24
Professional, Scientific and Technical Services 874 75 29 103 942 28 2 21 1712 57 -15 31
Public Administration and Safety 30 -1 -4 -6 | 34 5 2 5 29 -3 -1 2
Rental, Hiring and Real Estate Services 835 22 4 25 932 -7 -6 -10 1527 16 -20 -6
Retail Trade a11 13 EE! 25 | sas 11 -29 -48 564 25 =11 3
Transport, Postal and Warehousing 781 165 -17 144 1348 433 -7 429 473 54 7 52
Wholesale Trade 330 19 18 30 | s86 32 =15 24 325 5 -23 -18
Total 8370 535 35 562 9185 616 -29 551 10618 298 -127 159
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THE MELVILLE AND COCKBURN CHAMBER OF
COMMERCE

OUR PEOPLE

OUR BOARD AND TEAM BRING A DIVERSE EXPERIENCE
SHAPING THE CHAMBERS SUPPORT OF THE SMALL BUSINESS SEGMENT

the Melville and cockburn chamber of commerce 19
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OUR BOARD

20 the Melville and cockburn chamber of commerce
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WHY DO PEOPLE JOIN

MEMBERS LOOK FOR A NUMBER OF
DIFFERING BENEFITS FROM THE CHAMBER OF COMMERCE AND
THIS DEMAND VARIES, DEPENDENT ON THE
INDUSTRY THEY ARE IN AND THE BUSINESS STAGE THEY ARE AT

Networking To access educational To access business
opportunities and programs , seminars assistance and other
special events and workshop informational services
Metworking is about creating SME owners need support and look SME owners cannot afford in-house
relationships and socialising with other to the chamber to provide personal resources for many of the functions
business owners. development opportunities. that a company requires. The chamber

provides an oppertunity for our members
to gain access to these services.

the Melville and cockburn chamber of commerce 21
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3 MCCC

City of Cockburn Integrated Health & Community Facility
15/11 Wentworth Parade, Success WA §1464
(cnr Wentworth Parade & Beeliar Drive)

Postal Address
PC Box 3906
Success WA 6964

Telephone  (08) 9433 2305
Faxx (08) 4323 1328
Email info@mece.org.au

Facebook www facebook com/mcccperth/

Report produced on behalf of the MCCC

By ARK(AUS) Pty Uid m
Email Enquiries@ARKservices.net.au

22 the Melville and cockburn chamber of commerce
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_/%
Q-ﬂa Department of Consumer & Employment Protection

Government of Western Australia

WESTERN AUSTRALIA

Associations Incorporation Act 1987
(Section 18(6))

Registered No: A0824626V

Certificate of Incorporation
on Change of Name

This is to certify that
MELVILLE CHAMBER OF COMMERCE (INC)

which was on the twenty—first day of October 1987
incorporated under the Associations Incorporation Act 1987
changed its name on the thirtieth day of November 2007 to:

MELVILLE COCKBURN CHAMBER OF COMMERCE INCORPORATED

Dated this thirtieth day of November 2007

fiA ygy

Commissioner for Consumer Protection
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Melville Cockburn Chamber Of
Commerce Inc

Financial Statements

For the Year Ended 30 June 2019

96 of 227 l |

110 of 532
Document Set ID: 9674303
Version: 3, Version Date: 17/09/2(420




OCM 13/08/2020 ltem 13.1 Attachment 1

GAD 21/07/2020 Item 9.2 Attachment 1

Melville Cockburn Chamber Of Commerce Inc

Contents
For the Year Ended 30 June 2019

Page

Financial Statements

Statement of Profit or Loss

Statement of Assets and Liabilities
Statement of Changes in Equity
Statement of Cash Flows

Notes to the Financial Statements
Statement by Members of the Committee
Independent Audit Report
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MELVILLE COCKBURN CHAMBER OF COMMERCE INC

Statement of Profit or Loss
For the Year Ended 30 June 2019

2019 2018
$ $
Income
Function Income 9,820 13,301
Interest 41 30
Memberships 43,597 38,588
Sponshorships 79,900 66,500
133,358 118 419
Expenditure
Accounting Fees 3,300 2610
AGM 695 366
Bank Charges 401 472
Depreciation 739 305
Employee Expenses 90,990 82752
Function Expenses 6,642 9,656
Gifts 1,183 768
Insurance 645 2,033
Marketing 402 472
Office Rent 1,136 4,343
Stationary 1,337 1,919
Subscriptions 710 603
Telephone and Fax 4,742 4,970
112,922 111,269
Income Tax Expense - -
Profit After Income Tax 20,436 7,150
Retained Profit at the Beginning of the Financial Year 15,462 8312
Retained Profits at the end of the Financial Year 35,898 15,462

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.
1
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MELVILLE COCKBURN CHAMBER OF COMMERCE INC

Statement of Assets and Liabilities
As At 30 June 2019

2019 2018

Note $ 3
ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and Cash Equivalents 3 33,000 34,547
Trade and Other Receivables 31,617 26,841
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 64,617 61,388
NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Plant and Equipment 4 4,283 2 695
TOTAL NON-CURRENT ASSETS 4,283 2,695
TOTAL ASSETS 68,900 64 083
LIABILITIES
CURRENTLIABILITIES
Trade and Other Payables 11,754 9,664
Other Liabilities 21,248 38,957
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 33,002 48621
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
TOTAL LIABILITIES 33,002 48 621
NETASSETS 35,898 15462
MEMBERS' FUNDS
Retained Profits 35,898 15,462
TOTAL MEMBERS' FUNDS 35,898 15,462

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.
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MELVILLE COCKBURN CHAMBER OF COMMERCE INC
Statement of Changes in Equity
For the Year Ended 30 June 2019
2019
Retained
Earnings
$
Balance at 1 July 2018 15,462

Profit / (Loss) for the Year
Balance at 30 June 2019

Balance at 1 July 2017
Profit / (Loss) for the Year

Balance at 30 June 2018

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements
3

20,436

35,898
2018

Retained
Earnings
$
8,312
7,150

15,462
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MELVILLE COCKBURN CHAMBER OF COMMERCE INC

Statement of Cash Flows
For the Year Ended 30 June 2019

2019 2018
Note $ $
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Receipls from Customers 128,541 113,774
Payments to Suppliers and Employees (127,802) (116,380)
Net Cash Provided By/(Used in) Operating Activities 5 739 2.606)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Interest Received 4 30
Purchase of Property, Plant and Equipment (2,327) (932)
Net Cash Provided By/(Used in) Investing Activities (2,286) (902)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Net Increase/(Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents Held (1,547) (3.508)
Cash and Cash Equivalents at Beginning of Year 34,547 38,055
Cash and Cash Equivalents at End of Financial Year 3 33.000 34 547
1 L

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.
4
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MELVILLE COCKBURN CHAMBER OF COMMERCE INC

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 30 June 2019

The financial statements cover Melville Cockburn Chamber Of Commerce Inc as an individual entity. Melville Cockburn
Chamber Of Commerce Inc is a not-for-profit Association incorporated in Western Australia under the Associations
Incorporation Act (WA) 2015 ('the Act’).

The functional and presentation currency of Melville Cockburn Chamber Of Commerce Inc is Australian dollars.
Comparalives are consistent with prior years, unless otherwise stated.
1  Basis of Preparation

In the opinion of the Committee of Management, the Association is not a reporting entity since there are unlikely to
exist users of the financial statements who are not able to command the preparation of reports tailored so as to satisfy
specifically all of their information needs. These special purpose financial statements have been prepared to meet the
reporting requirements of the Act.

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the recognition and measurement requirements of
the Australian Accounting Standards and Accounting Interpretations, and the disclosure requirements of AASB 101
Presentation of Financial Statements, AASB 107 Stalement of Cash Flows, AASB 108 Accounting Policies, Changes
in Accounting Estimates and Errors and AASB 1054 Auslralian Additional Disclosures

2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(a) Revenue and other income

Revenue is recognised when the amount of the revenue can be measured reliably, it is probable that economic
benefils associated with the transaction will flow to the Association and specific criteria relating to the type of
revenue as noted below, has been satisfied.

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable and is presented net of
retuns, discounts and rebates.

(b)  Depreciation of property, plant and equipment

Items of property, plant and equipment are depreciated over their useful lives using the straight line method.
(c) Income Tax

The Association is exempt from income tax under Division 50 of the Income Tax Assessment Act 1997
(d) Goods and services tax (GST)

Revenue, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of goods and services tax (GST), except
where the amount of GST incurred is not recoverable from the Australian Taxation Office (ATO).

Receivables and payable are stated inclusive of GST.

Cash flows in the statement of cash flows are included on a gross basis and the GST component of cash flows
arising from investing and financing activities which is recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority is
classified as operating cash flows.

(e)  Property, plant and equipment

Each class of property, plant and equipment is carried at cost or fair value less, where applicable, any
accumulated depreciation and impairment.
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MELVILLE COCKBURN CHAMBER OF COMMERCE INC

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 30 June 2019

2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
f Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprises cash on hand, demand deposits and short-term investments which are
readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of change in value.

3  Cash and Cash Equivalents

2019 2018
$ $
Cash at Bank and in Hand 33,000 34,547
33,000 34 547
4  Property, plant and equipment
2019 2018
$ $
PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
At Cost 6,945 4618
Accumulated Depreciation (2,662) (1,923)
Total Property, Plant and Equipment 4,283 2,695
5 Cash Flow Information
(a)  Reconciliation of result for the year to cashflows from operating activities
Reconciliation of net income to net cash provided by operating activities
2019 2018
$ $
Profit for the year 20,436 7,150
Cash flows excluded from profit attributable to operating activities
Non-cash flows in profit
- Interest (41) (30)
- Depreciation 739 305
Changes in assets and liabilities:
- (increase)/decrease in trade and other receivables (4,776) (4,615)
- increase/(decrease) in trade and other payables (15,619) (5,416)
Cashflows from operations 739 (2,606)

6  Statutory Information

The registered office and principal place of business of the company I1s
Melville Cockburn Chamber Of Commerce Inc

PO Box 3906

Success WA 6964
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Melville Cockburn Chamber Of Commerce Inc
- Statement by Members of the Committee

The ittee has ined that the A iation is nol a reperting entity and that this special purpose financial report

should be prepared in accordance with the accounting policies outlined in Note 2 to the financial statements,

In the apinion of the committee the financial report as set out on pages 110 6:

1. Presents fairly the financial position of Melville Cockbum Chamber OF Cq Inc as at 30 June 2019 and its
performance for the year ended on that date,

2. Atthe date of this , there are ble g ds to believe that Melville Cockburn Chamber Of Commerce
Inc will be able to pay its debis as and when they fall due.

This statement is made in d with a lution of the ¢ ittee and is signed for and on behall of the commillee

by:

-

7/ 9

Dated

G vy
e Scoce. (S

Tew cen Cttugge,
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EZ= 8.

Francis A Jones
Where people count.

Melville Cockburn Chamber Of Commerce Inc

Independent Audit Report to the members of Melville Cockburn Chamber
Of Commerce Inc

Report on the Audit of the Financial Report
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial report, being a special purpose financial report of Melville Cockburn Chamber
Of Commerce Inc (the Association), which comprises the stalement of assels and liabilties as at 30 June 2019, the
statement of profit or loss, the statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and
notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies, and the statement by members of
the committee,

In our opinion, the accompanying financial report of the Association for the year ended 30 June 2019 is prepared, in all
material respects, in accordance with Associations Incorporation Act (WA) 2015,

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards. Our responsibilities under those standards are
further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Report section of our report. We are
independent of the Association in accordance with the auditor independence requirements of the ethical requirements of
the Accounting Professional and Ethical Standards Board's APES 110 Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the
Code) that are relevant to our audit of the financial report in Australia. We have also fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities
in accordance with the Code.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
Emphasis of Matter - Basis of Accounting

We draw attention to Note 1 of the financial report, which describes the basis of accounting. The financial report is prepared
to assist lhe Association to fulfill their financial reporting responsibilities under the Association Act. As a result, the financial
report may nol be suilable for another purpose. Our report is intended solely for the Association and should not be
distributed to or used by parties other than the Association. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial report in accordance with Associations
Incorporation Act (WA) 2015, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the
preparation of the financial report is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial report, management is responsible for assessing the Association’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concem basis of accounting
unless management either intends to liquidate the Association or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to
do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Association's financial reporting process.
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E=8.

Francis A Jones
Where people count.

Melville Cockburn Chamber Of Commerce Inc

Independent Audit Report to the members of Melville Cockburn Chamber
Of Commerce Inc

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Report

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial report as a whole is free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or emor, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with the Australian
Auditing Standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error
and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of this financial report.

As part of an audit in accordance with the Australian Auditing Standards, we exercise professional judgement and maintain
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial report, whether due to fraud or error, design
and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.

. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Association's internal control.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the management.

. Conclude on the appropriateness of the management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on
the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Association’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a matenal
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial
reporter, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Association to
cease to continue as a going concemn

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial report, including the disclosures, and
whether the financial report represents the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

We communicate with the management regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.
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Francis A _[OFIES
Where people count.

Melville Cockburn Chamber Of Commerce Inc

Independent Audit Report to the members of Melville Cockburn Chamber
Of Commerce Inc

(.‘%ﬁ

Daniel Papaphotis
Registered Company Auditor
# - 401503

Francis A Jones Pty Lid

154 High Street

Fremantle WA 6160

Dated: 12th November 2019

10
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ELIGIBILITY

* indicates a required field
Important Information

Before applying, please:
» Read the Sponsorship (Group) Guidelines and Policy;
e Preview the Application Form, so you can gather all information needed;
» Contact the Grants and Research area on (08) 9411 3444 during business hours or

email communitygrants@cockburn.wa.gov.au to determine your eligibility, ensure
you are applying under the correct category, and to answer any questions.

Incomplete applications and/or applications received after the closing date will not be
considered.

The following questions MUST be completed by the Applicant Organisation. This page of
the form is designed to help you, and us, understand if you are eligible for Sponsorship. It's
crucial that you complete these questions before any others to ensure you do not waste
your time applying for unsuitable funding.

Grants Officer Contact

This is a mandatory requirement for ALL funding categories. Your application will
be deemed INELIGIBLE if you do not contact a Grants Officer.

Grants Officers can be contacted on on (08) 9411 3444 during business hours or email
communitygrants@cockburn.wa.gov.au

Did you contact a City of Cockburn Grants Officer to discuss your potential
application? *

®YES O NO

Please note that emails promoting the funding rounds sent by the Grants team do not constitute
contact with the Grants Officer. The applicant must initiate contact and advise of the specific intention
for the funding.

Name of Grants Officer *
Melissa Bolland/Sarah Kahle

Date of contact *
11/02/2020

Method of contact *
© Phone @ Email C In person O Other: Met with Sarah Kahle and CEO

Eligibility Questions

Is your organisation a not-for-profit entity? *
® YES O NO
Sponsorships are open to not-for-profit and private organisations
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Is your organisation an incorporated legal entity OR are you being auspiced by an
incorporated organisation? *

@® YES O NO

If YES, you must supply a copy of the organisation's Certificate of Incorporation. If NO, you are not
eligible for Sponsorship. You may only apply for Sponsorship through an erganisation or auspicing
body that is an incorporated legal entity. The auspicing body receives funding on behalf of the
applicant organisation, and is ultimately responsible for ensuring the funded project is completed and
an acquittal report is submitted.

Is your organisation based in the City of Cockburn AND/OR primarily providing
services in the City of Cockburn; OR looking to provide a service or hold an event
in Cockburn that will benefit the Cockburn community? *

YES, based in Cockburn andfor primarily providing services in Cockburn

If NO, you are not eligible for Sponsorship.

Is your organisation financially viable? *

® YES O NO

Applications for funding of up to $5,000 must provide a recent bank statement. Applications for
more than $5,000 require a bank statement no more than one month old and the minutes of your
organisation's most recent Annual General Meeting, including an audited Financial Report, with this
application.

Does your organisation have the capacity to undertake all the required planning,
bookings, permits and approvals processes, marketing and promotion to ensure
the success of your project? *

® YES O NO

Please review the City of Cockburn Guide to Community Events for additional information and
assistance.

Does your organisation have appropriate insurance for this project? *
@ YES O NO O Not applicable
For example: volunteers, professional indemnity, public liability.

If your organisation is a school, P&C or P&F association, you must satisfy the
following additional criteria:

o There is an identified community need for the project.
» The project is accessible to the wider Cockburn community outside of school hours.
e You are able to provide at least 50% or more of the financial contribution to the project.

If your organisation is a school, P&C or P&F association, can you satisfy all of the
above additional criteria? *
OYES O NO @ Not applicable

If you are a sporting team or club, you can only apply if you are:
e representing at a National or International level event, for which you have been
selected based on your endeavours in your chosen activity, or
« hosting a sporting event or activity in the City of Cockburn that is of State, National or
International significance that will add value to the City of Cockburn.

If you are a sporting team or club, do you satisfy one of the above criteria? *
OYES ONO @ Not applicable
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If you answered NO to any of the above Eligibility Questions, you may not be
eligible for funding and should contact the Grants and Research area on (08) 9411
3444 before proceeding with this application.

Previous Funding

Please note as per current Policy:

An applicant may successfully apply for and receive funding from two different
categories (in the Policy) per financial year, provided they meet the criteria for
the particular category, however, the applications cannot be for the same project,
and any previous year's funding must be satisfactorily acquitted.

Has your organisation previously received funding from the City of Cockburn? *
@® YES, this financial year O YES, in previous years O NO

If you have received funding in this financial year, contact the Grants and Research area on (08) 9411
3444 to confirm your eligibility before proceeding with this application.

If you have received previous funding from the City of Cockburn, please provide
details of your most recent successful application/s

November 2019 funding delayed because of Audit report. Major Sponsor 15,000

Please include approximate date, category of funding, project title and amount.

Does your organisation have any outstanding City of Cockburn acquittal reports?
E 3

O YES @ NO O Not applicable

Applicants that have been successful in previous years are eligible to apply provided all previous
funding (Grants and Sponsorship) has been satisfactorily acquitted. Acquitted means you have
provided a detailed report for the project and evidence such as photos or media, using the appropriate
Acquittal Form.

APPLICANT DETAILS

* indicates a required field
Applicant Organisation Details

Applicant organisation name *
Melville Cockburn Chamber of Commerce

Describe your organisation and its purpose *

The Melville Cockburn Chamber of Commerce (MCCC) is a proactive organisation that strives
for excellence in the provision of services to our constituents and our engagement with the
business community of the Melville and Cockburn district. The MCCC is an incorporated not-
for-profit organisation that seeks to promote the interests of businesses in Cities of Melville
and Cockburn. Established in 1984 the then MCCC merged the City of Cockburn under its
auspice in 1987 and became an incorporated body the same year.

Over the years the MCCC has supported SME growth in the City of Melville (CoM) and the
City of Cockburn (CoC). MCCC members benefit from the services and activities we provide
and facilitate. We provide opportunities and a platform for businesses to participate in
events to grow their networks and build on relationships. We support small business with
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self-development through workshops and training. The ongoing growth and viability of the
MCCC are dependent on the support of our members, sponsors and in particular that of the
two local government authorities (LGA's) that it serves. We have approx 150 - 200 members
and sponsors which fluctuates pending retention and new members each year. Plus 2000
database

Must be no more than 200 words.

Where possible, please include number of members of your organisation, and number of people that
benefit from your services or activities (and how this number is measured)

Street address *

City of Cockburn Integrated Health & Community Facility

Corner Wentworth Parade & Beeliar Drive

Success WA 6164 Australia

Address Line 1, Suburb/Town, State/Province, and Postcode are required. Country must be Australia

Postal address *

City of Cockburn Integrated Health & Community Facility

Corner Wentworth Parade & Beeliar Drive

Success WA 6164 Australia

Address Line 1, Suburb/Town, State/Province, and Postcode are required. Country must be Australia

Organisation phone number *
(08) 9433 2305

Must be an Australian phone number.
Must include area code.

Organisation primary email *
info@mccc.org.au
Must be an email address.

Organisation website
http://www.mccc.org.au
Must be a valid URL.

Applicant Organisation Contact Person

Contact name *
Mrs Monigque Williams

Position held in organisation *
Executive Officer

Contact phone number *

0427 022 509

Must be an Australian phone number.
Must include area code,

Contact email *

monigue@mccc.org.au

Must be an email address.

This is the address we will use to correspond with you about this application
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Is your organisation a not-for-profit entity? *
® YES O NO

Private organisations are eligible to apply for Sponsorship.

Is your organisation incorporated? *
@ YES O NO
If NO, you must fill out the Auspice Organisation Details.

Please upload a copy of your organisation's Certificate of Incorporation *

Filename: Certificate of Incorporation.pdf
File size: 337.4 kB
Max 25mb

Does your organisation have an ABN? (Australian Business Number) *

® YES O NO

If you do not have an ABN, please complete and submit a Statement by a Supplier Form with your
application; if this form is not submitted, the Australian Taxation Office will require 48.5% of approved
funding to be withheld. Download the form here.

Applicant Organisation ABN *
94 457 902 627

Information from the Australian Business Register

ABN 94 457 902 627

Entity name Melville Cockburn Chamber Of Commerce Inc
ABN status Active

Entity type Other Incorporated Entity
Goods & Services Tax (GST) Yes

DGR Endorsed No

ATO Charity Type Not endorsed More information
ACNC Registration No

Tax Concessions No tax concessions

Main business location 6154 WA

Information retrieved at 9:58am today

Must be an ABN.

SPONSORSHIP PROPOSAL DETAILS

* indicates a required field

Sponsorship Proposal or Project Title *
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Major Sponsor 20-2021 Melville Cockburn Chamber of Commerce

What is the level of sponsorship being requested?

Official Sponsor

e.g. Naming rights, Partner, official sponsor, supporting, gold, silver etc. This is not the amount being
requested.

Timing and Location

Proposed sponsorship or project start date *

01/06/2020

Must not commence until two months after the application closing date, as funding will not be
provided retrospectively.

Proposed sponsorship or project finish date *
30/06/2021

Duration must be ne longer than 12 months.

Is your proposal a one-off project or event OR will it be ongoing OR organised
annually? *

O One-off @ Ongoing/Annual

Please note: The successful request for sponsorship in any year does not imply any ongoing
commitment of the same or similar contribution in following years. Requests for sponsorship in
following years are dependent upon the satisfactory acquittal of all previous funding.

Where will the project or event take place? *

Our events are hosted throughout the year in the City of Cockburn Business Community at
the multiple business venues. Co-hosted events with City of Cockburn at the council function
rooms in Spearwood. However because of the current environment we have shifted our
events, training, workshops online.

Please detail all locations if being held at multiple venues.

Has the venue(s) been confirmed? *
O YES O NO @ Not applicable

Sponsorship Proposal Details and Benefits

Please describe your project and its aims (What you are planning and what you
intend to achieve) *

The MCCC 5 Business After Hours within the City of Cockburn. The aim is networking events
held at various City of Cockburn businesses. Opportunity to meet Mayor, sitting members
and businesses. Aim is for businesses to make a new connections and develop long term
relationship that will benefit all small businesses. The events are well attended with an
average of 70 +. The aim is small businesses to showcase their premises and give an
overview of their services and products to our members and other businesses. The President
also welcomes New members to the MCCC, receive a membership pack, an opportunity

to speak & promote their business in front of other businesses. We promote the Business
(Host) through flyers and follow up photos on website/facebook/newsletter. The Business
also get the list of attendees so they can contact,

We will continue with City of Cockburn Business Connect Series - 3 workshop aim is to
continue to support the self development of small businesses
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Women in Business luncheon September - Support Women in Business, celebratefinspire/
encourage their goals and businesses.
Business Breakfast series

Business Forum(EXPO)
Christmas Party
AGM

Training, workshops - Businesses to be informed on policy, upgrade skills and build networks
Must be between 50 and 200 words,

Please describe your project rationale (Why you are doing it) *
The MCCC has served the local business community for over 30 years. We strive to promote
and support the interests of businesses in the Melville and Cockburn districts.

We play an important role in the business community as an organisation that gives small

business opportunities, connections and support to achieve their goals. Hosting networking
events, workshops to update their skills and opportunities to hear from a vast group of
Industry professional, decisions makers and government entities. We also play a conduit for
sitting members and staff to have contact with small business to have an understanding the
important role both City of Cockburn and small business play in the community. MCCC is a
strong brand within the business community where our members understand the important
role we play in supporting small business in the City of Cockburn. The MCCC works closely
with the Business Engagement Officer to assist and support opportunities for small business.
Must be between 50 and 200 words.

Describe the issue or need that your project will address and/or why you are doing this project or
event.

Please indicate which theme/s your project aligns with from the City's Strategic
Community Plan

@ Moving around - facilitating safe, efficient, connected and sustainable movement around
the City

4 City Growth - planning for the population growth of our City and maintaining our strong
financial position

& Community, Lifestyle and Security - providing safe, attractive, healthy programs and
infrastructure for a diverse range of activity and people

& Economic, Social & Environmental Responsibility - enabling a sustainable future
economically, socially and environmentally; including business activity, job opportunities
and sustainable use of resources

[ Leading and Listening - being accountable to our community and engaging through
multiple effective communication channels

For more information or a further breakdown of the themes into strategies, please refer to the City of
Cockburn Strategic Community Plan

What are the planned activities? How will you achieve the project aims? *

MCCC 18 planned activities provide resources and a vehicle for local businesses to build on
relationships with local government that are mutually beneficial. We aim to achieve this
through events, networking, workshops, expos, and training.

MCCC will continue to work with Business Engagement officer Sarah Kahle supporting these
planned activities

Events

Business After Hours(Networking) approx 8 - half or more to be held within the City of
Cockburn. An opportunity that provides Cockburn businesses with a platform to promote
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and support their businesses and to make new connections to grow their business. More
than 60% of Small business who attend these events are located in the City of Cockburn.

Business Connect Series held at the City of Cockburn. "Social Media"

07th May, 14th May, and 21th May - Breakfast workshop, Keynote speakers from Industry.
MCCC takes full responsibilities of these events organising catering, speakers, flyers, rsvp
list and follow up.

Business Forum 03 June - an opportunity for SME to participate in the Expo, attend as a
member to hear from keynote speakers, Hon. Paul Paplia Minister small business and CCI
Economist Aaron Morey

Women in Business Lunch Celebrate, Inspire, Encourage, incredible women in education/
sport/ government and business owners.

Must be between 50 and 200 words.

List the specific activities that will take place to carry out your project or event

Please provide information on the target market/s, expected numbers and
demographics of attendees, audience, participants or members. Does it involve a
large cross-section of the community or a particular community group? *

Our target market is small business owners, organisations, not for profits, community
groups, home base businesses and employees working or operating a business within the
City of Cockburn.

Business after Hours between 70 - 120 attend with 90% members, sponsors of the Chamber.,
Business Connect between 25 - 40 breakfast and workshop

Women in Business - 60 attendees

Business Forum - 20 expo holders - 100 plus attendees 40 from City of Cockburn

Breakfast Series approx 30 - 50 attend

Co-hosted events 60 + Southwest Group

Demographics 35 - 60 year, SME's, professionals,medical, tradesmen, builders,
manufacturers, financial, real estate, retail, sole trader, not for profit, home

base. Companies with the excess of 100 employees, Cockburn Gateway Shopping Centre,
like Adventure World and Fremantle Dockers. We also work closely with community groups
like employment agencies, disability service including

Atwork, APM, Bizlink Autism WA, Edge employment and Matchworks. We also work and
support Sout West Group, Business Foundations and CCI, In addition, we co host and work
with local and federal members of Parliament and government funding bodies like Small
Business Development Corporation. (SBDC)

Must be between 50 and 200 words,

What benefits does the proposal offer to the Cockburn community? Who and how
many will benefit from the project? *

Benefit is to support the growth of established SME's (small business enterprises)through
the provision of affordable business knowledge specific to the needs of the local SME's.
Supported by more accessible and diverse networking activities aimed at connecting
business owners. The importance of the role of local government in small business
development has been identified as a contributor to SME's success. Many businesses over
1000;s benefit either through attending our events or receiving information on line through
our newsletter.

In South Australia research indicates that, “Some 87 per cent of metropolitan councils
consider economic development is a core function of council and two-thirds of metropolitan
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councils have dedicated staff resources to economic functions.”(Promoting Local Economic
Development: A Role for Metropolitan Local Councils 2013)

Support of SMEs through local business organisations is considered a key LGA policy that is
aligned with the governance and mandate that they operate under.

The support for SMEs by LGAs is largely derived from an economic development strategy
that leverages on partnerships between local councils and businesses to develop a bottom-
up strategy

Must be between 50 and 200 words,

Describe how the Cockburn community will benefit.

What are the expected outcomes of the project? *

Members - invitations to attend all the functions, workshops, training and networking events
(approx 18 events - most free to members) Benefits include * 2 x Complimentary tickets to
our monthly networking ‘Business After Hours' events for employees of your organisation.

* Discounted Member rates to attend training courses and seminars. « 2 Adverts in the
MCCC ‘ShoutOut’ newsletter - which goes out to over 1,400 businesses locally twice a
month. * Face to Face welcome by our President at a monthly event with a speaking slot to
introduce your business to the members in person. * Welcomed in our newsletter with full
details about your business and any promotional offers for our members with links to your
website. « Listed on our website’s Business Directory with all contact details and snapshot
of your business. * Showcased on Facebook page with links to your own website and/or
Facebook page. * Discounts on products and services from fellow members and sponsors
with a dedicated Member Discounts page on our website * Receive an MCCC members’
certificate, discount membership tag, window sticker display your professional alignment
to the Chamber. Business expand their networks and build long term relationships. Contact
with Local Council

Must be between 50 and 200 words.

Decribe three or more benefits youwant the project to provide to participants and/or others. Consider
short and long term goals.

How will you determine and measure the outcomes and benefits? *

We measure the outcome by the number of registrations and members attending our
functions and events throughout the year. Business after Hours are so popular that we
exceed over 70 registrations and charge $29 for non members, We encourage our members
to attend at least six events per year to fully benefit their business membership. We provide
surveys and follow-up of hosted workshops, training and networking events to ascertain

the member's feedback. Signing up new members after attending events. And the number
of new members registering and applying for membership through our website and social
media marketing. Growing our membership from the previous year by 20 - 30% each year
and Retention, testimonials and referrals. We get wonderful feedback from our members
and we have seen many incredible synergies emerge. Members now also receive a gift pack
from the MCCC on joining the chamber Welcoming them. A photo is taken and included

in the newsletter and Facebook page welcoming new member. We hope our membership
continues to grow, our retention sits around 70 % and attendance grow 10% on each event/
workshop

Must be between 50 and 200 words.

Describe three changes you will see if the expected outcomes of the project eventuate.

Experience and Community Support

What experience has your organisation in undertaking a project of this nature? *
O No experience as yet O Some experience @ Substantial experience
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Please explain your level of experience

The MCCC has been supporting the local business community for 30 years. We promote
and support small business to achieve their goals. By providing opportunities with hosting
events, training and workshops. We are supported by a board who own their own business.
MCCC holds a monthly board meeting and AGM in October. We employ a part-time Business
Development Manager to engage with the Business Community to promote the City of
Cockburn activities and services. We also employ a part-time account manager to support
the members in promoting their product and services.

Must be no more than 100 words.

List the organisations and Cockburn community members that support your
proposal or project *

We have great support from elected members who often attend our events. Our members,
our board, our sponsors, City of Melville, Murdoch, Atwork, National Storage, Landcorp,
Makonet, Community News. and new sponsors Volkswagen Melville, Stockland. We work
closely with CCl and SBDC and have formed strong relationships with the Council, State and

Federal government who often happy to support our events as keynote speakers.
Must be no more than 100 words.

Letters of support or referees

Filename: Letter of Support Coral Horizon.pdf
File size: 23.7 kB

Filename: Letter of Support Sylex.pdf

File size: 495.8 kB

Letters of support will strongly assist your application. They are written by another organisation or
individuals telling of the positive impact of your organisation or project, and how or why they support
you. From an organisation, they must be printed on the supporter's letterhead and be signed by the
Chair, President or CEO. Max 25mb

Promotion and Acknowledgement

How will your project or event be promoted and advertised? How will you engage
participants? *

All events are promoted and advertised via Mailchimp to our database (1400) businesses. All
events/workshops/are promoted through our e-newsletter "shoutout" bi-monthly newsletter.
We also list our events on our website. Events are also promoted through LinkedIn /
facebook and Instagram. We also #tag our hosts and City of Cockburn or promote through
3rd party social media platform. Events are advertised through Community News Cockburn
Gazette, Melville Time and Fremantle Gazette. We also phone and send email to our
members from time to time to participate and promote our events. City of Melville and City
of Cockburn also promotes our events through their databases and social media platforms.
Our events for an example - promoted by Business Foundations, SBDC, Murdoch University,
State Opposition Shadow Minister for Small Business Alyssa Hayden and Assistant Minister
to the Prime Minister Ben Morton though their own databases and social media platforms.
Must be no more than 150 words.

Describe types of media or other means to be used, and ways the project will be promoted and
participants reached.

How will you promote and publicise the City of Cockburn's sponsorship support? *
Annual General Meeting the President acknowledges support from City of Cockburn in his
President report. At all events - the President gives a public acknowledgement to the city

of Cockburn as a major sponsor and also acknowledges the support from the Mayor and
councillors. MCCC website the City of Cockburn logo and images with a thank you to our
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Major sponsor "City of Cockburn" Publicise, support, promote current events through "What
happening in the City of Cockburn" in the MCCC newsletter "Shoutout" with link to event
and promotions. Executive Officer and Business Development Manager promotes the City of
Cockburn as a major sponsor when promoting, signing up and renewing membership.

Must be no more than 150 words

Describe the ways support received will be acknowledged.

What branding benefits will the City of Cockburn receive? *

Website CoC logo is displayed with photos & thank you to our sponsors. Shout-out MCCC Bi-
monthly newsletter with Thank you CoC Newsletter banner "What's happening in the City of
Cockburn"

Pull up banner (events)

Email address staff signatures

Business Card

Business Certificate

Key tags

Sticker

MCCC post (advertises) Facebook (tags) the #CityofCockburn events and community
services and a direct link to book or enquire.

MCCC events have City of Cockburn Logo on all flyers sent to a database of over 1400
business owners.

MCCC ads in the Community News City of Cockburn logo
MCCC letterhead City of Cockburn logo

All name tags

Office logo on MCCC Door

Membership Pack - City of Cockburn profile

On each occasion when engaging with potential members/ sponsors we always acknowledge
the support from the City of Cockburn as a major sponsor

Elected members welcomed and to speak at certain events Including MC

Must be no more than 150 words.

Consider: advertising, media coverage, logo inclusion on event or organisation signage, opportunity to
display City signage at event, logo inclusion and sponsor recognition on advertising and promotional
material e.q. flyers, posters, programs, website, social media etc.

Please list any other benefits or opportunities the City of Cockburn will receive in
return for support

Opportunity for Mayor of Cockburn to cut the ribbon of new businesses opening within the
City of Cockburn. Opportunity for Mayor, Councillors and City of Cockburn staff to attend and
participate as keynote speaker. 4 Complimentary tickets to all events for staff, councillors
and guests. Opportunities to distribute publications, promotional materials at all events. a
good example of this was Women in Business. Mayor also welcome at all events to give out
door prizes and welcome new members with a photo and published on all social media and
newsletters.

Must be no more than 150 words.

Consider: tickets to the event, opportunities to present a speech, opportunities to distribute
publications etc.

Please download a Sponsorship Benefits Checklist (or email
communitygrants@cockburn.wa.gov.au for the Excel version) and complete as
best you can in relation to your proposal; then upload the completed checklist
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below, along with any sponsorship packages, brochures or materials developed
for potential sponsors of your project.

Filename: 2020 Copy of ECM_6576210_v1_Sponsorship-Benefits-Checklist-for-Sponsorship-(
Gr.xlsx_MCCC.xlsx

File size: 24.9 kB

Max 25mb. Recommended no more than 5mb per attachment.

BUDGET AND FINANCIAL DETAILS

* indicates a required field
Sponsorship Request

What is the total cost of your project or proposal? *

$150,000.00

The total cost includes all the expenses associated with your project or event including what you are
paying for and what you are fundraising for

What is the sponsorship amount you are requesting from the City of Cockburn? *
$20,000.00

What is the total financial support you are requesting from the City of Cockburn in this application?
Max. $20,000 with lesser amounts encouraged.

Please note:
Requests for Sponsorship for Groups are to a maximum of $20,000, however sponsorships
are highly competitive and generally approved for a lesser amount.
Applicants must include a financial and/or in-kind contribution to the project or
event.
There are funding caps for particular projects and events, as follows:
e Christmas Carols or equivalent recurring community event - max. $3,000. Also applies
under Small Events Sponsorship and Community Grants categories.
o Equipment - max. $3,000. Equipment must not be for personal use, be accessible for
community or member use, and be durable - must last over 12 months.

If you are organising an event, is it free for the public to attend? If not, what is
the entry fee and where will the profits go?

We offer members to invite one guest for free to our networking events. Any business
(non members) can attend for a small charge $29.. Most of our workshops and training is
subsidised a small charge to cover for breakfast.

Must be no more than 50 words.

Will the applicant proceed with the proposal or project if funding approved is less
than the amount requested? *
@ YES O NO

Sponsorships are highly competitive
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Does the funding amount requested differ from what you have previously
received? *

OYES @ NO

If this is more or less than previously received

Sponsorship Budget Information

Please fill in the following table and provide details of any other funding contributions you
have sourced, including other sponsors, grants and donations. Please include the total
number of sponsors and each sponsor's contribution value (financial, in-kind or both). Please
tell us if these have been confirmed or not. If none are secured, please outline the proposed
sponsorship structure.

Applicants must include a financial and/or in-kind contribution to the project or
event.

All figures are GST exclusive.
Please note:
1) INCOME must include:
» all fees being charged for the project or event. (Includes entry fee)

e all funding received or pledged. Please note: schools, P&C and P&F associations must
contribute at least 50% or more of the financial contribution to the project.

e in-kind contributions. These are donations of goods/materials and services that have a
value; these may include a venue, materials donated and volunteer staff time. Please
calculate volunteer labour at $25/hour.

2) DO NOT add commas to figures, e.g. write $1000 not as $1,000 to ensure figures in the
table total correctly.

Sponsorship Budget Table

Income Source (please Income Status Amount or Value ($)
note in brackets if in-
kind)
City of Cockburn Sponsorship |Unconfirmed $20,000.00
Request *
City of Melville Confirmed $27,500.00
Atwork Confirmed $1,500.00
Landcorp Confirmed $1,500.00
DVG Melville Unconfirmed $2,900.00
The GATE Bar & Bistro Unconfirmed $2,900.00
National Storage Confirmed $2,900.00
Stocklands Confirmed $2,900.00

Total: $62,100.00

Attachments
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Please upload a bank statement for your organisation or auspice organisation
(preferably less than one month old) *

Filename: Bank statement.pdf
File size: 18.9 kB
Max 25mb

If applicable, please upload proof of other financial contributions (e.g. letters of
offer or confirmation from other funding contributors)

No files have been uploaded

Max 25mb

If applicable to your project, please upload Public Liability Certificate of Currency

Filename: EKA937511BPKCofC monique.pdf_Certificate of Currency.pdf
File size: 6.7 kB
Max 25mb

Are you applying for more than $5,000 in funding from the City of Cockburn? *
® YES O NO

If YES, you will be directed to attach AGM minutes and audited financial statements

Please attach the minutes of your organisation's (or auspice organisation's) most
recent Annual General Meeting (AGM) *

Filename: AGM Minutes 2019 (003).pdf
File size: 226.8 kB

Please attach your organisation’s (or auspice organisation's) most recent audited
financial statements *

Filename: 20191112-AM2520-2019 Audit - Financial statements.pdf
File size: 206.3 kB
This includes the profit and loss statements

Bank Account Details

If your application is successful, funds will be provided via electronic funds transfer (EFT),
and we will require the following information.

For applicants that are not incorporated, we require the banking details for the auspice
organisation.

Incorporated organisation name *
Melville Cockburn Chamber of Commerce

MName of bank or financial institution *
Westpac BANK

Branch location *
Spearwood

Account name *
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Wespac Community Solutions

Branch code/BSB number *
036069

Account number *
460931

CERTIFICATION AND SUBMISSION

* indicates a required field

This MUST be completed by an appropriately authorised person (e.g. office bearer such as
Chair, President, CEO or authorised officer) on behalf of the applicant organisation, and, if
applicable, the auspice organisation. This person may be different to the contact person
listed earlier in the application.

Certification

o | am authorised by my organisation to complete and submit this application form.

» | certify that to the best of my knowledge all of the information supplied in this
application and attachments is true and correct.

o | will notify the City of Cockburn of any change to the information supplied and any
other information or circumstances arising that may affect this application.

e | understand that this is an application only and may not necessarily result in funding
approval.

o | give permission for the City of Cockburn to contact any person or organisation
required during the assessment of the application and understand that information may
be provided to other agencies, as appropriate.

o | understand that any decision made by the City of Cockburn is final and is not subject
to an appeals process.

I understand that if the City of Cockburn approves funding:

# | will be bound by the contents of this application to carry out the project as described
in this application, which will form part of the contractual agreement with the Council.

o | will be required to accept the conditions of funding in accordance with Council
requirements.

e | will be required to comply with the City's Wastewise Event Policy and complete a
Accessible Events Checklist in relation to the funded project.

If successful:

e All necessary permits and approvals will be obtained prior to the beginning of the
project.

e The project will be covered by appropriate insurance.

e All relevant health and safety standards will be met.

» Council does not accept any liability or responsibility for the project.

» | will ensure that acquittal requirements are met within 30 days of the nominated
project completion date.
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Please fill in your details below as your endorsement of this application and the
statements above.

I have read and agree to the above certification statements *
® Yes

Authorised Person Name *
Mrs Monique Williams

Position *
E xecutive Officer

Phone Number *

0427 022 509

Must be an Australian phone number.
Must include area code.

Date *
27/03/2020

Privacy Notice

The City of Cockburn will use any information provided for the purpose of processing your
application and for remaining in contact with you.

Please note the information provided in your application and any related documentation/
discussions may be provided to members of the assessment panel in order to assist the City
of Cockburn in processing your application.

By submitting an application you consent to the City of Cockburn publishing the applicant's
name, project description and amount funded in promotional material used for promoting
the Cockburn Community Fund.

The City of Cockburn values the privacy of its customers and stakeholders. Please click here
for further information on our privacy statement.

Feedback

You are now coming to the end of the application process. Before you REVIEW and click
the SUBMIT button please take a minute to provide some feedback. This will help us to
continually improve the funding application process for our customers.

Please indicate how you found the online application process
O Very easy O Easy @ Neither O Difficult © Very difficult

How many minutes did it take you to complete this application?
25

Please estimate in minutes e.g. 1 hour = 60 minutes

Please suggest any improvements we should consider
Seems very repetitive
Must be no more than 100 words.

Thank you for your application and your feedback.
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City of Cockburn Sponsorship Program - Proposed Sponsorship Benefits Checklist

Applicant Name:

Melville Cockburn Chamber of Commerce (MCCC)

Sponsorship Proposal or Project or Event Title: Major Sponsor

Proposed sponsorship or project start date 1-Jul-20
Proposed sponsorship or project finish date: 30-Jun-21
CoC
POTENTIAL Sponsorship Offerings Description Sponsorship Sponsorship Acquittal Report Requirements
Offerings (Y/N)
Naming Rights (or the equivalent) Major Sponsor Y
on Event Promotiona ria
Event signage At all events between - 16 - 20 Banner is dispalyed CoC logo
\Websi City of Cockbum photos and link to website all events CoC Logo and photos of Cockbum on website as as
site ¥ : .
advertise with logos major sponsor link to CoC
Bi-montly newsletter :Shoutout
o Lot . 23.5 %of opens
E-newsletter - Shoutout bi monthly Y Feature "Whats on City of Cockbum” promotion - link to
City of Cockburn e-newsletter from Sarah
Members and Sponsor receive a certifcate with the CoC
'CoC logo is on all brochures, flyers, posters forms logo displayed when they join. All powerpoint
Event collateral (state what type) programmes, power point presentations ¥ presentations at events display the CoC logo on each
slide. All e-news CoC logo Promotional flyers/ ads
Email signatures CoC logo on event email signatures ¥ CoC logos appears MCCC Email signatures
Event letterhead CoC logo on event letterhead Y Welcome Letter to members CoC logo
. . . LIIRESIN, L EUOUR, 1Ll dl 1] = dUVETUSED EVETILD WILHL # Wiy . n . .
Social media sites of Cornelehaimn Y Fam, Linkedin Instgram promoting CoC events with |
[Advertising (hard’ online) Newspapers, fiyer y I(:‘.l{!a,renrmumr;r newspaper CoC logo features on all ads &
Electronic signage - location
Promaotional items Keytags, flyers, and
Videos where can video be viewed CoC logo appears on bers keytags
CoC Promotional Material At all co hosted CoC and MCCC events like Breakfast
Brochures! flyers/ posters to hand out at event flyers / membership pack features logo and CoC
|Banners CoC banners to put up at event Y All events MCCC Banner with CoC logo displayed
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City of Cockburn Sponsorship Program - Proposed Sponsorship Benefits Checklist
Acknowledgement of CoC TeSHRT BCkNOMSAQES SUPPOTT OT COC 25 Tajor

Verbal mentions of CoC dunng public
|announcements

At all events between - 16 - 20

sponsors and Mavor and councillors
MNewisetter published on facebook. Every linkedin post
fuith #CoC

Digital where will any mention of CoC appear in social media? All events advertised with CoC logo posted on Facebook
Facebook appox 12 post per year of events in CoC
Twatter na
R Revolviing banner display CoC iconic landscape and
g approx 3 - 6 posts . . logo with link to website. Of City of Cockburn

\Website ;:g;,sgﬂoms of Mayor and Councillors.. Thank you CoC Major| 4 hast used for all linkedi ts and facebook t
Hashtags Use of event hashtags
Videos Date of launch/ duration and via what medium/s all emails sig feature logo of CoC
Emails signature logo
Media

Date/ time of release, what publications they were sent to, was
Press releases CoC mentioned

Provide PDF's of all releases
Radio na
™ na Community newspaper CoC logo features on all ads
Newspaper (hard/ online)} approx 6 Community News. Councillor and Mayors and staff can attend all events

CoC Booth/ Presence

CoC booth and/or other physical presence alt event

Staff and Sitting members attend Business Forums/\Workh

VIP/ Incentives

Passes/ entry to event/ other activites

over 80 times events are posted through mailchimp
which includes Women in Busi Busi After Hours

Database

Access to database ability to use event database for post
event marketing purposes

Other

(Guest speaker -Murdoch University

LIty OF LOCKDUM OPPOFTURITY TO CO NOST BVENT WITh MLLL ana
nnnorbunite to ha @ beunnta cnaakar
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Instructions for Sponsorship Recipients

Acquittal Process for Sponsorship

Recipients of City of Cockburn Sponsorship are required to submit a completed Acquittal
Form and associated documentation within 30 days of the sponsored project or event date
stated in the Application for Sponsorship.
Requests to extend the acquittal date must be in writing and should include an interim
report outlining the project's progress.
The following documentation is to be provided, in accordance with the Conditions of
Sponsorship:
1. The completed City of Cockburn Sponsorship Acquittal Form that includes a Project
Report.
2. Evidence of sponsorship outcomes. This can include but is not limited to copies
of photos, media articles and promotional materials such as flyers, posters and
advertising.

You must complete and submit this form no later than 30 days following your project. If you
fail to do so, you may not be eligible to apply for further funding from the City of Cockburn
and may be pursued for reimbursement.

This completion of this form should be overseen by someone with appropriate knowledge of
the funded project or event.

For any further queries, please contact the City of Cockburn Grants and Research team on
(08) 9411 3444 or communitygrants@cockburn.wa.gov.au
Project Report

* indicates a required field

Project Details

Sponsorship Reference MAR19 SG04
Number * This can be found on your submissions page when logged in, or
on your application receipt email, or your letter of offer

Applicant Organisation Melville Cockburn Chamber of Commerce
Name *
Project or Event Title * Melville Cockburn Chamber of Commerce (MCCC)
Sponsorship Amount * $20,000.00

Must be a dollar amount.
Level of Sponsorship Major Sponsor

e.g. Official Sponsor, Naming Rights, Major Partner, etc.
Project or Event Start 01/04/2019
Date Must be a date.
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Project or Event End 27/03/2020
Date Must be a date.

Project Report

Description of project or event and outcomes *
The Melville Cockburn Chamber of Commerce (MCCC) is the pivotal connection for (SME)
small-medium enterprises within the City of Cockburn and City of Melville,

The MCCC supports the small business by providing a platform to promote their business,
update their skills and opportunities to make new connections to grow their business. We
do this by supporting local businesses to fully engage with other businesses and the City

of Cockburn elected members and staff. The MCCC provide a resource and vehicle for local
businesses to attend workshops & events to upscale their skills. Business forums to be well
informed from Industry professionals, educational providers, government ministers and the
like, The MCCC hosted many networking events for members to make new connections and
form long-term relationships that are mutually beneficial to grow their business.

During the period of this ‘project’, 01st April 2019 - 27 March 2020 the MCCC has
successfully executed 18 events. Including breakfast presentations, networking events,
large scale functions and launching two new events with the support of Sarah Kahle from
the City of Cockburn.

Business Connect 02nd May - 17 October

MCCC and City of Cockburn launched the "Business Connect Series" breakfast presentation
hosted and held at the City of Cockburn

02nd May the first breakfast presentation "Navigating the digital landscape" & "Make more
money online 2019”

Attendees heard from guest Speakers: Community News - Marketing Director - Guy Turner
& Tamika Cruickshank - Group Sales Director and Gareth Lane, Digital Marketing Director at
Concise Digital & Co-Founder of 1Q Seven

17th October the second breakfast presentation "Commercial Leasing: Building the
foundation of your Brick & Mortar Business"

Attendees heard from guest speakers: Glen O'Brien, Owner Principal Salt Property Group,

Lisa Legena, Manager of Business Advisory Services Small Business Development
Corporation (SBDC). Jennifer Black Cockburn Gateway Shopping City.

Attendees enjoyed breakfast, networking and hearing from industry professionals and
government representatives followed by an interactive Q & A.

Business After Hours - 8 Networking Events

During the "project”, we held 8 "Business after Hours" 5 held within the City of Cockburn
and 1 co-hosted with City of Cockburn & Murdach. This was one of our most successful
Business After Hours, held on the 27th August 2019 With over 135 registered business
owners, guests, VIPs and postgraduates. Attendees heard from City of Cockburn CEO
Stephen Cain updating the City of Cockburn vision and plans for the future with a
PowerPoint presentation. Guest enjoyed networking, food and refreshments and heard from
other keynote speakers about the opportunities and benefits of obtaining Post Graduation
degree from Murdoch University.

Business Forum - June 2019
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The MCCC held its annual "Business Forum" June 2019 where businesses, employers,
members and sponsors heard from an array of keynote speakers from academics, industry
professionals and government representatives.

Keynote speakers.

Setting a high-performance culture - Lisa Kazalac,

Principle and Founder of Professional Vogue

Expansion into International Markets - Dr Sandy Chong

Responsible Corporate and Employee Citizenship -Dr Megan Paull Murdoch University

Ben Morton MP -Federal Liberal Member for Tangney, Assistant Minister to the Prime
Minister and Cabinet

In addition, some of our members participated in the Business Forum Expo. This is an
opportunity for the MCCC members to showcase their services and products to the
attendees. Cockburn local business including, Coral Horizon, Sylex, Ecko Kleen, Cockburn
Community News and Small Business Development Corporation, Business foundations.
Guest also enjoyed food and refreshments whilst networking. Incredible prizes were on offer.

South West Group - Co-hosted 06th November

MCCC supported the South West Group event held at Cockburn ARC

31 Veterans Parade Cockburn Central, WA 6164

Purpose of the event

Promote (1) the region’s attractiveness for industry and enterprise and (2) by informing
SMEs in the region about:

* Imminent developments by the Perron Group and the opportunities they should present.
* The type of free and paid support by business service providers operating in the region.
* Any incentives, grants and subsidies available to encourage business expansion

and/or job growth.

Panel discussion

Tony Romano President of the MCCC was part of the PANEL DISCUSSION (Q&A)

Support services for local businesses to help (1) capitalise on opportunities from Perron
Group's major projects and (2) develop their business and capabilities in a general sense.

Women in Business 20th September

MCCC with the support of the City of Cockburn held the inaugural Women in Business
luncheon in September. With 60 women in attendance enjoying a 3 course sit-down lunch
at the Cockburn ARC. Guest received a delegates bag from City of Cockburn with, gifts,
information and special offers. City of Cockburn Deputy Mayor Lee-anne Smith MC'd the
event, and guest listened to inspirational speakers:-

Alyssa Hayden MLA

Shadow Minister for Tourism; Small Business

Opposition Whip in the Legislative Assembly

Stephanie Cain - Midfielder
Fremantle Football Club Women's League

Jacky Finlayson - Executive Director
Small Business Services - Small Business Development Corporation
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Dr Moira Watson - Director of the MBA and the Director Quality & Accreditation at Murdoch
University

City of Melville and MCCC - Business Breakfast Series
Don't Fall into the Social Media Trap! April 2019

Presenter - Peter Walmsley

Interactive workshop and learn about the strengths and limitations of social media, how to
develop a clear strategy and find out what content will resonate with your target market to
build a Community around your brand.

Business Breakfast Series - August 2019

Networking and Relationships

Presenter John Carlson

An interactive workshop and learn about how to successfully network and create meaningful
long term relationships

Business Breakfast Series - October 2019

Presenter Lisa Kazalac

Creating a high-performance culture

An interactive discussion on how to keep your younger workforce engaged and motivated
and unlocking the benefits of coaching and mentoring to drive high performance in your
business.

Annual Christmas Networking event 29th November -Stocklands

A free event for members and guests.

Guest enjoyed food and refreshments and a surprise guest

Include what occurred, when and where it was held, who was involved (organisers and attendees),
background to project (if applicable - e.g. annual event)

Did the project meet the anticipated outcomes indicated in your original
application? Please explain
We achieved our outcomes and met the expectations of the application and more.

MCCC events attendance have improved year on year. Our networking event Businss
after Hours on average 10% increase in numbers. Over 1100 people attended our events /
training and workshops up 20% from 2018.

The launch of Women in Business in September was very successful. The feedback was
incredible with incredible inspirational speakers. An event the MCCC was very proud to
execute with such success.

The launch with City of Cockburn Business Connect Series was well received and we
anticipate numbers will increase. However, | believe there is some cannibalisation in some
of events with the City promoting and offering free events which can dilute our message and
our professionalism.

MCCC had two new sponsorship join in 2019 however we have two sponsors pending.
The MCCC implemented members joining calendar year.

Member retention for the year was 70% up from 63% previous year.

Membership is now by the calendar year in 2019 = 178 members with 53 new members
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MCCC supported and produced an article for Cockburn Gazette and City of Melville
supporting the City of Cockburn campaign "shop and buy local"

Include any factors that may have affected your project (both positive and negative), lessons learnt,
any success stories, any changes you made from original application concept

How many nity n b

1113
Must be a number.

s participated in this project or event? *

Did you record any aspect of your project or event through photographs, audio or
video? *
® Yes O No

Did you provide any acknowledgement of the City of Cockburn as a sponsor of
your project or event? *

® Yes O No

N.B. This is a condiiton of your sponsorship and should be as to your application e.g. in a media
release, in a speech, on your website, in a project/annual report or newsletter, on social media,
branded materials

Please provide details

At all events, President Tony Romano speech acknowledges the City of Cockburn as major
sponsors and thanks to them for their great support. The President also acknowledges
councillors, staff, including Mayor Logan Howlett and Mayoress Pat Howlett. The MCCC
website acknowledges with a thankyou to our Sponsors City of Cockburn,

At the AGM in October Tony Romano speech and PowerPoint presentation acknowledges the
City of Cockburn as great support and sponsors of the MCCC

MCCC website Thank you to City of Cockburn

MCCC newsletter "Shoutout" City of Cockburn in acknowledged thank you to our sponsor
this is also mentioned and shared on Facebook. This is sent to over 2000 subscribers

City of Cockburn CEO Stephen Cain provided an updated at the City of Cockburn and
Murdoch Business After Hours in August.

Monique Williams MCCC wrote an article supporting the City of Cockburn strategy "Think
Local Buy Local" featured from page of the Cockburn and Melville Gazette May 2019

See uploaded document for proof

Evidence of Sponsorship Outcomes

These can include photos, flyers, media articles,
press releases, snapshots of social media posts.

Upload files: i . i
Filename: MCCC 2019 - 2020 Acquittal Final.pdf

File size: 3.7 MB
e.q. Copies of programmes, designs for branded materials, flyers,
articles, photographs, feedback

and/for
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Provide web link: http://www.mccc.org.au
Must be a URL, can include dropbox or other fileshare files

and/or
Provide additional This year we employed a professional photographer to
details: take photos at each events. Members have the capacity to

also purchase the photos.

MCCC and City of Cockburn Women in Business
September was recorded by a professional film company
and will be uploaded on the website shortly.

MCCC also employed an account manager 8 hours

per week to support our members with attending
events, supporting advertising on social media and other
platforms.

At all events, Tony Romano verbally acknowledgements
of all City of Cockburn Councillors Staff and elected
members.

Networking events during this period were well attended
by the Cockburn business owners, staff and the City of
Cockburn including the CEO Stephen Cain, Mayor Hon.
Logan Howlett and wife Pat Howlett, Deputy Mayor Lara
Kirkwood, Cr Keven Allen, Cr Dr Chamonix Terblanche, Cr
Lee-Anne Smith, Mr Don Green - Director Governance &
Community Services Sarah Kahle Business Engagement
Officer, Samantha Seymour-Eyles, Tammy Chappel, Tony
Natale.

e.g. include any URLs to social media posts, description of verbal
acknowldgements, attendance by City of Cockburn staff and
Elected Members

Can we use your media ® Yes (O No O Please contact us first
content in our own
communications? *

Declaration and Feedback
* indicates a required field
Certification

This section must be completed by an appropriately authorised person on behalf of the
applicant organisation (may be different to the contact person listed in the application
form).

| hereby certify that the organisation named in this Acquittal Form has received
City of Cockburn Sponsorship and has expended these funds in accordance with
the Sponsorship Application and as detailed in this Acquittal Form.
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I have read and agree to ® Yes
the above certification
statement *

Name of Authorised Mrs Monique Williams

Person * Must be Organisation Chairperson, Treasurer or authorised office-
bearer

Position * Executive Officer

Position held in applicant organisation (e.g. CEO, Treasurer)

Phone Number * 427 022 509
We may contact you to verify that this is authorised by the
applicant organisation

Email * monigue@mccc.org.au
Must be an email address.

Date * 27/03/2020
Must be a date

Feedback

You are now coming to the end of this form. Before you REVIEW your submission and click
the SUBMIT button please take a few moments to provide some feedback. This will help us
to continually improve the funding acquittal process.

Please indicate how you found the acquittal process:
O Very easy O Easy O Neutral @ Difficult O Very Difficult

How many minutes in total did it take you to complete this form?
2400
Estimate in minutes (i.e. 1 hour = 60 minutes)

Please provide us with your suggestions about any improvements and/or
additions to this form that you think we need to consider:

As we do many events, functions, workshop throughout the year, lots of hours are spent
collating and putting this information together and it takes lots of time. With one large
event, the process is easier with 20 events its lots of information to collect. We all work time
and its very time consuming

Must be no more than 100 words
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9.3

(2020/MINUTE NO 0007) GRANTS AND DONATIONS
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDED ALLOCATIONS 2020/21

Author(s) K Jamieson
Attachments 1. Grants, Donations and Sponsorship
Recommended Allocations Budget 2020/21 1
2. Cockburn Wetlands Precinct Annual KPI and
Funding Reports I

RECOMMENDATION
That Council

(1) adopts the grants, donations and sponsorship recommended
allocations for 2020/21 as attached to the agenda, and

(2) advertises the availability of the grants, donations and sponsorship
in two instalments closing at the end of September 2020 and
March 2021 respectively

COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION
MOVED Cr P Eva SECONDED Cr P Corke

That the recommendation be adopted.

CARRIED 4/0

Background

A budget of $1,455,000 for grants, donations and sponsorship for
2020/21 has been proposed, which is subject to Council approval. The
Grants and Donations Committee is empowered to recommend to
Council how these funds are to be distributed.

Submission

The City received annual funding reports (attached) from:
] Native ARC
) The Wetlands Centre Cockburn

Report

COMMITTED/CONTRACTUAL ARRANGEMENTS

As can be seen in the budget attachment, there are some funding
arrangements that are deemed to be committed by legal agreements,
such as leases, or by previous Council decisions.
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There are two commitments that require approval for the 2020/21

financial year:

o Funding of $93,782.45 (ex. GST) to support the administration
costs of Native ARC.

) Funding of $93,782.45 (ex. GST) to support the administration
costs of the Wetlands Centre Cockburn.

Cockburn Wetlands Precinct Funding

At its meeting on 9 August 2018, Council adopted the following
recommendation of the Grants and Donations Committee from its
meeting on 17 July 2018:

That Council approve the donation request from both the
Cockburn Wetlands Education Centre and Native ARC for funding
towards the annual administration costs for each organisation
($90,765.25 (ex. GST) for Cockburn Wetlands Education Centre
and $90,765.25 (ex. GST) for Native ARC) for a period of five
years, indexed annually according to Perth consumer price index
and also being subject to:

(1) The Cockburn Wetlands Precinct members continuing to
provide an annual report detailing their progress in meeting
designated joint Key Performance Indicators (KPI’s) as
endorsed previously by Council on 8 May 2014.

(2) The Cockburn Wetlands Education Centre and Native ARC
each providing a separate annual report which summarises
the previous 12 months activities and their progress in
meeting designated individual organisation KPI's previously
endorsed by Council on 8 May 2014.

(3) The Cockburn Wetlands Education Centre and Native ARC
adopting two new joint KPI's which reflect a commitment to
the Wetlands Precinct redevelopment process.

Native ARC and the Wetlands Centre Cockburn have now provided
their reports for 2019/20, which are attached to the agenda, and it is
recommended to approve the 2020/21funding of $93,782.45 (including
CPI of 2.2%) to each organisation.

Cockburn Community Men’s Shed Funding

The City has also received a request for funding from the Cockburn
Community Men's Shed (as per previous Agenda item) and it is
recommended to approve a new allocation of $36,000 (ex. GST)
funding for 2020/21.

Melville Cockburn Chamber of Commerce (MCCC)
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The City has also received a request for sponsorship funding from the
MCCC (as per previous Agenda item) and it is recommended to

approve a new allocation of $20,000 (ex. GST) for 2020/21 subject to
the development of a Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) and the
MCCC meeting and reporting on agreed Key Performance Indicators.

There are no other significant changes from last financial year in the
new allocations that require additional approval.

The total allocation proposed for committed/contractual funding
arrangements for 2020/21 is $500,000.

DONATIONS

It is proposed that Council will seek applications for Donations from not-
for-profit organisations in two instalments. It is proposed for 2020/21 to
have the first round closing on 25 September 2020 and the second
round closing on 26 March 2021.

Applications for Donations will be assessed against the Council Policy
‘Community Funding for Community Organisations and Individuals
(Grants, Donations and Sponsorships)’ and associated ‘Guidelines for
Community Funding for Community Organisations and Individuals’. A
report will then be presented to the Committee to consider the requests
for Donations and make a recommendation to Council.

An allocation of $240,000 for Donations is proposed for 2020/21.
SPONSORSHIPS

It is proposed to seek applications for Sponsorship for Groups in line
with the other funding opportunities closing on 25 September 2020 and
26 March 2021, other than Sponsorship for Individuals, where
applications are invited all year round.

It is proposed to allocate $100,000 of the 2020/21 Grants and
Donations Budget to the Sponsorship program ($90,000 for
Groups and $10,000 for Individuals).

GRANTS

As can be seen in the budget attachment, there are a number of grants
for which there are established criteria and processes in place.

The 2020/21 Budget proposes increases or decreases to allocations
listed below based on expenditure in the previous year and anticipated
subscriptions in the new financial year. Furthermore, the impact of
COVID-19 in the last financial year meant that some minor funding
programs were undersubscribed, and it is anticipated that demand for
some of these programs will increase again in 2020/21.
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o Emergency Disaster Fund decrease from $60,000 to $30,000.
. Community Grants Program increase from $72,000 to $100,000.
. Grants General Welfare decrease from $30,000 to $10,000.
o Youth Arts Scholarships increase from $1,000 to $5,000.
. Alcoa Cockburn Community Projects Fund decrease from $3,745

to $0, as this partnership agreement has now concluded.
. Environmental Education Initiatives Program increase from $3,000
to $15,000.

. Security Subsidy for Seniors increase from $48,000 to $50,000.

There are no other significant changes from last financial year in the
new allocations.

The total allocation proposed for grants programs for 2020/21 is
$615,000.

Carry Forward - COVID-19 Community Funding

There is one proposed carry forward item being the balance of funds
from the 2019/20 Budget for the COVID-19 Community Funding of
$113,543. It is proposed to run a recovery-focussed round concurrently
with the next round of funding in September.

Strategic Plans/Policy Implications

Community, Lifestyle & Security

A vibrant healthy, safe, inclusive and connected community.

Provide a diverse range of accessible, inclusive and targeted
community services, recreation programs, events and cultural activities
that enrich our community.

Foster local community identity and connection through social inclusion,
community development, and volunteering opportunities.

Listening & Leading

A community focused, sustainable, accountable and progressive
organisation.

Ensure good governance through transparent and accountable,
planning, processes, reporting, policy and decision making.

Budget/Financial Implications

A budget of $1,455,000 for grants, donations and sponsorship for
2020/21 has been proposed, which is subject to Council approval.
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Following is a summary of the proposed grants, donations and
sponsorship allocations.

Summary of Proposed Allocations

Committed/Contractual Donations $500,000
Donations $240,000
Sponsorship $100,000
Specific Grant Programs $615,000
Total $1,455,000
Total Funds Available $1,455,000
Less Total of Proposed Allocations $1,455,000
Balance $0

There is also an unspent amount of $113,543 from the 2019/20 Grants
and Donations Budget that will be carried forward for the COVID-19
Community Funding Program.

Legal Implications
N/A
Community Consultation

Council’'s grants, donations and sponsorships are advertised widely in
the local community through the City’s website, local media, social
media and Council networks. It is recommended that advertising start
immediately following the Council decision to ensure a wide
representation of applications.

Risk Management Implications

The Council allocates a significant amount of money to support
individuals and groups through a range of funding programs. There are
clear guidelines and criteria established to ensure that Council’s intent
for the allocation of funds are met. To ensure the integrity of the
process there is an acquittal process for individuals and groups to
ensure funds are used for the purpose they have been allocated.

The reputation of the City of Cockburn could be seriously compromised
should funds allocated to individuals or groups who did not meet the
criteria and guidelines and or did not use the funds for the purposes
they were provided. Adherence to these requirements is essential.

Advice to Proponent(s)/Submitters

Those who lodged a submission have been advised that it is to be
considered at the 21 July 2020 Grants & Donations Committee Meeting
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and then an outcome will be advised following the 13 August 2020
Council Meeting.

Implications of Section 3.18(3) Local Government Act, 1995

Nil
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GRANTS, DONATIONS & SPONSORSHIP RECOMMENDED ALLOCATIONS BUDGET 2020/21
Activity
OP 315 Allocated Actual Proposed Council Decision/
Natural Description 2019120 2019120 2020121 Comments Delegated Authority
Acc 6810
Donations
C itted/Contractual
Two-year partnership agreement with LGS WA, for Education for
8243 |Little Green Steps WA Partnership Agreement 27,847 27,847 0|Sustainability in the Early Years for 2019 and 2020, as to Council Council Decision
Decision 8 May 2018
. , " Funding for Cockburn Community Men's Shed Inc. to support the - -
8896 |Cockbum Community Men's Shed Coordinator 47,500 47,500 36,000 P e e e O e e S Council Decision
9239 |Native ARC 91,764 91,764 93,782 D?::‘;"gl ‘2"2‘,‘2‘;‘”" the annual administration costs of Native ARC |0, pecision
Donation to support the annual ation costs of The Wetlands . .
9310 |The Wetlands Centre Cockburn 91.764 91.764 93,782 Centre Cockburn (plus CPI 2.2%) Council Decision
9317 |Pineview Preschool Maintenance Contribution 7,051 7,951 8126 2‘;’,‘5‘:?' contribution for maintenance of grounds and building (plus CPI |, oo oo eement
. . X Subsidised fees for Dolphin Swim Club at Cockburn ARC (as to Minute . .
9322 |Cockbum ARC/Dolphin Swim Club Subsidy 150,000 150,000 150,000 605_7 of O_CM 13”’” 2017) Council Decision
9398 |Cockbum Senior Citizens Building Donation 9,757 9,757 9,972 ;’;;:;’ with maintenance costs as per lease agreement (plus CPI Lease Agreement
9559 |Cockbum Cricket Club Insurance 1,500 1,500 1,500|Commitment included in the lease agreement (flat fee Lease Agreement
. Reimbursement of 50% of annual rates payable by Spearwood
9574 |SPearwood Dalmatinac Club - Rates 12,685, 12,685 12,964|Dalmatinac Club for 41 Azelia Rd, Spearwood as to Council Decision |[Council Decision
Reimbursement
14 May 2009
Two-year agreement for $20,000 per annum in 2020121 and 2021/22,
. and peppercorn lease, subject to develop of a M dum of . .
MNew |Melville Cockbum Chamber of Commerce (MCCC) 0 0 20,000 Understanding (MOU) and the MCCC meeting and #ling on agreed Council Decision
Key Performance Indicators
Future Allocati 0 0 73,873|(To be allocated throughout the year)
C itted/C. actual Sub Total 440,767 440,767 500,000
Donations to Organisations
9196 |Donations to Organisati 235,930 235,930 240,000{Amount set aside for allocation in the two funding rounds for 2020/21  [Council Decision
D i to Org, Sub Total 235,930 235,930 240,000
Sponsorships
9197 |Sponsorships 87,500 87,500 90,000|Amount set aside for ion in the two funding rounds for 2020/21  |Council Decision
9197 |Individual Sponsorships 10,000 2,180 10,000|Fermal sponsorship program for individuals Delegated Authority LGACS 14
I_Bpnmnr\shJips Sub Total 97,500] 89,680 10 _r_E,uno
Grants
Financial and natural resource management training support program
8040 |Landowner Biodiversity Conservation Program 35,000/ 16,708 35,000|for Cockbumn landowners to conserve the natural bushland and wetland |Delegated Authority AEWS
N 3i ituations as to DA ACS13 (revised .
9004 |Emergency Disaster Fund 60,000/ 15,000 as per Council Decision 10 February 2011) Delegated Authority ACS13
9015 |Youth Academic Grants 2,000 700 Assists young peaple to travel to attend academic programs and Delegated Authority LGACS2
Assists young people in Cockburn representing WA or Australia in
9031 |Junior Sports Travel Assistance Program 55,000/ 27,600 55,000(i or internati team or individual sports by providing Deleg LGACS13
assistance for travel to competitions.
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Activity
oP 315 Allocated Actual Proposed Council Decision/
Natural Description 2019120 2019120 2020121 Comments Delegated Authority
Acc 6810 i _ _ i _
9240 |Sustainability Grants Program 40,000 35,055 40,000 a’:";’o;o 9 n with Council Decision on 13 0y e gated Authority LGACS 14
Subsidy prog that allows Indig: and multicultural Cockburn
9241 |Len Packham Hall Subsidy (Burdiya) 6,000 1,786 6,000|families to access funds to assist with hall hire costs for hosting Delegated Authority LGACS2
fi l: ials and cultural events
9312 |C ity Grants Program 72,000 59,964 100,000|Formal grant p for local groups and organi Delegated / LGACS14
9314_|Provide Bins Sporting Events 1,000 1,000/ 1,000[Provide bins to schools for sports carnivals Delegated Authority LGACS2
Assists community groups to conduct menthly meetings and events,
Community/Residents Assoc. Hall Hire Subsidy and funds for incorporation/set up costs for new residents associations
os2r and Support Program 10,000 4,523 12,000 and donations for small PO box hire, adopted by Council on 14 Deleg Authortty LGACST
September 2017
320 |Cultural Grants Program 40,000] 35,933 40,000(Provide small grants to cultural and artistic groups and individuals Delegated Authority LGACS 14
| 9331 |Bus Hire Subsid 1,50C 288/ 1,500[Provides a subsidy towards the bus hire for community organisations _|Delegated Authority LGACS2
335 |Grants General Welfare 30,00¢ 5,456 10,000|Miscellaneous requests for small donations as per DA LGACS2 legated Authority LGACS2
341 _|C ity Group Newsl bsidy 11,00C 9,365 11,000|Assists community groups to disseminate inf ion Deleg: Authority LGACST
. ‘Small Events Sponsorship Program for local events for community .
9373 |Small Events Sponsorship Program 40,000 34,814 40,000 organisations Delegated Authority LGACS14
9396 |U Fund 1,000 0] 1,000{Small grants for youth for cultural/arts initiatives and events Delegated Authority LGACS2
- sist young people to travel in order to participate in performing/arts -

9389 |Youth Arts Scholarships 1,000 0 5,000 N TS pr T Delegated Authority LGACS2
9475 _|Alcoa Cockburn Ci ity Projects Fund 3745 3.745| 0|Partnership with Alcoa has finished Deleg ity LGACS2
: ol Iniiat Support for Environmental Services to assist schools to facilitate i
9490 |E Program 3,000 3,000 15,0001 vironmental education Delegated Authority LGACS2

9517 _|Cockburn Community Group Volunteer Insurance 15,000 11,276 15,000|Cockburn Community Group Insurance P
9535 |Council Match Staff Donation 2,000 1,399 2,000|Council to match staff fundraising effort Delegated Authority LGACS2
Support to schools for safety progi for getting to schoal .
9649 |Safety House/Walk to School Program 1,000 0] 1,000 and to attend Safety House shows in Safety House month Delegated Authority LGACS2
; Grants matched by local sporting clubs for minor capital works on .
9673 |Sport and Recreation Club Grants 35,000 33,237 35,000 Council owned facilities and sporti ui nt Delegated Authority LGACS13
9674 |Grants to Schools 9,000 8,094 9,000|Fer small denations to schools for miner items Authority LGACS2
9688 |Security Subsidy for Seniors 48,000 48,433 50,000{Subsidy program for security devices for seniors gated Authority LGACS2
. X Funding Program adopted by Council on 14 May 2020 (balance of .
9732 |COVID-18 Community Funding 153,558 40,015/ Oltunds from 2019720 to be carried forward to 2020/21 financial year) Delegated Authority LGACS2
9495 |Donation and Grants 1A N 0 o 98,500 (Remarllr::nert:;grant allocations, to be allocated based on expenditure
Grants Programs Sub Total 675,803 397,491 615,000
Totals 1,450,00€ 1,163,868] 1,455,000
Bud 1,450,00C 1,455,000/
Balance 0
(Carried Forward 2019/20 GAD Budget
§ . |Fur|ding Program adopted by Council on 14 May 2020 (balance of .
9732 [COVID-19 Cemmunity Funding 153,558 40,015 113,543 funds from 2015/20 1o be carried forward to 2020/21 financial year) Delegated Authority LGACS2
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COCKBURN WETLANDS PRECINCT STEERING COMMITTEE

C/- The Wetlands Centre Cockburn, 184 Hope Road, Bibra Lake WA 6163

N7
N
.. eﬂandsCenfre Q’\ Scouts

Natl ive HRC Comact with Nr?una

7 July 2020

Ms Melissa Bolland

Grants and Research Coordinator, Community Development
City of Cockburn

PO Box 1215

BIBRA LAKE DC 6965

Dear Ms Bolland,

RE:2020-2021 Budget Request for Precinct Partners The Wetlands Centre
Cockburn (TWC) and Native ARC Inc. (NARC)

The City of Cockburn sponsorships for $90,765.25 (including CPI increase) provided
to TWC and NARC were renewed for five years on the 24 August 2018. The Boards
of TWC and NARC are requested to report on Key Performance Indicators (KPI's) for
the Cockburn Wetlands Precinct and report on their individual performance and KPI's
for the 2019/2020 year.

The KPI's reflect the requirements outlined by the Grants and Donations Committee
on the 8 May 2014 and two additional KPI's developed by TWC and NARC which
reflect our commitment to the Cockburn Wetlands Precinct Development.

In five years when the next round of funding is reviewed, KPIs will be reviewed. Since
2014, TWC and NARC have jointly participated in activities that have benefited the
Precinct and these are reflected in the Precinct KPI's.

Yours sincerely,

ol t=—

Philip Jennings Robert Dunn
President Chairman
The Wetlands Centre Cockburn Native ARC Inc.

Cc: Mayor Logan Howlett
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DISCLAIMER: Wetlands Precinct Development

It is recognised both groups’ abilities to meet the existing individual and joint KPI's
will be limited due to the redevelopment of the site. Both groups’ day to day
activities, delivery of education, training and land care services have been affected
and reduced.

During construction, NARC has continued to deliver wildlife treatment and
rehabilitation services to the Cockburn and wider Perth community. Off-site
rehabilitation has expanded significantly which has increased administration
requirements on NARC (insurance, risk management and licensing from relevant
wildlife agencies). Site tours and onsite education capabilities for NARC are no
longer possible.

WCC venue hire capabilities and program delivery has been significantly reduced
during this time.

DISCLAIMER: Native ARC Covid-19

In March 2020, the Executive Committee decided to reduce the number of
volunteers at Native ARC to ensure the health and wellness of volunteers and their
families.

Veterinary Services were declared an essential service by the Federal Government
and exempt from pandemic related shutdowns. As Veterinary Services were
classified as essential services, Native ARC continued to admit wildlife needing
veterinary attention. We felt that without access to our services, there would be
limited (and in some cases, zero) services for wildlife in the Cockburn and wider
Perth Metropolitan region. This could have potentially resulted in injury/disease to
members of the public who attempted to care for these animals themselves and/or
mental distress to members of the public who may had to of witnessed the animal
suffering. Furthermore, we felt that wild animals have just as much need for
veterinary services as companion animals.

Native ARC remained fully operational during Covid-19 with all six part time
employees voluntarily working full time to keep the Hospital open.

Between April = June 2020 we admitted 206 more animals in comparison to the
same period in 2019. This was most likely a result of two other major wildlife
rehabilitation centres being forced to close during Covid-19.
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2019-2020 KPI’'s Developed for Joint Programs
Conducted by the Wetland Precinct Members

KPI Annual [ KPI
No. Objective

| | Date | Progress
05/10/2019 | “Turtle Fest".

An educational day showcasing the importance
of the SW Snake-Necked Turtle which is
endemic to the Southwestern part of Western
Australia.

166 participants

$1,001.40 total raised

‘ One community education program in partnership with
the City of Cockburn.
Date | Progress
05/06/2020 ' World Environment Day Schools Festival
(Cancelled due to COVID-19).

[ | Attend a minimum of one Cockburn Community Event.
| | Date Progress
17/11/2019 | Sustainable Christmas Expo.
Precinct Members ran a coffee and cake stall
for the City of Cockburn's event.
| $381.75 total raised
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KPI Annual KPI
No. Objective

Date Progress
Current No corporate events for 2019-2020.

Note: Precinct partners contributed additional
time and resources towards the Wetlands
Precinct redevelopment. Construction
commenced February 2020 and will be
ongoing until 2021.

On hold City of Cockburn will coordinate a kick-start
meeting for preliminary planning of new lease
agreements, onsite signage and new precinct
name and branding.

5 Deliver an events calendar updated at least quarterly
| highlighting events within the Precinct. |
On hold Planning will follow the completion of

renaming and branding.

Ongoing 10 Precinct Meetings held during 2019/2020

| Ongoing Representatives
Native ARC: Diane Munrowd, Bob Dunn
(Observer Dean Huxley)

TWC: Denise Crosbie, Felicity Bairstow
(Observer Danielle Tyrls)

Scouts: Marie Gibson, Damien Hills
(Observer Gavin Satie)
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2019-2020 Additional Joint Programs Conducted by the Wetland

Precinct Members

1

2

3

1 2019/2020
2019/2020

15/07/2019
01/08/2019
05/08/2019
27/08/2019
11/09/2019
24/10/2019
13/11/2019
16/01/2020
04/06/2020
18/06/2020

Several World Environment Day planning meetings held.
Event cancelled due to COVID-19.

Several Turtle Fest planning and preparation meetings
held.

Precinct redevelopment meetings with NS Projects, Site
Architecture, ETC electrics incorporating visioning &
strategic planning, site assessments, sewage lines,
electrical surveying. Additional onsite meetings as
required.
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Part A - Sponsorship request

The Wetlands Centre Cockburn

Position Gross salary  Workers 9.5% Super Long Totals
compensation = Guarantee service
leave
Wetlands Officer
(1.0FTE) 67,019.76 6,366.94 | 1,13342 | $74,520.12
T 21,078.88 2,002.47 $23,081.35
General Assistant (0.2FTE) 8,309.25 789.39 | 14052 | $9,239.16
Landcare/Ed. Assistant (casual) 6.513.95 54278 $7.056.73
1,706.17 $1,7086.17
2019 - 2020 Total Salary Package $115,603.53
2019 - 2020 City of Cockburn Sponsorship Received | $91,763.65
2019 - 2020 TWC Additional Contribution | $23,839.88

Totals
2019 - 2020 City of Cockburn sponsorship received $91,763.65
CPI change March Quarter 2019 to March Quarter 2020 (2.2%) $2,018.80
2020 - 2021 City of Cockburn sponsorship request $93,782.45
Position Gross salary Workers 9.5% Long Totals
compensation | syper service
Guarantee |eave
Wetlands Officer
_(1.0FTE) 68,494.19 6,506.95 1,157.37 | $76,158.51
Administrative Officer (0.6FTE) | 55 gg0 9o 2,753.19 $31,734.09
General Assistant (0.2FTE) 8,492.05 806.74 | 14360 | $9,442.39
Landcare Assistant (0.1FTE) 4,430.40 420.89 4,851.29
Educ. Assistant (casual) Unknown: dependent on education bookings
| 11,987.15 $1,987.15
2020 - 2021 Proposed Total Salary Package $124,173.43
2020 - 2021 City of Cockburn Sponsorship Request $93,782.45
2020 - 2021 Proposed TWC Contribution (minimum) $30,390.98
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Notes

o  TWC contributed an additional $23,839.88 fowards salaried positions during
2019-20. Additional funding for cleaning contractors and marketing
consultants are not shown in the above table and can be provided on request.

« Additional salary for the Administrative Officer along with the salaries for the
General Assistant and Landcare Assistant (totalling a minimum of $30,398.98)
will be funded from the TWC's own revenue streams. Additional funding for
the salary of a Wetlands Education Assistant will be dependent on funded
bookings. We are not seeking additional salary support for these positions.

¢ TWC does not come under any registered agreements so long service leave
rulings are used from the Long Service Leave Act (1958). Full-time and part-
time (pro-rata) employees are eligible for 8 2/3 weeks of paid leave after 10
years of service. They are eligible for 4 1/3 weeks of paid leave for
subsequent 5-year periods thereafter.
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Part B - Sponsorship request
Native ARC Inc

Name Position Gross 4% 9.5% Long Totals
salary Workers Superannuation service
compensatio = Guarantee leave
n

Diane Munrowd | Manager

(1.0FTE /job
Dean Huxley share) 67,070.52 | 2,682.82 6,371.70 1676.76  $77,801.80
Dr Szou Whua Veterinarian
Bosci (0.26 FTE) 13,561.60 542.46 1,288.35 22512 $15,617.53
Rachel Pearsall | Education and

Training 9,932.00 | 397.28 943.54 164.87 | $11437.69

Officer e ’ ’ ’ e

(0.26 FTE)
Dr Meg Rodgers | Veterinarian

(0.18 FTE) 9,493.12 | 379.72 901.85 157.59 $10,932.28
Karen Clarkson | Rehabilitation

Coordinator 5,959.20 238.36 566.12 98.92 $6,862.60

(0.15FTE)
2019 - 2020 Proposed Total Salary Package $122,651.90
2019 - 2020 Proposed City of Cockburn Sponsorship Request $91,763.66
2019 - 2020 Proposed NARC Contribution $30,850.24

| Totals

2019 - 2020 City of Cockburn sponsorship received $91,763.65
CPI change March Quarter 2019 to March Quarter 2020 (2.2%) ‘ $2,018.80
2019 - 2020 City of Cockburn sponsorship request $93,782.45
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2020 - 2021 Proposed salary package (NARC Inc)

Name Position Gross 4% 9.5% Long Totals
salary Workers Superannuation service
compensatio = Guarantee leave
n
Diane Munrowd Manager
(1.0FTE{ job
1 11
Dean Huxley share) 68,546 .07 2,741.84 6,511.87 A37.86 $78,937.65
Dr Meg Rodgers Veterinarian $17,165.20 | $686.61 $1,630.69 $284 .94 $10,767.44
Level 3
(0.26 FTE)
Rachel Pearsall Education and $10,452.00 | $418.08 $992 94 $173.50 $12,036.52
Training Officer
(0.26 FTE)
Dr Szou Bosci Veterinarian $15,620.80 | $624.83 $1,483.98 $259.31 $17,988.91
Level 2
(0.26 FTE)
Karen Clarkson Rehabilitation $6,864.00 $274.56 $652.08 $113.94 $7,904 .58
Coordinator
(0.15 FTE)
2020 - 2021 Total Salary Package $136,635.11
2020 - 2021 City of Cockburn Sponsorship Request $93,782.45

2020 - 2021 NARC Contribution Jlzsrace

* The salaries for the Education & Training Officer, Veterinarian (S Bosci) and
Rehabilitation Coordinator and $4,922.64 additional salary for Dr Meg Rodgers
are funded from NARC's own revenue streams and are dependent on ongoing
financial sustainability (these are reviewed annually).

* The Veterinary Surgeons Board of WA (VSB) and the Health Department of WA
require that the prescription and administration of medications for wildlife are to
be directly undertaken by a veterinarian. This requires all injured wildlife to be
transported offsite to a veterinary clinic for administration of the required
medications if a veterinarian is not onsite. Due to the increased costs associated
with this new requirement, a more cost-effective approach for Native ARC was to
recruit part-time veterinarians to undertake these activities to ensure the Centre
was complying with the requirements of the VSB and the Health Department of
WA. This has reduced costs that would have been incurred If all animals had to
be treated offsite.

» The Department of Biodiversity, Conservation and Altractions introduced a
licensing system for wildlife rehabilitators in 2019 whereby all individuals involved
in the rehabilitation of wildlife must be licensed and comply with the Code of
Practice for Wildlife Rehabilitation in WA. Due to the onerous nature of the new
licensing system Native ARC requires both a part time Rehabilitation Coordinator
and Education and Training Officer to ensure all personnel involved in the
rehabilitation of wildlife are compliant with the Code of Practice.
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Part C - Summary of Sponsorship request

Cockburn Wetlands Precinct

L rshi p
Position

Gross 9.5% Long
salary compensation | Superannuation | service
Guarantee leave
TWC
68,494.19 6,506.95 1,1567.37 | $76,158.51
Denise Wetlands
Crosbie Officer
Danielle Wetlands Partial contribution towards total administrative salary
T Administrative | package of $31,734.09 as detailed in ‘Part A $17,623.94
yris ; )
Officer Sponsorship Request
NARC
Diane
Munrowd Manager
D (fit = job 68,546.07 | 2,741.84 6,511.87 1,137.86 | $78,937.65
ean share)
Huxley
Dr Me Partial contribution towards total veterinarian salary
g Veterinarian package of $17,988.91 as detailed in ‘Part B $19,764.44
Rodgers . ;
Level 3 Sponsorship Request
2020 - 2021 Proposed City of Cockburn Sponsorship Request (GST-exclusive) | $187,564.90
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etlandsCentre

Covwect with Natuwre

The
Wetlands Centre
Cockburn

Sponsorship Submission

2020- 2021
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2019- 2020 KPI’s Developed for
The Wetlands Centre Cockburn

Disclaimer: Covid 19 impact TWC was closed 23 March 2020 to 20 May 2020. Development works

[D.-‘sc.faimer: The 2019-2020 KPIs for The Wetlands Centre Cockburn have been impacted by the
| following 2 events:

* Covid 19 - The Centre was closed from 23 March 2020 to 20 May 2020. Venue hire,
education programs and volunteer programs completely ceased during this period. The
Centre is currently being operated under Covid-19 Phase 4 safety requirements requiring
additional cleaning costs and human resources. All programs continue to be impacted and
have not returned to their previous capacity.

*  Wetlands Precinct Development — Works commenced February 2020 and will continue
through into 2021. Considerable time has been i ted by staff attending meetings and
providing continued input during the developmental stages. The development also impacts
on venue hire and education programs. Our annual WA Wetland M t Confe e
was held offsite and incurred considerable venue hire costs. Hirees also seeking the venue
for events have been advised to go elsewhere

Both of the above events have also provided an opportunity for staff and volunteers to plan for
restructuring to support the new development. We are being guided by the support of Mr Tom
Perrigo, former CEQ of The National Trust for 25 years. A 5-year draft strategic plan has been
prepared to be presented at the next Board meeting. We continue to work on all the plans to
support its introduction.

'KPI  |Annual  [kpl
(No. | Objective | ot A AT e
1 Financial | Aim to achieve a 5% growth in income per annum averaged over the

| | Performance | preceding 5 years.
i | | Preceding S year average ($79,458) plus 5% growth ($3,972) is
| ' | 583,430 (see attachment 1)
| e 2019-2020 unaudited income is $71,106 representing a
decrease of 512,324 or 15%
' * Decrease in venue hire and education income as a direct result

| | years due to the receipt of a major grant.
| | NOTES:
: 1. The Centre receives valuable sponsorship support from the City
of Cockburn and during 2019-20 they generate for every dollar
of sponsorship additional income of approximately $0.77 for
| every dollar of sponsorship. The additional monetary value of
) | - | volunteer services can be found in kpi 3. )
| In progress | Funding type: 2019 Fremantle Cc ities Envir
Grants
Received 515,000 for a revegetation and frog habitt
support program at Bibra Lake. The Centre is also

of Covid-19, development works along with higher than average |
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Submitted

Ongoing

Ongoing

Ongoing

auspicing an 511,000 grant for The Friends of South Bank
at Bibra Lake.

Funding type: 2020 Community Stewardship Major Grant
Application submitted for $403,755 over a 3 year period
for ‘Sustainable volunteer, education and community
engagement programs for Beeliar Wetlands’

Funding type: Plant sales
During 2019-20 , TWC grew 7,951 seedlings for:

. meeting the minimum KPI no 3 (even when

grants are not available),.

. Contract plant sales for revegetation in Beeliar
Regional Park (public sales excluded).

. Purchase by corporate groups, and catering for
ad hoc planting requests (sedges can be planted
all-year)

Our numbers were substantially reduced following plant
losses associated with accidental watering shutdowns
during the development phase and in readiness for the
decommissioning of the nursery.

Funding type: Tax-deductible donations

The distribution of donation boxes at local shops
continues to produce a steady income. Donations
decreased slightly during 2018-19 from $3,364 to $1,408
or a 58% decrease.

Funding type: Fundraising

A fundraising licence was obtained during 2016 and
income has remained steady decreasing slightly from
$3,688 to $1,636, representing a 55% decrease over the
last financial year. Our Bunnings BBQ sausage sizzle
fundraiser was cancelled due to Covid-19.
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'KPI | Annual KPI
| No. | Objective ——
|2 | Education | Aim to exceed the education program participation rate of the I

Performance | preceding 12 months.

* Participation rate of the preceding 12 months: 8,444

* Participation rate of existing 12 months: 4,043

| * KPlparticipation rate decreased by 52%

[ | NOTES:

1. Slight program decreases reflect time constraints on staff due to

major grant expenditure and precinct development

| commitments.

| 2. Schools program: decreased from 4,609 to 1,305 participation

hours, or by 71%. |
3. Community education program: decreased from 1,282 to 836.5 |
| | participation hours or by 34.7%. ‘Get Wild About Wetlands’
I school family holiday program is a partnership program

| between CWEC and COC. The program continues to be popular
and oversubscribed. The reduction relates to a smaller poolof |
funding for external education consultants. |

| 4. Adult education: decreased from 2,553 to 1,482 participation

| | | hours, or by 42%.

5 | | 5. WA Wetland Management Conference: The 16" annual event
was held on World Wetlands Day and participation remained at
capacity with 200 participants. The event is the largest, longest |
running event nationally.
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KPI Annual KPI
No. Objective
3 Landcare Plant a minimum of 5,000 seedlings per annum.
Performance
* Seedlings planted preceding 12 months: 5,323

Seedlings planted existing 12 months: 7,165

* KPlincrease of 34.6%

* KPlachieved
NOTES:

1. Allseedlings planted in the Beeliar Regional Park, City of
Cockburn.

2. Propagation: decreased production from 20,847 seedlings, during
the preceding 12 months, to 7,951 for the existing 12 months or
by 29.6%. Reduced nursery production directly affected by
power/water outages during installation of new site bore for
wetlands precinct development.

3. 3,009 plants purchased externally and in addition to those
propagated.

4. Nursery capacity: 36,000 seedlings.

5. Planting sites usually require 3 years site
preparation/maintenance and planting rates must not exceed
maintenance capacity. Maintenance costs need to be built into
the cost per seedling.

KPI Annual KPI
No. Objective
4 Volunteering Aim to exceed the number of volunteer hours of the preceding 12

Performance months.
* Participation rate of preceding 12 months: 6,607
* Participation rate of existing 12 months: 5,961
* Participation hours decreased 9.87%.

NOTES:

1. Participation rates do not include voluntary hours contributed
outside of TWC.

2. Volunteer recruitment was put on hold as board members and
staff continue to lay the foundations for future marketing,
promotions, membership, education and volunteer programs.

3. The value of volunteer services is $214,596 yielding a minimum of
$0.86 for every dollar invested by the City (based on a $36/hr rate
based on 2012-3 Australian Bureau of Statistics (ABS) figures and
inflation.

4. Regular volunteers remained steady at 25 along with 13
occasional volunteers. No corporate groups attended the Centre
during this financial year.

5. The commencement of a volunteer policy and handbook is still
under way.
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2019-2020 Additional Activities Conducted by The Wetlands Centre Cockburn

No. | Programs | Comments ) ) )
| Provided displays or education support to Catchments, Corridors
| and Coasts Expo, Perth Groundwater Festival, Perth NRM, Friends
‘ of Lake Claremont |
Committees - Represented TWC at the Beeliar Regional Park
| | Community Consultative Committee, the Jandakot Groundwater
‘ Community Consultative Committee and Rehabilitating Roe 8
| Committee
| | Training placements
| | * Hosted 1 placements for disability support learning |
| * Hosted 2 placements for Lakeland SHS “Workplace Learning |
L | Program’(2terms) bt it
' Marketing - committed $2,000 of TWC fuh}iing to assist with our [
‘ marketing strategy for target audiences. Blogs and facebook posts
- | _| continue to be a regular feature.
| | Compliancy requirements — the Centre is compliant and up-to-date
‘ with all legal obligations and annual requirements associated with:
* 2018-19 financial audits
* Register of Environmental Organisation 2019 Statistical
| Return Form, Department of the Environment and Energy
| [ 2019 Annual Information Statement, Australian Charities
| [ and Not-for-profit Commission
| * 2019 Charitable Collections and Information Statement,
[ Department of Mines, Industry Regulation and Safety
Consumer Protection

| | 157 of 227

171 of 532

Document Set ID: 9674303
Version: 3, Version Date: 17/09/2020




Item 13.1 Attachment 1

OCM 13/08/2020

Item 9.3 Attachment 2 GAD 21/07/2020
Attachment 1 for KPI 1: The Wetlands Centre Cockburn
Income & Preceeding S-year average
Summary of p ing 5-year ge (excluding sp hip)
Financial years 2011-2015 | 2012-2016_|2013-2017 [2014-2018 [2015-2019
S-year average $ 51,987 | $ 51,620 | § 57162|5 68726|S 79,458
Financial year ending
[we 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019* 2020°
Assett disposal 2,000
Conference income 9,308 9,692 10,81 11,797 661 15,244
3,392 777 .59, 5442 ,364 | 1,408
5,257 7.779 04! 8,722 045 6,894
Fundraising income - 1,797 4,121 4,014 3,688 1,636
Grant income 4,653 2,637 10,480 56,207 38,141 30
I earnings 4,401 4,192 4,058 3.970 4,007 3,088
Memberships® 165 154
Nursery/wetland care 21,920 5,939 9,884 14,155 6,554 15,300
Other income 39 288 288 2,664 6.000
Venue hire 10,687 15,565 20,158 14,694 21,046 21,052
Sut I 1 ! 59,858 49,666 75,439 121,665 90,661 71,108
City of Cockburn Sponsorship | 86708 87,022 |  89.065 | 89,956 90,765 91.763 |
Total i | 146,566 | 137,588 | 164,504 | 211,621 181,426 162,869
LIABILITIES
™wc?
TWC Grants - unexpended 12,646 6,413 45,933 42,391 4,250 22,174.00
TWC F ising - ded 9.208 9.226 8,612 4,211 4.211 4,211.00
Subtotal TWC Liabilities 21,854 15,639 54,545 46,602 8,461 26,385
Bracinet®
Precinct Grants - expended
Precinct Grants - unexpended
Precinct Fundraising - expended 2,272 434
Precinct Fundraising - L pended 712 2,712 642 642 779 .
Subtotal Precinct Liabilities 4712 2,112 2,914 1,076 779 1,
TOTALS| § 171,132 | § 155,939 | § 221,963 | § 259,299 | § 190,666 $ 190,76

"The 5 year average, $68,726 has been calculated by adding the Subtotal TWG figures from financial years ending 2015 to
2019 and dividing by 5. City of Coch sp hip has been from the i Pracinct funding has also been
excluded from the calculations as Grant funding cannot be evenly distributed amongst the Precinct partners.

2 All grant monies received are held in the Centre's Liabilities account. Grant monies are considered uneamed income until the
conditions of the grant are salisfied. As the conditions are satisfied the grant monies are transferred to the profit and loss as
expended grants.

2 All precinct monies are held in trust in either, or both, of the Centre's or Native ARC's Liability accounts to ensure
accountability. Joint Precinct Grants are auspiced by either TWC or Native ARC on behalf of the Wetland Precinct while joint
Precinct Fundraising is held 50/50 by TWC and Native ARC until such time that the agree fo its expendi

#2019 figures have been updated to reflect post-audit amounts.
#2020 figures are unaudited and changes may occur.
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Attachment 2
The Wetlands Centre
UNAUDITED PROFIT AND LOSS
July 2019 - June 2020
NEB: Depreciation figures not yet calculated
TOTAL
Income
Bank Interest 2,094.28
BUILDING MANAGEMENT

Facility Hire - (M) 13.959.58
Facility Hire Penalty (M) 136.34
Members Facility Hire - (M) 6.840.00
Miscellaneous income (M) 116.35
Total BUILDING MANAGEMENT 21,052.27
Conference Income 15,244.28
Education Services 4,508.00
Friends of South Bank 5,580.00
FUNDRAISING
FUNDRAISING (NON TD)

BBQ Fundraisers (NTD) 1,636.36
Total FUNDRAISING (NON TD) 1,636.36
PRECINCT FUNDRAISING (NON TD)

Income Precinct JV 381.83
Total PRECINCT FUNDRAISING (NON TD) 381.83

Total FUNDRAISING 2,018.19
GRANT INCOME
Grant 2 - NRM 329.97
Total GRANT INCOME 320.97
Memberships 154.56
Nursery/Wetland care 15,300.91
Other Income 6,000.14
Profit (loss) on Assets Disposal 2,000.00
Project management 2,386.35
Sponsorship 91,763.65
TRUST FUND
Bank Interest -Trust Fund 994,54
Collection boxes (TD) 1,028.20
Education Event Donations (TD) 75.00
Unsolicited Donations (TD) 305.00
Total TRUST FUND 2,402.74
Total Income A$170,835.34
GROSS PROFIT A$170,835.34
Expenses
Accounting 1,598.85
Bank Charges and Fees -103.00
BBQ Fundraiser Expenses 318.48
BUILDING MANAGEMENT EXPENSES
Cleaning (M) 2,843.64
Consumables (M) 486.95
Electricity - (M) 2,224.37

Accruals Basis Monday, 6 July 2020 09:11 PM GMT+08:00
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The Wetlands Centre

PROFIT AND LOSS
July 2019 - June 2020

TOTAL

Insurance (M) 791.84
Miscellaneous Expenses - (M) 310.00
Repairs & Maintenance (M) 125.45
Security - (M) 90.91
Sewerage/water - (M) 366.54
Telephone - (M) 493.43
Total BUILDING MANAGEMENT EXPENSES 7,733.13
COMMUNICATIONS

Domain 199.63
Internet 844,66
Telephone 257.24
Total COMMUNICATIONS 1,301.53
Conference Expense 8,318.14
Consultants Fees 200.00
Consumables 1,724.02
Contractors 5,580.00
Council Levy 703.18
Education Expenses 540.56
Expenses Precinct JV 191.33
Fees Paid 1,347.47
Fuelfoil - V 231.62
Insurance 2,527.14
Insurance - V 870.26
Licensing - T 67.40
Licensing - V 423.65
Maintenance & Repair - V 342.50
Marketing 2,018.04
Mursery/Wetland Care Expenses 3,466.80
Office equipment repairs 100.00
Office expenses 1,666.25
PAYROLL EXPENSES

Superannuation Expense 9,701.58
Wages & Salaries Expense 102,921.84
Workers' Compensation 1,440.55
Total PAYROLL EXPENSES 114,063.97
Repair & Maintenance - LEq 570.45
Subscriptions 1,568.02
Training & Safety 2,445.22

Total Expenses A$159,815.01
NET EARNINGS A$11,020.33
Accruals Basis Monday, 6 July 2020 09:11 PM GMT+08:00 202
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The Wetlands Centre
BALANCE SHEET
As of June 30, 2020
TOTAL
Assets
Current Assets
Accounts receivable
Accounts Receivable (A/R) 12,619.50
Total Accounts receivable A$12,619.50
CASH ON HAND & AT BANK
Bend 678 965 29,793.77
Bend 679 005 36,556.55
Bend 679 070 125,896.87
Bend 679 120 670.59
Bend 747 620 44,696.43
Petty Cash 300.00
Uni- 1616 0.00
Uni - 2229 0.00
Uni - 4108 0.00
Uni - 4948 0.00
Uni - 9670 9,380.73
Uni -0554 0.00
Uni= 4447 0.00
Total CASH ON HAND & AT BANK 247,284.94
OTHER DEPOSITS
Deposits Paid 8,944.00
Pledges Receivable 8,242.50
Total OTHER DEPOSITS 17,186.50
Undeposited Funds 972.09
Total Current Assets A$278,073.03
Accruals Basis Monday, 6 July 2020 09:16 PM GMT+08:00 13
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The Wetlands Centre

BALANCE SHEET
As of June 30, 2020

TOTAL
Long-term assets
FURNITURE, FIXTURES & OFFICE EQUIPMENT
Furniture & Fixtures Accum Dep -8,065.20
Furniture & Fixtures at Cost 43,300.94
Office Equipment Accum Dep -8,705.98
Office Equipment at Cost 12,621.55
Total FURNITURE, FIXTURES & OFFICE EQUIPMENT 39,151.31
PROPERTY & EQUIPMENT
Education Equipment Accum Dep -6,418.69
Education Equipment at Cost 21,342.75
Landcare Equipment Accum Dep -14,111.25
Landcare Equipment at Cost 34,985.70
Total PROPERTY & EQUIPMENT 35,798.51
VEHICLES
Vehicle Attachments Accum Dep -625.40
Vehicle Attachments at Cost 634.13
Total VEHICLES 873
Total long-term assets 74,958.55
Total Assets A$353,031.58
Accruals Basis Monday, 6 July 2020 09:16 PM GMT+08:00 2/3
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The Wetlands Centre
BALANCE SHEET
As of June 30, 2020
TOTAL
Liabilities and shareholder's equity
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable
Trade Creditors 0.00
Total Accounts payable A$0.00
GST & OTHER ATO LIABILITIES
ATO Clearing Account 0.00
GST Liabilities Payable 11,135.05
Total GST & OTHER ATO LIABILITIES 11,135.05
PAYROLL LIABILITIES
PAYG Withholdings Payable 18,153.78
Payroll clearing 0.01
Prov for LSL (current) 31,244.54
Superannuation Payable 3,794.58
Total PAYROLL LIABILITIES 53,192.91
Suspense Account -18.22
Trust Fund Holding Account 110.00
UNEXPENDED FUNDRAISING
TWC- Fundraising Income c/f 4,211.25
Total UNEXPENDED FUNDRAISING 4,211.25
UNEXPENDED GRANTS
Grant 1 - Marketing 4,250.00
Grant 2- NEM 2,470.03
Grant 4 - Shell Australia 454.55
Grant 5 - Communities Enviro Program 15,000.00
Total UNEXPENDED GRANTS 22,174.58
UNEXPENDED PRECINCT JV FUNDS
Grant Income cff 490.49
Quiz Night Income ¢/t 439.55
Turtle Fest Income c/f 202.20
Total UNEXPENDED PRECINCT JV FUNDS 1,132.24
UNEXPENSED AUSPICING GRANTS
Friends of South Bank 4,420.00
Total UNEXPENSED AUSPICING GRANTS 4,420.00
Total current liabilities A$96,357.81
Shareholders’ equity:
Net Income 11,020.33
Opening balance equity 2,464.00
Retained Earnings 243,189.44
Total shareholders' equity A$256,673.77
Total liabilities and equity A$353,031.58

Accruals Basis Monday, & July 2020 09:16 PM GMT+08:00
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Attachment 2

Cockburn Wetlands Education Centre
184 Hope Rood, Bibro Loke WA 6163
ABN. 48 956 459 438
Profit & Loss [Last Year Analysis]
July 2018 through June 2019

This Year Last Year % Difference
Income
Conference Income 59,661 511,797 -18.1%
Consulting fees $1,155 52,682 -56.9%
Contract Services 56,554 $14,155 53.7%
Trust Fund
Unsolicited donations (TD) §2,130 £3,555 -46.1%
Collection boxes (TD) 51,044 $1,459 28.4%
Education event denations (TD) $190 $28 573.0%
Trust Fund - Bank Interest 5571 5481 18.8%
Total Trust Fund 53,935 55,923 33.6%
Education Services §2,890 56,040 -52.2%

Fundraising Activities

Fundraising (Non TD)
BBQ fundraisers (NTD) 63,138 43,499 -10.3%
Education event (NTD) $0 $40 -100.0%
Book sales (NTD) 50 5165 -100.0%
Other sales [NTD] 4550 £100 NA
Gift vouchers (NTD) 40 4210 223.1%
Total Fundraising (Non TD) $3,688 54,014 -8.1%
Fundraising (TD)
Precinct Fundraising {Non TD,
Education event (NTD) 0 4434
Income Precinct IV $132 50
Total Precinct Fundraising (Non TD) %132 4434
Total Fundraising Activities 53,820 54,447
Fundraising income ¢/f 50 510,352
Grant 3-Lotterywest (*) $35,978 556,207
Grant & - Action Grant §2,163 $0
Insurance Recovery S0 52,555
Memberships $155 s0
Miscellaneous income S0 $1
Sponsorship 590,765 $89,956
Bank Interest 53,436 53,489
Total Income $160,512 £207,603

Cost of Sales

Gross Profit $160,512 $207,603 -22.7%
Expenses

Advertising/promotions 62,038 S10,409 -80.4%
Bad Debts written off 51,763 S0 WA
Conference Expense §5,770 45,546 4.0%
Consultants Fees 68,073 43,250 148.4%
Consumables 54,640 53,018 53.7%
Contractors 1,591 $90 1668.1%

Depreciation
Ace dep - Landcare Equipment 63,565 53,715 -4.0%
Acc dep - Vehicle attachments 43 53 0.0%
Acc dep - Office Equipment 54,046 4863 368.7%
Ace dep - Education 83,576 5225 1487.9%
Acc dep - F&F (O] 56,545 5144 4430.8%
Total Depreciation $17,735 54,950 2582.8%
Education Expenses $956 $1,756 -45.6%
Employment Expenses

Superannuation Expense 59,166 58,717 5.2%
Wages & Salaries Expense 598,894 594,027 5.2%
Workers' Compensation 51,328 $874 51.9%
LSL entitlement expense ($3,446) $6,846 150.3%
Total Employment Expenses 5105,942 5110,465 4.1%
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Cockburn Wetlands Education Centre
184 Hope Road, Bibrao Lake WA 6163
ABN 48 996 459 438
Profit & Loss [Last Year Analysis]
July 2018 through June 2019

This Year Last Year % Difference

Insurance 5403 5403
Fuel/oil - LEq 67 50
Repair & Maintenance - LEq 5206 5657
Landcare Expenses 54,819 53,775
Legal & Accounting 4830 4802
Memberships $995 $0
Office equipment repairs 43 S0
Plant/Equipment & Venue Hire 222 s0

k Exp s-Vol 5 50 540
Repairs & Maintenance 581 52,964
Training & Safety 451 43,488
Telephone 5237 5205
Domain 5246 5242
Internet s327 5345
Fuelfoil - v 4210 484
Insurance - V 5839 5794
Licensing - V' 409 4906 9
Maintenance & Repair -V 50 51,805 100.0%
Licensing - T 565 512 454.6%

Fundraising Activities
Fundraising (NonTD)

BBQ Fundraiser expenses 5585 5976

Gift vouchers redeemed S0 110

Total Fundraising (NonTD) 4585 51,186

Fund g(TD)

Total Fundraising Activities 5585 51,186 -50.7%

Fundraising profits deferred 52,553 517 14829.2%
Precinct Funding

Total Expenses $161,652 $157,211 2.8%

Operating Profit ($1,140) 550,392 -102.3%
Management Income

Facility Hire - (M) 517,496 512,724 37.5%

Members Facility Hire - (M) 63,550 $1,970 80.2%

Miscellaneous income (M) 40 525 100.0%

Renewable Energy Benefit S0 $84 100.0%

Total Management Income 521,046 514,803 42.2%

Management Expenses

Acc Dep - Furn & Fixtures (M) £235 4294
Bank Expense - (M) S0 (51)
Cleaning (M) 5913 5347
Contractors (M) 5639 $0
Consumables (M) 52,026 51,860
Electricity - (M) 52,345 51,164
Insurance (M) $1,003 54,830
Repairs & maintenance (M) 586 $152
Security - (M) 545 4339 86.6%
Seweragefwater - (M) 5309 4192 21.1%
Telephone - (M) $237 $223 6.5%
Total Management Expenses 57,839 59,700 -19.2%
Net Surplus / (Deficit) $12,067 $55,495 78.3%

* NOTE: $48,838 of Education equipment & Furniture & Fixtures purchased
from the Lotterywest grant #3 has been classified as Assets. Consequently,
these appear in the Balance Sheet.
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Cockburn Wetlands Education Centre
184 Hope Road, Bibra Lake WA 6163
ABN: 48 996 459 438

Balance Sheet [Last Year Analysis]

June 2019

This Year Last Year % Difference

Assets
Current Assets
Cash On Hand
UniBank $1-603609670 $8,184 $73,745 88.9%
UniBank 510-100724108 521,579 521,928 1.6%
UniBank 110.1-379041616 $59,198 $57,856 2.3%
UniBank 110.2-379042229 568,958 $67,394 2.3%
Undeposited Funds $5 S0 NA
Petty Cash $300 5300 0.0%
UniBank Debit 51.1-100860554 $1,728 S0 NA
UniBank Trust S1-603624447 59,007 $5,443 65.5%
UniBank Trust 110-379024948 533,528 532,768 2.3%
Total Cash On Hand $202,486 $259,434 -22.0%
Pledges Receivable 58,243 54,180 97.2%
Total Current Assets 5210,729 $263,613 20.1%
Other Assets
Deposits Paid 58,944 521,998 -59,3%
Total Other Assets $8,944 $21,998 -59.3%
Property & Equipment

Landcare Equipment
Landcare Equipment at Cost 534,986 $35,349 -1.0%
Landcare Equipment Accum Dep (514,111) (510,744) 31.3%
Total Landcare Equipment 520,874 524,606 -15.2%
Vehicle attachments
Vehicle attachments at Cost 5634 5634 0.0%
Vehicle attachments Accum Dep 15625) (S623) 0.4%
Total Vehicle attachments 59 511 -22.5%
Furniture & Fixtures (M)
Furniture & Fixtures at Cost 52,292 52,791 -17.9%
Furniture & Fixtures Accum Dep (51,376) (51,615) 14.8%
Total Furniture & Fixtures (M) 5916 51,176 -22.1%
Office Equipment
Office Equipment at Cost 512,622 516,252 -22.3%
Office Equipment Accum Dep (58,706) (58,287) -5.1%
Total Office Equipment $3,916 57,964 -50.8%
Educational Equipment
Education Equipment at Cost §21,343 54,660 358.0%
Education Equipment Accum Dep (56,419) (52,843) -125.8%
Total Educational Equipment 514,924 51,816 721.6%
Funiture & Fixtures {Q)
Furniture & Fixtures at Cost $38,709 55,555 596.9%
Furniture & Fixtures Accum dep (56,690) (5144) -4530.8%
Total Funiture & Fixtures (0) 532,020 55,410 491.9%
Total Property & Equipment 572,659 540,984 77.3%
Total Assets $292,331 $326,595 -10.5%
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Cockburn Wetlands Education Centre
184 Hope Road, Bibra Lake WA 6163
ABN: 48 996 459438

Balance Sheet [Last Year Analysis]

June 2019
This Year Last Year % Difference
Liabilities
Current Liabilities
Unexpended Grants
Grant 1-BRP Booklets $1,350 $1,350 0.0%
Grant 2-Posters 51,650 51,650 0.0%
Grant 3-Lotterywest S0 435,078 -100.0%
Grant 8-Action Grant S0 52,163 -100.0%
Grant 9-BRP Booklets 2 51,250 51,250 0.0%
Total Unexpended Grants 54,250 542,391 -90.0%
CWEC- Fundraising Income ¢/f 54,211 51,658 153.9%
Total Current Liabilities 58,461 544,049 -80.8%
Quiz night income c/f 5440 5440 0.0%
Turtle Fest income c/f 5202 5202 0.0%
GST Liabilities
GST Collected $1,523 $12,045 -87.4%
GST Paid (51,676) (54,278) 60.8%
Total GST Liabilities 1$153) $7,768 102.0%
Payroll Liabilities
PAYG Withholding Payable $5,199 $5,775 17.7%
Superannuation Payable $3,661 $2,552 12.8%
Prov for LSL [current) 531,245 534,601 24.6%
Total Payroll Liabilities 540,105 543,018 22.9%
Trust Fund Holding Account 5110 S0 NA
Suspense Account (518) 50 NA
Total Liabilities $49,146 595,477 -48.5%
Net Assets $243,185 $231,118 5.2%
Equity
Retained Earnings $231,118 $175,623 31.6%
Current Year Surplus/Deficit 512,067 $55,495 78.3%
Total Equity $243,185 $231,118 5.2%
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2019

NOTE 1: STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

This financial report is a special purpose financial report prepared in order to satisfy the financial reporting
requirements of the Associations Incorporation Act Western Australia 2015 and the Australian Charities and Mot for
Profit Commission. The committee has determined that Cockburn Wetlands Education Centre Inc. (CWEC) is not a
reporting entity

The financial statements have been prepared on an accruals basis and are based on historic costs and do not take
into account changing money values or, except where specifically stated, current valuations of non-current assets.
The following significant accounting policies, which are consistent with the previous period unless otherwise stated,
have been adopted in the preparation of this financial report.

a Income Tax
The Association is exempt from income tax under Section 50-5 of the Income Tax Assessment Act 1997
b. Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE)
Each class of property, plant & equipment is carried at cost less, where applicable, any accumulated
depreciation.
The depreciable amount of all PPE is depreciated over the useful lives of the assets to the association
commencing from the time the asset is held ready for use.

When an asset is disposed, the gain or loss is calculated by comparing proceeds received with its carrying
amount and is taken to profit or loss

[+ Employee Benefits
Provision is made for CWEC's liability for employee benefits arising from services rendered by employees
to the end of the reporting period. Employee benefits that are expected to be settled within one year have
been measured at the amounts expected to be paid when the liability is settled.

Provisions recognised represent the best estimate of the amounts required lo settle the obligation at the
end of the reporting period.

d. Provisions

Provisions are recognised when CWEC has a legal or constructive obligation, as a result of past events, for
which it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will result and that outflow can be reliably
measured, Provisions are measured at the best estimate of the amounts required to settle the obligation at
reporting date

e Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand, deposits held at call with banks, and other short-term
highly liquid investments with original matunties of three months or less.

f Revenue and Other Income
Non-reciprocal grant income is recognised in profit or loss when CWEC obtains control of the grant. Itis

probable that the economic benefits gained from the grants will flow to CWEC and the amount of the grant
can be measured reliably.

If conditions are attached to the grant which must be satisfied before itis eligible to receive the contribution,
the recognition of the grant as revenue will be deferred until those conditions are satisfied. For this
purpose, deferred consideration is not discounted to present values when recognising revenue

When grant revenue is received whereby CWEC incurs an obligation to deliver economic value directly
back to the contributor, this is considered a reciprocal fransaction and the grant revenue is recognised in
the Balance Sheet as a liability until the service has been delivered to the contributor, otherwise the grant is
recognised as income on receipt.

Donations of cash are recognised as revenue when received
Gifts of time are brought to account at the volunteer's valuation
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2019
Gifts of equipment are brought to account at a reasonably determined fair value. Both useability and
marketability are joint considerations in determining fair value.
Interest revenue is recognised using the effective interest rate method, which for floating rate financial
assets is the rate inherent in the instrument. Interest revenue is recognised as it accrues.
Revenue from the rendering of a service is recognised upon the delivery of the service to the customers.
All revenue is stated net of the amount of goods and services tax (GST)

g Goods and Services Tax (GST)

Revenues, expenses and assels are recognised net of the amount of GST, except where the amount of
GST incurred is not recoverable from the Tax Office. In these circumstances the GST is recognised as part
of the cost of acquisition of the asset or as part of an item of the expense. Receivables and payables in the
balance sheet are shown inclusive of GST.
Receivables and payables are stated with the amount of GST included.
The net amount of GST recoverable from or payable to the ATO is included as a current asset or liability in
the Balance Sheet

h. Comparative figures

When required by Accounling Standards, comparative figures have been adjusted to conform to changes in
presentation for the current financial year.
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business

=D FaceyFace Business Solutions
w
@%’ ¢/- 5 Renville Way, LYNWOOD WA 6147

Mobile: 0412 517 971
e-mail: andy@f2fbusinessmentors.com.au
web: www.f2fbusinessmentors.com.au

INDEPENDENT AUDIT REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF COCKBURN WETLANDS EDUCATION CENTRE
INC.

Scope

We have audited the accompanying financial report, being a special purpose financial report, of Cockburn
Wetlands Education Centre Inc. (CWEC), which comprises the Balance Sheet as at 30 June 2019 for the year
then ended, the Income Statement, a summary of significant accounting policies, other explanatory notes and
the statement by members of the committee.

Committee’s Responsibility for the Financial Report

The committee of CWEC, through delegation to the Wetlands Officer, is responsible for the preparation and fair
presentation of the financial report and have determined that the accounting policies described in Note 1 to the
financial statements, which form part of the financial report, are consistent with the financial reporting
requirements of the Associations Incorporation Act Western Australia 2015 and the Australian Charities and Not
for Profits Commission, and are appropriate to meet the needs of the members. The committee’s
responsibilities also include designing, implementing and maintaining internal control relevant to the preparation
and fair presentation of the financial report that is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error; selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies; and making accounting estimates that are
reasonable in the circumstances.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial report based on our audit. No opinion is expressed
as to whether the accounting policies used, as described in Note 1, are appropriate to meet the needs of the
members. We conducted our audit in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards. These Auditing
Standards require that we comply with relevant ethical requirements relating to audit engagements and plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial report is free from material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial report. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the financial report, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers intemal conlrol relevant to the enlity's preparation and fair presentation of
the financial report in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
made by the committee, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial report.

The financial report has been prepared for distribution to members for the purpose of fulfilling the committee's
financial reporting under the Associations Incorporation Act Western Australia 2015. We disclaim any
assumption of responsibility for any reliance on this report or on the financial report to which it relates to any
person other than the members, or for any purpose other than that for which it was prepared

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion

Independence

In conducting our audit, we have complied with the independence requirements of Australian professional
ethical pronouncements.

Kilifi Blue Holdings Pty Ltd atf Business CPR Trust
t/as Face 2 Face Business Mentors and Face 2 Face Business Solutions
ACN —127 579 159 / ABN — 69 284 557 061

THE INSTITUTE soalic
DI; CERTIFIEDY ACCOUNTANTS
BOOKKEEFERS

170 of 227

184 of 532
Document Set ID: 9674303
Version: 3, Version Date: 17/09/2(420




OCM 13/08/2020 ltem 13.1 Attachment 1

GAD 21/07/2020 Item 9.3 Attachment 2

2 FaceyFace Business Solutions
business & 2 :
° ¢/- 5 Renville Way, LYNWOOD WA 6147

Mobile: 0412 517 971
e-mail: andy@f2fbusinessmentors.com.au
web: www.f2fbusinessmentors.com.au

Auditor's Opinion

In our opinion, the financial report of Cockburn Wetlands Education Centre Inc. presents fairly, in all matenial
respects the financial position as of 30 June 2019 and of its financial performance for the year then ended in
accordance with the accounting policies described in Note 1 to the financial statements and the Associations
Incorporations Act Western Australia 2015.

Name of firm: Face 2 Face Business Mentors
Name of auditor: Neville Andrew Robert FIPA
Member No.: 183180

Address: Lynwood, Perth

Dated this  30* day of Novernber 2019

Kilifi Blue Holdings Pty Ltd atf Business CPR Trust
t/as Face 2 Face Business Mentors and Face 2 Face Business Solutions
ACN —127 579 159 / ABN — 69 284 557 061
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Report on KPI’s and
Activities

2020-2021

Native ARC Inc.

at ive AR

Wildlife « Rehabilitation « Sustainability
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To the Grants and Donations Committee

On behalf of the Executive Committee of Native ARC Inc. | am pleased to provide
this report outlining the activities of 2019.

Our Vision for the future is to grow the Centre to be the leading native wildlife
hospital and rehabilitation facility in Western Australia and to actively engage as a
Member of the Cockburn Wetlands Precinct.

Major initiatives in recent years which supports this Vision include:

« the registration of Native ARC by the Veterinary Surgeons’ Board of WA as a
veterinary hospital;

« the registration of Native ARC by the Radiology Council of WA to operate
radiating apparatuses (X-rays) on-site; and

+« the expansion of Native ARC’s Poison's Permit by the Health Department WA
to stock a wider variety of medications to treat sick and injured wildlife.

An additional milestone was the acceptance as a CORE Member on the Committee
for Animal Welfare in Emergencies (CAWE) in May 2020. The CAWE assists the
Department of Primary Industries and Regional Development (DPIRD) to build and
maintain the State's capability and capacity in support of the State Support Plan —
Animal Welfare in Emergencies (the Plan) by providing a multi-agency forum to
promote communication and collaboration and the integration of animal welfare
consideration into emergency management. Native ARC now represents wildlife
rehabilitation practitioners in Western Australia on the CAWE.

Support from two pro bono Graphic Designers has enabled the Centre to redevelop
its brand and website in addition to marketing material and merchandise.

Ongoing support from four volunteer Veterinarians and nine volunteer Registered
Veterinary Nurses has allowed us to expand the scope and capacity of our veterinary
hospital.

Our progress would not have been possible without the support of the City of
Cockburn and we are incredibly grateful for this.

Q=

Robert Dunn
Chairman
Native ARC Inc.
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2019 KPI’s developed for Native ARC Inc

Annual Progress
Objective
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Annual Progress
Objective
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2019 Native ARC Additional Initiatives
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Programs Comments

Viore than 000 v e alloc the maintenance of
Mo major upgrades have been made to the site in 2019 due to the
Cockburn Wetlands Precinct Redevelopment
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SUMMARY OF NATIVE ARC’s ACTIVITIES (2019)
OVERVIEW

Native ARC was incorporated in 1998. A restructure at the end of 2009 resulted in a
major overhaul of operations at the Centre positioning Native ARC as a professional
wildlife organisation with appropriate infrastructure, governance and administrative
processes. Native ARC is now capitalising on the improvements made.

The Executive Committee has the skills and experience to oversee the development
and the future expansion of the Centre. Demonstrated competencies and/or
qualifications are required to be eligible for nomination and acceptance on the
Executive Committee. A new Committee Member joined the Committee in 2019.

Executive Committee Members:

« One Member with small business experience;

* One with private sector policy/legislation experience (Chamber of Commerce
and Industry of Western Australia) at a State/Federal level,

« One with experience in the State Public Sector at a senior executive level;

e One with Senior Management experience with a large Bank in Western
Australia.

¢ One with CPA and Chartered Management Accountant qualifications, broad
finance, business improvement and program management skills and
experience across public and private sectors.

e One with more than 10 years’ experience in the wildlife rehabilitation industry;
and

¢ One with more than 10 years’ experience in wildlife rehabilitation, several
years' experience teaching wildlife rehabilitation at a tertiary level and
participation on several environmental and educational advisory committees
within the State.

Native ARC is registered with:

* Australian Charities and Not for Profits Commission (ACNC) Register (Federal
Government);
Register of Environmental Organisations (Federal Government);

¢ Registered Wildlife Rehabilitation Centre Department of Biodiversity,
Conservation and Attractions (State Government);

* Registered Veterinary Hospital Veterinary Surgeons’ Board WA (State
Government);

e Registered for a Charitable Collections License (State Government).

These registrations are reviewed annually by the responsible organisations with
Native ARC compliant with all requirements.
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Native ARC’s Organisation Structure.

Executive Committee

Manager

Senior Veterinarian

1
Rehabilitation Education &
Coordinator Training Officer

L Education
Veterinarians Volunteers

Registered
= Veterinary =mad Rehabilitation Volunteers
Nurses

Work Experience Students
(Secondary)

Native ARC’s volunteers and staff are directed by a range of policies developed to
support due diligence and governance. Policies in place are:

. & & & & & 8 8 e

Occupational Health and Safety

Use of Personal Protective Equipment (PPE)
Manual handling

Smoking, drugs and alcohol

Radiology

Hazard management and waste disposal
Bats and snakes

Human health risks

Disease control — transmissions within the facility
Biosecurity

Poisons
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« Emergencies

o Domestic and pest species management
« \Wildlife rehabilitation

« Wildlife medicine

« Euthanasia

e Capture and removal of reptiles

« Disposal of wildlife carcasses

« Event of dissolution

Wildlife release and transport

Off-site rehabilitation

Animal welfare

Animal collection

Financial members

Volunteer and employee management
Performance reviews

Student placement management
Supported placement management
Bullying

Equal opportunity

Dispute resolution

« Working with children

e Photographs

* Social media and content management

* & & & 5 & 5 " " 0

HIGHLIGHTS FOR 2019

CcoviD 19

Due to the serious evolving situation, in March 2020 the Executive Committee
decided to reduce the number of volunteers at the Hospital to ensure the health and
wellness of volunteers and their families. The Committee recognised the importance
of the service Native ARC provides and opted for the Hospital to remain open with a
reduced level of volunteer service.

Veterinary Services were declared an essential service by the Federal Government
and exempt from pandemic related shutdowns. As Veterinary Services were
classified as essential services, Native ARC continued to admit wildlife needing
veterinary attention. We felt that without access to our services, there would be
limited (and in some cases, zero) services for wildlife in the Cockburn and wider
Perth Metropolitan region. This could potentially result in injury/disease to members
of the public who attempted to care for these animals themselves and/or mental
distress to members of the public who may witness the animal suffering.
Furthermore, we felt that wildlife has just as much need for veterinary services as
companion animals.
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Two other wildlife rehabilitation centres in Perth closed down for up to six weeks
between March and June 2020 placing additional workloads on our already reduced
volunteer and staff workforce.

To reduce the number of volunteers required on-site, Native ARC's six part time
employees voluntarily attended full time (without pay) to ensure the Hospital
remained open for the City of Cockburn and wider Perth community.

The welfare of our Resident Animals was also a priority and like other
zoological/wildlife facilities in Australia, we were unable to send our residents off-site
due to their unique husbandry requirements.

As of July 2020, we are still operating with only 15% our regular volunteer work force
as we are returning all volunteers in a phased approach as we monitor the Covid-19
situation. We hope to be fully operational by mid-August 2020.

PARTNERSHIPS

Native ARC partnered with Deloitte Australia in 2019 as part of Deloitte’s ‘Impact
Day'. The Executive Committee and staff of Native ARC participated in a series of
scoping and planning sessions facilitated by staff from Deloitte to develop a five-year
Marketing Strategy. This not only provides a framework for growth and expansion
but a guide for Native ARC's involvement in the Cockburn Wetlands Precinct.

Native ARC partnered with the Murdoch Student Emerging Leaders in 2019 to
review and redevelop its Standard Operating Procedures. As part of the project’s
scope, students identified the need to ensure Native ARC's growth was factored into
all Policies and Procedures developed.

The Centre contributes as a Member of the Cockburn Wetlands Precinct to promote
environmental sustainability within the Cockburn community and has the potential to
develop the site further as a tourism destination. This is something Native ARC is
committed to achieve in partnership with Precinct Members and the City of
Cockburn.

The Rotary Club of Booragoon sponsors two ‘Self Care for Animal Carers’ seminars
each year with more than 150 participants attending. Native ARC has partnered with
several other organisations to deliver Self Care seminars for their members including
‘Fostering and Assistance for Wildlife Needing Aid’ (FAWNA) in Bussleton and the
Dogs Refuge in Shenton Park.

Native ARC partners with Western Australian Seabird Rescue (WASR) by providing
veterinary and rehabilitation services. WASR have limited access to veterinarians
and experienced wildlife rehabilitators. Native ARC refers all seabird/waterbird
rescue requests to WASR who then transfer the rescued animals to Native ARC.
This partnership utilises each organisation’s strengths and resources thus increasing
overall outcomes for sick and injured seabirds/waterbirds in the Perth metropolitan
area. Native ARC provided veterinary treatment to more than 130
seabirds/waterbirds from WASR in 2019.
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Native ARC produced a music video in collaboration with a local Perth band and 2
pro bono cinematographers. The music video was part of a fundraising campaign to
raise capital to bring on board a paid fundraising coordinator. The campaign was
going well however within days of launching the campaign Western Australia was hit
with Covid-19 and the campaign stalled. Native ARC raised just under $3,000 in less
than a week.

PERFORMANCE STATISTICS

Native ARC:
¢ was open 365 days a year;
« provided a 24-hour phone service (8000 calls per annum);
* rescued 443 animals from a variety of locations and situations;
+ provided opportunities for over 220 regular volunteers;
¢ admitted in 3557 animals to the Centre;
¢ treated more than 130 animals from Western Australian Seabird Rescue;
¢ provided education and information to more than 1500 participants;
¢ provided ongoing placement opportunities for people with disabilities;

¢ supported more than 20 work experience students from private/public
schools;

¢ provided placements for more than 15 veterinary students from Murdoch
University (a formal veterinary placement program is now in place);

* provided placements for 1 veterinary nurse student from Open Colleges; and
» hosted 23 corporate team building days.

Native ARC is the only wildlife hospital and rehabilitation centre operating in the
catchment area of the City of Cockburn and operates 24/7 providing a point of
contact for concerned Cockburn residents who have either rescued or require
assistance with wildlife.

WILDLIFE ADMISSIONS

In 2019, 3557 animals were admitted compared to 2662 in 2014 (an increase of over
33% over the 5-year period).

Volunteer hours in 2019 were 74,563 compared to 41,518 in 2014 (an increase in
almost 80% over the S-year period).

Native ARC continues to admit more wildlife than any other rehabilitation centre in
Western Australia with costs associated with veterinary examinations, treatment,
medicines and food and housing costs borne by Native ARC. A significant amount of
expenditure is directed towards treatment and care.

Native ARC receives many referrals from local veterinarians and the Animal Hospital
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at Murdoch University as veterinary clinics are not equipped to treat and rehabilitate

wildlife.
Year Admissions Volunteer Financial
hours at Native| \/gjue Hours!
ARC $30.00 per hour
2019 3557 74 563 (1+3+7) | $2,236,890.00
2018 3835 69 600 $2, 088,000.00
2017 3355 64 581 $1,937,430.00
2016 2864 63 833 $ 1,914, 990.00
2015 2922 54,444 $1,633,320.00
2014 2662 41,518 $1,245,540.00
2013 2244 26,249 $787,470
2012 1458 20,497 $614,910
2011 1200 17,535 $526,050
2010 950 13,492 $404,760

! Note the financial figures are based on State National Resource Management
Community Grants Adult Volunteer in kind costings.

SUMMARY OF PARTICIPATION HOURS RECORDED for 2019

1. Volunteers

Participation at the Centre
undertaking rehabilitation of
wildlife/gardening etc.

69, 563

2. Fundraising/Misc

Attendance at fetes, events, stalls,
etc.

1, 000

3. Inductions/Training

New volunteers attending Induction
training at the Centre.

2, 000

4. Work Experience

Secondary and Tertiary work
experience student participation.

2,000

5. Executive Committee

Executive Committee
Meetings/events.

300

6. Corporate Participation

On site / Team building.

2,100

7. Off-Site Rehabilitation

Volunteers rehabilitating animals off-
site.

3,000

SOCIAL MEDIA

As part of our five-year Marketing Strategy, emphasis over the last 12 months has
been placed on growing our social media platforms which include Facebook,
Instagram and Youtube. We post daily videos and photos on our Facebook page
which now has almost 11,000 followers. This allows Native ARC to engage with the
community daily and promote our education messages to a wider audience.
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VETERINARY TREATMENT FACILITY

Native ARC is the first and only wildlife veterinary hospital in Western Australia and
the only veterinary hospital to also rehabilitate wildlife (a three-stage process
including intensive care, acclimatisation and pre-release conditioning). This is a
significant achievement and has placed Native ARC in an advantageous position as
we progress our vision to transition to a fully equipped wildlife hospital.

Native ARC employs two veterinarians (both part time) which ensures the Centre
has a veterinarian on site every day with both veterinarians also contributing
excessive pro bono time to the Centre. Native ARC is the only wildlife rehabilitation
centre to have every animal treated by a registered veterinarian making Native ARC
a ‘best practice’ organisation within the industry.

Native ARC has four Registered \eterinarians and nine Registered Veterinary
Nurses undertaking pro bono volunteer work at the Hospital on a weekly or
fortnightly basis.

Native ARC is working with the City of Cockburn to achieve its vision of being the
first state of the art wildlife veterinary hospital in Western Australia with unique eco-
tourism opportunities.

COMMITTEE FOR ANIMAL WELFARE IN EMERGENCIES

Wildlife rehabilitators in  Western Australia work tirelessly to protect our
precious wildlife in a state approximately 1/4 the size of the United States of
America.

As part of the WA State Emergency Management Arrangements, the first State
Support Plan — Animal Welfare in Emergencies (State Support PAWE) was
approved in November 2019. The State Support PAWE is maintained by the
Department of Primary Industries and Regional Development (DPIRD) and within the
plan, the Department of Biodiversity, Conservation and Attractions (DBCA) has the
responsibility for wildlife.

As a result of ongoing discussions, DPIRD recognised the role wildlife
rehabilitators could play to support any wildlife response. This is a fantastic outcome
and as a result, Native ARC was appointed as a Member on the Committee for
Animal Welfare in Emergencies (CAWE).

Members of the CAWE are representative of a greater community and have been
selected for their ability to collaborate with a wider network of likeminded
organisations. Native ARC was endorsed to represent wildlife rehabilitators in
Western Australia by several of the larger groups including Native Animal Rescue,
Darling Range Wildlife Shelter, Western Australia Seabird Rescue,
Maroo Wildlife Refuge and Bluegum Wildlife Rescue and Rehabilitation. Going
forward, Native @ ARC  planstodevelop a  strong network to ensure
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the wildlife rehabilitation industry is united with respect to wildlife in emergency
situations to ensure wildlife rehabilitators can contribute to the State Support
PAWE through the CAWE.

TOURISM

Qur vision for the future incorporates the expansion of Native ARC’s ability to provide
the community with environmental experiences, education and tourism opportunities.
The education and eco-tourism components will provide the community with exciting
opportunities to connect with the land, the natural environment and increase
community awareness of the importance of environmental sustainability. Eco-tourism
forms part of our revised income generating business model to ensure ongoing
sustainability of our new facility.

CALL CENTRE SERVICE

Native ARC received in excess of 8,000 calls in 2019 through is 24-hour phone
service. Many calls are directed to the Centre by the City of Cockburn regarding
community concerns about wildlife. The Wildcare Helpline run by the Department of
Biodiversity, Conservation and Attractions also refers callers to Native ARC for
wildlife assistance. Native ARC provides the only 24-hour phone service for wildlife
in Western Australia.

SCHOOL EDUCATION / TERTIARY EDUCATION / TRAINING

In 2019, in excess of 3,000 primary/secondary school education hours were provided
through onsite and off-site programs with more than 1500 participants attending
education and information sessions.

*Native ARC has been limited in the number of education and training opportunities
due to the Cockburn Wetlands Precinct Development and Covid-19.

PEOPLE WITH DISABILITIES

Native ARC encourages opportunities for people with disabilities to gain valuable
social skills and experience working with wildlife. Native ARC provided volunteer
opportunities to 6 volunteers with disabilities in 2019.

The Centre partners with Conservation Volunteers to provide on-site education
and hands on activities to students with special learning requirements and
provides opportunities for Bush Ranger groups.
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VOLUNTEERING OPPORTUNITIES/TRAINING

Native ARC provides volunteering opportunities for the Cockburn community with
most volunteers coming from the area. At any one-time Native ARC has between
200-220 regular volunteers providing their services at the Centre. Native ARC works
closely with the City of Cockburn Volunteer Resource Centre on a range of projects
promoting volunteering opportunities in the Cockburn area.

Our volunteers are representative of a variety of ages (16-80 years of age), ethnic
backgrounds and experiences.

Native ARC has a skilled team of gardening and maintenance volunteers who
dedicate more than 25 hours each week to maintaining the Centre, gardens and
grounds. This has drastically improved the site and surrounding areas which
supports Native ARC's lease responsibilities and the A Class reserve.

4 Registered Veterinarians and 9 Registered Veterinary Nurses undertake volunteer
work at the Centre's veterinary hospital.

MENTAL HEALTH AWARENESS

In 2014 Native ARC commenced ‘Self Care’ workshops for its volunteers to address
stress, burn out and mental health in animal care. The workshop was initially run as
a Fee for Service for participants. The content proved to be of immense value to
participants and Native ARC began investigations as to how this program could be
provided to a broader group at no cost due to the benefit it provided.

With support from the Rotary Club of Booragoon, two seminars are funded every
year with more than 100 participants attending.

Native ARC has been approached by veterinary clinics across Perth as well as the
Department of Biodiversity, Conservation and Attractions to run these courses for
their Wildlife Officers, Animal Control Agents and Wild Care Helpline Volunteers to
help address wellness issues in the work places.

VOLUNTEER SOCIAL EVENTS

In 2020 Native ARC hosted two volunteer social events which were sponsored
privately by Executive Committee Members (not paid for out of operational funds)
with the focus on recognising and rewarding the Centre’s 250 plus volunteers. These
included:

* Volunteer BBQ;
« Volunteer Christmas party.
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CORPORATE PARTNERSHIPS AND COMMUNITY DAYS

Native ARC recognises the importance of developing strong links with the private
sector in Cockburn and continues to explore opportunities for corporate groups to
utilise the Centre for team building activities.

Organisations participating in community days in the last twelve months:

Atco

BP Kwinana Refinery

City of Cockburn

Deloitte Australia
Fremantle Ports

Murdoch Guild of Students
RAC

US Navy

Water Corporation

. s 8 8 0 8 8

Native ARC hosted 23 team-based volunteering projects in 2019 with more than 350
participants contributing in-kind support to the Centre.

Native ARC partnered with Deloitte Australia in 2019 as part of Deloitte’s ‘Impact
Day’. The Executive Committee and staff of Native ARC participated in a series of
scoping and planning sessions facilitated by staff from Delcitte to develop a five-year
Marketing Strategy. This not only provides a framework for growth and expansion
but a guide for Native ARC's involvement in the Precinct.

Native ARC:

o is a Member of the DBCA Wildlife Rehabilitation Consultation Group.
o is a Member of the Turtle Watch Network Inc.

o is a Member of the Western Australian Wildlife Rehabilitation Council.
o is a Member of the Cockburn Wetlands Precinct Committee.

o is a Member of the Chamber of Commerce and Industry.

o is a Member of Volunteering WA.

o |Is a Member on the Committee for Animal Welfare in Emergencies.
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SUMMARY

We have had a long and productive relationship with the City of Cockburn who
support the activities of Native ARC and support Native ARC's vision.

The Centre has a strong focus on continuous improvement and values the
commitment of our volunteers to assist us achieve this. Ongoing support will assist
us to grow the Centre and ensure the Cockburn Wetlands Precinct continues to
develop and expand in partnership with the City of Cockburn.

Qur vision for the future incorporates the expansion of Native ARC’s ability to provide
the community with environmental experiences, education and tourism opportunities.

The education and eco-tourism components will provide the community with exciting
opportunities to connect with the land, the natural environment and increase
community awareness of the importance of environmental sustainability. Eco-tourism
will also provide opportunities for income generation as part of our new business
model.

Not only does the existing Veterinary Hospital provide onsite resources for the
provision of veterinary services to wildlife, it also serves as a prototype for education
and ecotourism experiences.

Our state-of-the-art wildlife hospital and rehabilitation facility will allow us to treat
more wildlife and pioneer new techniques to improve successful rehabilitation
outcomes in Western Australia. This will also position us as leaders in wildlife
medicine, research and conservation.

Native ARC’s ongoing development will ensure the Cockburn Wetlands Precinct can
offer the community a range of best practice environmentally based programs.

The next 12 months will be challenging for us as we transition into our new facility.
| am confident that with the skills and passion of our Executive Committee, dedicated

staff and huge team of volunteers we will continue to lead the way for wildlife
rehabilitation in Western Australia.

=

Robert Dunn
Chairman
Native ARC Inc.

190 of 227 l |

204 of 532
Document Set ID: 9674303
Version: 3, Version Date: 17/09/2(420




OCM 13/08/2020 ltem 13.1 Attachment 1

GAD 21/07/2020 Item 9.3 Attachment 2

Native ARC

Wit » Mohabyiiation » Sustainabiny
NATIVE ARC INCORPORATED

ABN: 83 275 625 469

Financial Report
for the year ended 30 June 2019
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Native ARC Incorporated ABN 83275625469
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2019
Note 2019 2018
$ $
Revenue

Fee for Service 38,949 36,009
Donations and Fundraising 101,920 91,972
Grant Income (excl, Capital Grants) 91,265 107,007
Interest 1,207 926
Total Revenue 233,341 236,814

Expenses
Administration expenses (6,3686) (7,423)
Employment Costs (117,755)  (116,358)
Fundraising expenses (18,601) (17,842)
Service provision expenses (excl, Depreciation) (89,096) (84,604)
Depreciation 2 (43,773) (35,008)
Operating surplus/(deficit) before i tax (42,160) (25,120)
Capital Grants 0 52,642
Total Comprehensive surplus/(deficit) (42,160) 27,522

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.
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Native ARC Incorporated ABN 83275625469
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT 30 JUNE 2019
Note 2019 2018
$ $
ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS
Cash on hand 3 141,150 124,277
Accounts receivable and other debtors 4 18,126 45,744
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 159,276 170,021
NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Buildings 5 87,068 103,634
Plant and equipment 5 42,337 45,458
Vehicle 5 11,911 18,547
TOTAL NON-CURRENT ASSETS 141,316 167,639
TOTAL ASSETS 300,591 337,660
LIABILITIES
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Long Service leave <12months 9,211 2,725
Accounts payable and other payables [ 22,348 19,263
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 31,559 21,988
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES ~ Long Service Leave 6 346 4,827
TOTAL LIABILITIES 31,905 26,815
NET ASSETS 268,686 310,845
EQUITY
Retained surplus 249,330 310,845
Reserves — replacement vehicle 8 19,356 -
TOTAL EQUITY 268,686 310,845
The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.
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Native ARC Incorporated ABN 83275625469

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2019

Reserves Retained Total

Profits Equity

$ H $

Balance at 1 July 2017 - 283,322 283,322

Surplus for the year aftributable to members of the entity 27,522 27,522

Other comprehensive income for the year - -

Total prehensive | attributable to bers - 27,522 27,522
of the entity

Balance at 30 June 2018 - 310,845 310,845

Comprehensive income

Deficit for the year attributable to members of the entity - (42,160) (42,160)

Other comprehensive income for the year - - -

Total P ive i attributable to bers (42,160) (42,160)
of the entity

Transfer to reserves - vehicle replacement 19,358 (19,356) -

Balance at 30 June 2019 19,356 249,329 268,686

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.
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Native ARC Incorporated ABN 83275625469

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 June 2019

Note 2019 2018
$ §
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Receipts from sales: education, training, members 38,949 36,909
Receipts from donations, bequests and fundraising 89,920 91,972
Grants received 91,265 159,649
Payments to suppliers and employees (199,009)  (322,631)
Interest received 1,297 926
Net cash (used in)/generated from operating activities 7 22,422 (33,175)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Payment for fixed assets (5,549) (52,642)
Net cash used in investing activities (5,549) (52,642)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash held 16,873 (85,817)
Cash on hand at the beginning of the financial year 124,277 210,083
Cash on hand at the end of the financial year 3 141,150 124,277

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.
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Native ARC Incorporated ABN 83275625469

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2019

The financial statements cover Native ARC Incorporated as an individual entity, incorporated and
domiciled in Australia. Native ARC Incorporated is an association incorporated in Western Australia under
the Associations Incorporation Act 2015.

The financial statements were authorised for issue on 20™ September 2019 by the members of the
association.

NOTE 1: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of Preparation

In the Committee of Members’ opinion, the incorporated association is not a reporting entity because there
are no users dependent on general purpose financial statements.

These are special purpose financial statements that have been prepared for the purposes of complying
with the Australian Charities and Not-for-profits Commission Act 2012 and Western Australian legislation
for Associations Incorporation Act 2015, the Charitable Collections Act 1946 and associated regulations.
The Committee of Members have determined that the accounting policies are appropriate to meet the
needs of the members of Native ARC Incorporated. These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with the recognition and measurement requirements specified by the Australian Accounting
Standards and interp i issued by the Australian Accounting Standards Board ("AASB") and the
disclosure requirements of AASB 101 'Presentation of Financial Statements’, AASB 107 'Statement of
Cash Flows', AASB 108 'Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors', AASB 1048
‘Interpretation of Standards’ and AASB 1054 ‘Australian Additional Disclosures', as appropriate for not-for-
profit oriented entities.

Accounting Policles
a. Revenue

Non-reciprocal grant revenue is recognised in the profit or loss when the entity obtains control of
the grant and it is probable that the economic benefits gained from the grant will flow to the entity
and the amount of the grant can be measured reliably.

If conditions are attached to the grant which must be satisfied before the entity is eligible to
receive the contribution, the recognition of the grant as revenue will be deferred until those
conditions are satisfied. Native ARC Inc. accounts for Grant Income using this method.

When grant revenue is received whereby the entity incurs an obligation to deliver economic value
directly back to the contributor, this is considered a reciprocal transaction and the grant revenue is
recognised in the statement of financial position as a liability until the service has been delivered
to the contributor; otherwise the grant is recognised as income on receipt.

Donations and bequests are recognised as revenue when received.

Interest revenue is recognised as it accrues using the effective interest method, which for floating
rate financial assets is the rate inherent in the instrument.

Revenue from the rendering of a service is recognised upon the delivery of the service to the
customer.

All revenue is stated net of the amount of goods and services tax.
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Mative ARC Incorporated ABN 83275625469

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 June 2019

Property, Plant and Equipment

Plant and equipment

Plant and equipment are measured on the cost basis less depreciation and any impairment
losses.

The carrying amount of plant and equipment is reviewed annually by directors to ensure it is not in
excess of the recoverable amount from these assets. The ble amount is d using
judgement on the basis of the net realisable value that would be received from the assets’ sale.

In the event the carrying amount of plant and equipment is greater than the recoverable amount,
the carrying amount is written down immediately to the estimated recoverable amount. A formal
assessment of recoverable amount is made when impairment indicators are present.

Plant and equipment that have been contributed at no cost, or for nominal cost, are recognised at
the fair value of the asset at the date it is acquired.

Depreciation

The depreciable amount of all fixed assets including buildings and vehicles, is depreciated on a
straight-line basis over the asset's useful life to the entity commencing from the time the asset is
held ready for use.

The depreciation rates used for each class of depreciable assets are:

Class of Fixed Asset Depreciation Rate
Buildings 10% -25%
Plant and equipment 20%-33%
Vehicle 20%

The assets' residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end
of each reporting period.

An asset's carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset's
carrying amount is greater than its estimated recoverable amount.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with the carrying amount.
These gains or losses are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise. No assets
have been sold in 2018-19 (note sale of assels is restricted by Native ARC's Constitution).

Leases
Native ARC Inc. does not lease fixed assets.

Impairment of Assets

At the end of each reporting period, the entity reviews the carrying amounts of its assets to
determine whether there is any indication that those assets have been impaired. If such an
indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset, being the higher of the asset's fair amount
less costs of disposal and value in use, is compared to the asset's carrying amount. Any excess of
the asset's carrying amount over its bl t is recognised immediately in profit or
loss.

Where the future economic benefits of the asset are not primarily dependent upon the asset's
ability to generate net cash inflows and when the entity would, if deprived of the asset, replace its
remaining future economic benefits, value in use is determined as the depreciated replacement
cost of an asset.
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Native ARC Incorporated ABN 83275625469

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 June 2019

. Employee Provisions

Provision is made for the association's obligation for employee benefits. Short-term employee
benefits are benefits (other than termination benefits) that are expected to be settled wholly before
12 months after the end of the annual reporting period in which the employees render the related
service, including wages, salaries and annual leave.

The liability for annual leave and long service leave not expected to be settied within 12 months of
the reporting date are measured at the present value of expecied future payments to be made in
respect of services provided by employees up to the reporting date using the projected unit credit
method. Consideration is given to the expected future wage and salary levels, experience of
employee departures and periods of service. Exp d future pay ts are di d using
market yields at the reporting date on national government bonds with terms to maturity and
currency that match, as closely as possible, the estimated future cash outflows.

The asscciation's obligations for short-term employee benefits such as wages, salaries and
annual leave are recognised as part of accounts payable and other payables in the statement of
financial position.
Contributions are made by the entity to an employee superannuation fund and are charged as
expenses when incurred. Payments due to the Superannuation Clearing House are recognised as
part of accounts payable in the statement of financial position.

f. Cash on Hand
Cash on hand equivalents includes cash on hand, deposits held at-call with banks, other short-
term highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less, and the PayPal
account.

a. A ts Receivable and Other Debt

Native ARC Inc. introduced inveicing through the SAGE accounting system and holds accounts
receivable at year end. All invoices relate to the 2018/19 accounting year. There are no doubtful
debt: Pi its reflect | premiums relating to 2019/20.

h. Goods and Services Tax (GST)

Revenues, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of GST, except where the
amount of GST incurred is not recoverable from the Australian Taxation Office (ATO).

Receivables and payables are stated inclusive of the amount of GST-receivable or payable. The
net amount of GST recoverable from, or payable to, the ATO is included with other receivables or
payables in the statement of financial position.

Cash flows are presented on a net basis.
i. Income Tax

No provision for income tax has been raised as the entity is exempt from income tax under Div 50
of the Income Tax Assessment Act 1997.

J. Intangible Assets
Native ARC Inc. does not have Intangible Assets
K. Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the entity has a legal or constructive obligation, as a result of past
events, for which it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will result and that outflow can
be reliably measured. Provisions recognised represent the best estimate of the amounts required
to settle the obligation at the end of the reporting period.

I Comparative Figures
Native ARC Inc. has not retrospectively applied an accounting policy.
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Native ARC Incorporated ABN 83275625469

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 June 2019

Accounts Payable and Other Payables/Accruals

Accounts payable and other payables represent the liability outstanding at the end of the reporting
period for goods and services received by the association during the reporting period which
remain unpaid. The balance is recognised as a current liability with the amount being normally
paid within 20 days of recognition of the liability.

Critical A ting Esti and Judg

The members evaluate i and judgements incorporated into the financial statements
based on historical knowledge and best available current information. Estimates assume a
reasonable expeclation of future events and are based on current trends and economic data,
obtained both externally and within the association.

Key estimates
0] Impairment
The jati ining useful lives and impairment at the end of each

reporting period by evaluating conditions and events specific to the association that may
be indicative of impairment triggers.

Economic Dependence

Native ARC Incorporated is dependent on the City of Cockburn for around 40% of its funding used
to operate the business. At the date of this report the Committee has no reason to believe the City
will not continue to support Native ARC Incorporated.

New A ting Standards for Application in Future Periods

AASB 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers
This standard is applicable to annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019. The
standard provides a single standard for revenu gnition. The core principle of the standard is
that an entity will recognise revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods or services to
b inan t that reflects the consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled in
exchange for those goods or services. The standard will require: contracts (either written, verbal
or implied) to be identified, together with the separate performance obligations within the contract,
determine the transaction price, adjusted for the time value of money excluding credit risk;
allocation of the transaction price to the separate performance obligations on a basis of relative
stand-alone selling price of each distinct goed or service, or estimation approach if no distinct
observable prices exist; and recognition of revenue when each performance obligation is satisfied.
Credit risk will be presented separately as an expense rather than adjusted to revenue. For
goods, the performance obligation would be satisfied when the customer obtains control of the
goods. For services, the performance obligation is satisfied when the service has been provided,
typically for promises to transfer services to customers. For performance obligations satisfied over
time, an entity would select an appropriate measure of progress to determine how much revenue
should be recognised as the performance obligation is satisfied. Contracts with customers will be
presented in an entity's statement of financial position as a contract liability, a contract asset, or a
receivable, depending on the relationship between the entity's performance and the customer's
payment. Sufficient quantitative and qualitative disclosure is required to enable users to
und W the contracts with cust s, the significant judgements made in applying the
guidance to those contracts, and any assets recognised from the costs to obtain or fulfil a contract
with a customer. The Association will adopt this standard from 1 July 2019 and after considering
the impact currently expect this to be immaterial.
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Native ARC Incorporated ABN 83275625469

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 June 2018

New A ting Standards for Application in Future Periods (cont)

AASB 16 Leases

This standard is applicable to annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019, The
standard replaces AASB 117 'Leases’ and for lessees will eliminate the classifications of operating
leases and finance leases. Subject to exceptions, a 'right-of-use' asset will be capitalised in the
statement of financial position, measured at the present value of the unavoidable future lease
payments to be made over the lease term. The exceptions relate to short-term leases of 12
months or less and leases of low-value assets (such as personal computers and small office
furniture) where an accounting policy choice exists whereby either a ‘right-of-use' asset is
recognised or lease payments are expensed to profit or loss as incurred. A liability corresponding
to the capitalised lease will also be recognised, adjusted for lease prepayments, lease ir i
received, initial direct costs incurred and an estimate of any future restoration, removal or
dismantling costs. Straight-line operating lease expense recognition will be replaced with a
depreciation charge for the leased asset (included in operating costs) and an interest expense on
the recognised lease liability (included in finance costs). In the earlier periods of the lease, the
expenses associated with the lease under AASE 16 will be higher when compared to lease
expenses under AASBE 117. However, EBITDA (Earnlngs Before Interest, Tax, Depreciation and
Amortisation) results will be improved as the c i is replaced by interest exp

and depreciation in profit or loss under AASB 16 For classmwtlcn within the statement of cash
flows, the lease payments will be separated into both a principal (financing activities) and interest
(either operating or financing activities) component. For lessor accounting, the standard does not
substantially change how a lessor accounts for leases. The Association will adopt this standard
from 1 July 2019 and after considering the impact currently expect this to be immaterial.

AASB 1058 Income of Not-for-Profit Entities

This standard is applicable to annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019. This
Standard Is applicable to transactions that do not arise from enforceable contracts with customers
involving performance obligations. The significant accounting requirements of AASBE 1058 are as
follows: Income arising from an excess of the initial carrying amount of an asset over the related
contributions by owners, increases in liabilities, decreases in assets and revenue should be
immediately recognised in profit or loss. For this purpose, the assets, liabilities and revenue are to
be measured in accordance with other applicable Standards.

Liabilities should be recognised for the excess of the initial carrying amount of a financial asset
(received in a transfer to enable the entity to acquire or construct a recognisable non-financial
asset that is to be controlled by the entity) over any related amounts recognised in accordance
with the applicable Standards. The liabilities must be amortised to profit or loss as income when
the entity satisfies its obligations under the transfer. The Association will adopt this standard from
1 July 2019 and after considering the impact currently expect this to be immaterial.

Page 11 of 20

| | 201 of 227

215 of 532

Document Set ID: 9674303
Version: 3, Version Date: 17/09/2020




Item 13.1 Attachment 1 OCM 13/08/2020

Item 9.3 Attachment 2 GAD 21/07/2020

Mative ARC Incorporated ABN 83275625469

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2019

NOTE 2: DEPRECIATION EXPENSES

2019 2018
$ $

Depreciation and amortisation:
Buildings 16,566 13,028
Plant and equipmant 20,571 16,244
Vehicles 6,636 6,636
Total depreciation and amortisation expenses 43772 35,908

NOTE 3: CASH ON HAND

2019 2018
$ §
Cash at bank — unrestricted 140,799 124,276
Cash float 351 -

141,150 124,276

NOTE 4: ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE AND OTHER DEBTORS

2019 2018

$ $

Trade Debtors (* relating to 17/18) 0 32,417
Prepayments 4,502 5,980
Accrued Income 13,624 7,347-
18,128 45,744

*Invoice to BP for $30,000 - 2018 Grant Funds dated 19" April 2018 was the significant debtor. This was
paid to Native ARC on 12" July 2018,
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Native ARC Incorporated ABN 83275625469

NOTE 7: CASH FLOW INFORMATION

2019 2018
$ $
Reconciliation of cash flows from operating activities with net
current year surplus
Net current year surplus/(deficit) (42,160) 27,523
Non-cash flows in current year surplus:
- depreciation and amortisation 43,772 35,908
- FOC Assetincome less asset reclassifications wloffs (12,000)
Changes in assets and liabilities:
- Increase/(decrease) in grants received in advance - (45,739)
- Decrease/(increase) in debtors/prepayments 27,618 (44,044)
- Increase/(decrease) in accounts payable and other payables 5,192 (6,823)
Net cash generated from / (used in) operating activities 22,422 (33,175)
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Native ARC Incorporated ABN 83275625469

NOTE 8: RESERVES
The Committee has created a reserve to recognise the commitment to purchase a new commercial
vehicle. The expectation is that this reserve will be utilised in the year ending 30"June 2021.

NOTE 9: KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL DISCLOSURE

The compensation made to senior officers of the incorporated association is set out below (including
Superannuation). Management salaries are funded through a Grant from the City of Cockbum. No
compensation was paid to any other committee member of the association:

2019 2018

$ $

Co-Manager: Dean Huxley 49,920 50,821
Co-Manager: Diane Munrowd 21,388 22,577

71,308 73,498

NOTE 10: REMUNERATION OF AUDITORS
During the financial year, the following fees were paid or payable for services provided by Australian Audit,
the auditor of the incorporated association:

2019 2018
$ $
Audit services - Australian Audit 1,200 2,000

NOTE 11: RELATED PARTIES
There were no transactions with related parties during the current and previous year.

NOTE 12: EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD
No matter or circumstance has arisen since 30 June 2019 that has significantly affected, or may
significantly affect Native ARC's operations or the result of those operations.

NOTE 13: ENTITY DETAILS
The registered office and principal place of business is:
Native ARC Inc.

172 Hope Road
Bibra Lake
Perth WA 6163
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AUSTRALIAN * *
AUDIT * .

DiRECTORS:

AUDITOR'S INDEPENDENCE DECLARATION

To the Management Committee of Native ARC Inc

In accordance with the requirements of section 60-40 of the Australian Charities and Not-for-profits
Commission Act 2012 and section 80 of the Associations Incorporation Act 2015 (WA), in relation to
our audit of the financial report of Native ARC Inc for the year ended 30 June 2019, to the best of my
knowledge and belief, there have been:

a) No contraventions of the auditor independence requirements of section 60-40 of the
Australian Charities and Not-for-profits Commission Act 2012 in relation to the audit; and

b) No contraventions of the auditor independence requirements of the Associations
Incorporation Act 2015 (WA) in relation to the audit; and

c) No contraventions of any applicable code of professional conduct in relation to the audit

W

Alastair Abbott, ca, MAICD, M. Forensic Accounting
Registered Company Auditor number 486826

Director
Australian Audit

Dated: | & (Q&éélzf‘ Q@(c?

A

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS™
AUSTRALLS » HEW JLALANG

PO nox 7465 CLosters Square PO WA 6850 | Leves 8, 251 St Geonces Terrack Perro, WA 6000 AusTRALIA
Proxe: (08) 9218 9922 | EyuL: INFORAUSAUDIT.COM.AU | WWW.AUSTRALIANAUIIT.COM.AU | ABN: 63 166 712 698

Liability limited by a scheme |l|=pr_m'l'<l_ Trade mark of Chartered Accountants Australis
under ProfessiRaa@liofitQ.egislation and New Zealand and used with nermissio
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Dige
RoBERT CAMPBELL CA, CPA. RCA

Virar Pate

ALASTAIR ARBOTT CA, RCA, MFC

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the members of Native ARC Inc

Report on the Audit of the Financial Report

Qualified Audit Opinion

We have audited the financial report of Native ARC Inc (the Entity), which comprises the statement
of financial position as at 30 June 2019, the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income, statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and
notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and the
statement by the Management Committee.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial report has been prepared in accordance with
requirements of the Associations Incorporation Act 2015 (WA) and Division 60 of the Australian
Charities and Not-for-Profits Commission Act 2012, including:

a) giving a true and fair view of the Entity’s financial position as at 30 June 2019, and of its
financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended; and

b) complying with Australian Accounting Standards to the extent described in Note 1, and
Division 60 the Australian Charities and Not-for-profits Commission Regulation 2013.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Financial Report section of our report. We are independent of the Entity in accordance with the
Australian Charities and Not-for-profits Commission Act 2012 (ACNC Act) and the ethical
requirements of the Accounting Professional and Ethical Standards Board's APES 110 Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (the Code) that are relevant to our audit of the financial report in
Australia. We have also fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion.

Emphasis of Matter - Basis of Accounting

We draw attention to Note 1 to the financial report, which describes the basis of accounting. The
financial report has been prepared to assist the Entity to meet the requirements of the Associations
Incorporation Act 2015 (WA) and the ACNC Act. As a result, the financial report may not be suitable

for another purpose. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter. ﬁ
PO pox 7465 Cuosters Squane PO WA 6850 | Levew 8, 251 St Georces Terrace Perri, WA 8000 AustiaLia MARTERED A S
Puoxe: (08) 9218 9922 | ExuL: INFOEAUSAUDIT.COM.AU | WWW AUSTRALIANAUDIT.COM.AU | ABN: 63 166 712 656 “ A,»-.._.A.jf?rl:_hn :

Page 18 of 20

Liability limited by a scheme approved Trade mark of Chartered Accountants Australin
under Professional Standards Legislation and New Zealand and used with nermission

| | 207 of 227

Document Set ID: 9674303
Version: 3, Version Date: 17/09/2020

221 of 532




Item 13.1 Attachment 1

OCM 13/08/2020

Item 9.3 Attachment 2

GAD 21/07/2020

Page 19 of 20

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Report

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial report and
have determined that the basis of preparation described in Note 1 to the financial report is
appropriate to meet the requirements of the Associations Incorporation Act 2015 (WA) and the
ACNC Act and the needs of the members. The responsibility of Management also includes such
internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation and fair
presentation of a financial report that is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing the financial report, management is responsible for assessing the Entity’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters relating to going concern and using
the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Entity or to
cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Entity's financial reporting
process.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Report

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial report as a whole is
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with the Australian Auditing Standards will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of this financial report.

As part of an audit in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

* Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial report, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk
of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

* Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Entity’s internal control.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists

Australian Audit is a CA Practice
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related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Entity’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial
report or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Entity to cease to continue as a going concern.

* Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial report, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial report represents the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
In our opinion, Native ARC Inc has complied with 60-30(3)(b), (c) and (d) of the ACNC Act and
82(1)(b), (c) and (d) of the Associations Incorporation Act 2015 (WA):
* by providing us with all information, explanation and assistance necessary for the conduct of
the audit;

* by keeping financial records sufficient to enable a financial report to be prepared and
audited ; and

* by keeping other records required by Part 3-2 of the ACNC Act, including those records
required by Section 50-5 that correctly record its operations, so as to enable any recognised
assessment activity to be carried out in relation to the entity.

* by keeping other records required by Part 5 of the Associations Incorporation Act 2015 (WA),
including those records required by Section 66 that correctly record its operations, so as to
engbleftrie and faiy financial statements to be prepared.

astair Abbott, ca, MAICD, M. Forensic Accounting
Registered Company Auditor number 486826
Director
Australian Audit

Dated: | @Céé@(‘ o) (9
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wild lives matter
D conne vith & nurture the natural ironment
2 Austre eading natl
d rehabllitat sanctuary |
n, training ¢ Lo tou

Conservation / Biodiversity =+ Wecreate and preserve habaat
+ We recognise cultural inheritance and promote values of: Respect, Advoca
and Protection of the natural environ ment.

Specialised Wildlife Medicine + We have speclalised widife veternary surgeons on-ste.
+ We have veterinary faciiities designed for wildide

§pecldised wildlife * We have faciities for wildife rehabiitation to accommecite a range
Rehabilitation of native species.
+ We pravide support for sick and injured wikiife 365 days a year.
Education & Training « We provide primary, secondary and communily education to increase
knowledge and awareness of wildife and the importance of creating and
presenving habrat,

* We provide training opportunities for local universibes, education
providers, corporate orgyr In ack to volunteer opportunities
for the community.

Community Engagement < We are an Inclusive organisation and provde opportunties for the
community to connect with wildite and the natural environment.

+ We recognise the value of partnesships (0 Support our Vision, Purpose
and Aspiration.

Eco Tourism + We provide a unique e xparience in

« Weaolfer insight iInto a working wildife sanctuary with a focus on blodiversity

and conservation

Revive

Respect

Retain
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Address: 172 Hope Rd, Bibra Lake WA 6163
Phone: (08) 9417 7105

We are currently not inducting new volunteers due to the Covid-19 crisis. However, please submit
your application forms online and we will contact you as soon as we re-commence our regular
volunteer programs.

Our Volunteers

We have a diverse group of volunteers united by their
commitment to helping native wildlife. Our volunteers
cumrently number over 250 and range from those
who are still at school, TAFE or university to a large
group of retirees.

Who can volunteer?

Anyone with a passion for native wikdife and the
environment can volunteer. You don't need any prior
skills or experience but you do need to be willing to
commit to a minimum time per week or fortnight.
However, you must be 16 years of age or above and
we recommend you have a current tetanus vaccination.

Volunteer Induction & Training

We train all volunteers on site and you do not need
to have previous expenence working with animals.
There are two induction sessions. The first is a one
hour general introduction to volunteering at Native
ARC. If you then decide to continue, the second
provides structured competency based in-house
training and hands on experience.

Become a Volunteer

To apply to be a volunteer and attend the general
ntroduction, simply complete a volunteer application
form which is available on our website:
www.nativearc.org.au

FRONT COVER: Little Penguin rescued by Native ARC see page 9
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To our valued supporters,

It's been a difficult start to 2020 for all of us, The
Cowvid-19 situation has had a sigrificant impact on our
organisation both financially and operationally.

Veterinary Hospitals are classified as an essential
senice and as Western Australia’s only widife
veterinary hospital, we remained operational to provide
the community with an essential service for wildife
needing care.

Unfortunately, to ensure we comply with al social
distancing requirements, we have put a temporary

hold on the majority of our volunteer positions. This has
meant most of our dedicated, long term volunteers are
unable to volunteer on-site. They are stil supporting
Native ARC from home with various jobs including
phones, administration, data entry, deliveries, food
preparation, off-site rehabiitation, rescues and releases.
| would like to thank our amazing team of volunteers for
their unwavering support and for being the backbone of
Native ARC as always.

Our dedicated part ime employees are also
working tirelessly to keep our doors open. Our entire

ISSUE NO. 09

Native ARC.

CHAIRMAN'S ADDRESS

management team are now working in the hospital and
rehabiitation areas t0 ensure our veterinary hospital
remains open. We stil have a veterinarian on-ste 365
days a year and are available for all widife emergencies.

The construction of our new state of the art wildife
hospital and rehabiltation faciity is stil underway. | would
like to thank the City of Cockbum (who are underwriting
the project) and BP Kwinana Refinery for their many
years of support.

Wie look forward to sharing our joumey with you on
social media and we are very excited to resume our
regular volunteer and community outreach programs as
S00N as possible.

| hope you and your familes
stay safe and look after each
other during this difficult time.
Native ARC wil continue to
‘Help Wild Lives Live'.

Thankyou,

ROBERT DUNN
Chairman

Native ARC made its very first music video! As part of
our ongoing education efforts and in an attempt to raise

funds for a fundraising coordinator, Native ARC partnered

with Perth band, Paradise Warriors, to produce a song
and associated music video, ‘Lke an Animal'. Visit our
Youtube page to check out the video!
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A huge thanks to the
generosity of Total Eden
in becoming one of
our annual Sponsors
by contributing $2500

TOTAL
v EDENS

rehabiitation of our native widife. Without sponsorship such as
this we would not be able to continue with the work we do at
Native ARC.

With aimost 40 years of experience, the Total Eden team
delivers major imgation and landscaping projects in Westem
Austraia to the very highest specification.

Whether commercial developments and sub-divisions, public
open space, parkiand and playgrounds, playing fields and golf
clubs, Total Eden's technical knowledge and comprehensive
approach is unrivaled in this industry. The breadth and scale of
their completed projects adds up to an unmatched capabiity
to respond to different spedifications, designs and spaces,
materials and surfaces.

Total Eden offers a comprehensive senvice that covers water
design and engineering, landscape and irrigation construction
and maintenance, as well as a network of rrigation reta stores,
making them a one stop shop for your proect's needs.

You can expect a commitment to your project, innovation,
excellent time management, a respectful, posttive-people
culture, and an excellent safety record.

Find out more at http://totaleden.com.au/

A SPECIAL THANKS TO OUR SUPPORTERS

SIGMA CHEMICALS \

We are very grateful to Sigma Chemicals for k
generously donating three drums of liquid chiorine
to Native ARC on a three monthly basis.

Ltd) is a dverse company and preferred supplier
across the mining, manufacturing, and pool and
spa industries worldwide with over 51 years in
the business. They can source, store and deliver
a wide range of raw materials, specialty and
process chemicals and dangerous goods specific
to your requirements, with experience in import
and export trade.

Sigma can provide expert advice and the highest
qualty chemicals and equipment for treating
water in swimming pools and spas (domestic and
commercial), drinking water, agnculture and waste
water.

For further information go to the Sigma

NETLINK GROUP

Thank you to Pedro De Carvaho from the Netlink Group who has kindly donated office fumiture to Native ARC.
The Netlink Group has been providing IT products and senvices to Perth businesses since 1994,

Their products and services include the folowing:

e Managed IT Services ¢ Managed Communications
*  Cyber Security Solutions e [T Consuiting Services
*  Cloud Computing *  Enterprise Mobility Services

Simple Managed Effective I

etlinkgroup

Netink has gained a number of accolades for the quality of their service including Telstra Gold Business Partner
For further information go to the Netlink website at https://netlinkgroup.com.au/why-netlink/
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Thank you, Able

generous donation
of bleach and bleach
dispensers to Native ARC.

i Sy Able

'\ Able Westchem is a wholly owned Western

Australian Chemical Manufacturing and
Tol Blending Company, producing a

b comprehensive range of products to a wide

range of industries.

Since the Company was founded in 1971,
Able Westchem has grown to be recognised

as one of Westem Australia’s largest and

nnovative manufacturers and suppliers of
general and specialty chemical products to a

wide range of industries.

For further information go to the Able

Westchem web site at https://www.
westchem.com.auw/

ABLE WESTCHEM

WISTCHEM

fikeem

. WESTERN
<o, H
0 envirapest |
& WEED SOLUTIONS i
Envirapest provide pro bono environmentally friendly rodent '
control to Native ARC.

Envirapest is Western Australia’s most awarded pest,
termite and weed control business, They are famiy owned
and operated and won the National Pest Manager of the
year award for 2019/2020.

Envirapest started ther business over 17 years ago and
now serve around 10,000 Perth homes, businesses and
government organisations on an annual basis. With 50
years combined experience in the pest, termite and weed
control service ndustry they have an acknowledged
reputation for providing Perth's safest environmental termite,
pest and weed control solutions,

For further details go to the Envirapest website at
https//www.envirapest.com.au

TEMPFENCE WA

Jamie Monk of TempFence WA not only donated 40
metres of temporary fencing to Native ARC so that
we could trial a new enclosure for our two emus, Welj
and Weerlo, but also installed it for us. Thank you very
much, Jamie!

TempFence s a rapidly growing family business with
20 years of temporary fencing experience senvicing
the greater Perth metro area from as far north as Two
Rocks and as far south as Mandurah. There is no job
too big or smal and includes temporary fencing for
publc and private events, domestic and commercial
buiiding sites, insurance work and all aspects of
temporary pool fencing. All of the fencing products
avalable for hire comply with Australian Government
Safety Standards.

They have a large and varied customer base including
BGC Construction, Construct Senvices, Highbury
Homes, Solutions Buildng Group, UWA and a large
number of local counails,

For further information go to the TempFence WA
website at http//www.tempfencewa.com.au/

EEEE

TempFence

Thank you to Commercial Netmakers of Bibra Lake for
their donation of 100 metres of shade dloth.
Commercial Netmakers specalises in high qualty,
durable custom made nets that are taiored to customer
needs. Their custom made nets include the following:

* Sporting nets, such as goal nets and perimeter and
divider bamier nets for use in all types of sporting
activities.

*  Pest control nets, ideal for excluding birds and
insects and protecting widife and personnel,

* Barmier nets and supportive structures for salety.

e Mning nets and other Industry nets for tie down,
under conveyor belts, egress net, BSEN Safety
Nets for fall arrest, bin/basket cover, debxis, shade
& more.

*  Nets for horticultural and agricultural use.

e Environmental netting for evaporation ponds, turkey
nests, storage and waste facilties, contanment
netting, mining bird netting and more.

Commercial
Netmakers
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OUR EDUCATION PYTHONS
YLEAND $POT

Common Name: Woma Python
Scientific Name: Aspidites ramsayi
Common Name: Stimson Python
Scientific Name: Antaresia stimsoni

Argyle is our Woma Python and
Spot is our Stimson Python. Both
are wildlife ambassadors, helping
visitors learn about snakes and
the importance of caring for the
environment.

Spot has been with Native ARC
since 2009 and Argyle since
2015. When Argyle arrived, a ot of
handing work was needed to get
him to be the calm, friendly snake
that he is today. Spot has always
been a delight.

Native ARC has a team of about

10 reptie crew members who take
care of the day to day husbandry of
our education snakes and kzards.
One of those members is Sophie,
who comes into Native ARC up to
three times a week to clean, weigh,
feed and handle the repties. She is
particularty fond of Argyle and Spot.

We recantly constructed a snake
enrichment board, which we now
use to display the natural movement
of the snakes when we go out to
education sessions.

SUUUUY

FACTS ABOUT PYTHONS

n nome: Python

Mame: Pythonidae

J

L. Pythons are a family of nom-venomous snakes.
2. There are 41 species of pythen found within the family Pythonidae

3. The largest python reaches P to 10 metres in length and has o weight of
up to 115 kilos. However, the Stimson Python is o small python only growing
Yo a metre long while the Woma Python grows to abeyt 1.5 metres.

4. Pythons have a long Iif
ng bte with the lifespan being from 15 1
depondng on the species. " ke

5. They are constrictors and kill their prey by squeezing them yntil they stop
hre;hng. Aha; the death of their prey. these huge snakes swallow it as
avngle piece. if they swallow g large t

s @® prey it can lost for several weeks

6. Pythons have a slow metaboli
¢ rate and, therafore. th,
without food for a long time. R

7. Diet: Small mammals, frogs, birds and lizards

A python tastes the air with its fongue to smell if prey is nearby. Also
|pec:xl temperature-sensing pits on its Foce can sense the heat of o
nearby animal - this helps them find warm- bl

. oded prey ¢ " k
or among dense foliage, e dark

2. Th: heart of a python is not found ot g fixed point in its body. Instead

1t keeps on moving oround in order to mak . :
e room for

swallowed by the snake, iy

10. Pythons are egg layers. After they lay their cluteh of vpte 19 eggs,
females typically incubate them until they hatch which is uwd?ygaghclm
:::,m'mtbh‘,tburmg the incubation period, females will not eat and only
: @ Bask to raise their body temperature, After the 29gs hatch, she
‘eaves and the babies are on their own,

1. Both the Woma python and Stimson Python are nocturnal; by day they
shelter in hollow logs and burrows and then search for prey ot night

1. K

2. Known as Kuniya to members of several central Australion Aberiginal
@roups, the Woma python is o very important creation ancestor and the
Kuniya and Liry story is one of the major Creotion stories

N
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PATIENT PROHILE -
NESTLING KOOKABURRAS

This summer season we had 8 nestling

kookaburras admitted into care, all from

K different locations. When they were
rescued they only had pin feathers. Over
a period of about six weeks they were
raised offsite by our off-site rehabilitators.
They had to be fed up to 8 times a day
before this was reduced to 3 times a day.
They were weighed daily to calculate
exactly how much and how often they had
to be fed. As you can imagine, this was
incredibly labour intensive.

As the kookaburras grew they transitioned
into a pre-release enclosure. Gradually,
one by one, they became more confident,
leaving their nest and perching in the
enclosure,

Most of the kookaburras formed strong
bonds and three separate locations were
chosen to soft release them. The first two,
who were released at Bibra Lake, have
now been observed successfully catching
insects and wild mice.

FACTS ABOUT KOOKABURRA

yn name: Laughing Kookaburra

Scientific Name: Dacelo novaeguineae
ool Focts About Kookaburras
1. The word kookaburra comes from the Australian aboriginal word
guuguubarra and was derived from the sound the bird makes.

2. The loughing kookaburra is the largest member of the Kingfisher
family in the world, Although they are members of the Kingfisher
family, they don’t need to live near water and fish isn't o major
part of their diet.

3, They have long beaks or bils which can grow up to 10 cms long.
They use their large beaks to catch snakes, lizards, small birds,
mice and insects.

4. The family unit consists of @ monogamous male and female pair,
together with up to 6 helper birds. These helper birds are older
generations of of fspring who help their parents to care for the
next generation.

5. They are territorial birds that nest in tree holes. Females lay one to
five eggs- The chicks are born blind and featherless and are looked
after by the family unt,

6. The kookaburra is well odapted to its Australian habitat. s
feathers are thicker, with about 25% better insulation, then birds
of its size. In order to conserve energy, it fies slowly and also
lowers its metoboksm and body temperature by up to 9.1°C during
the night.

7. Kookaburras are famous for their distinctive call which sounds bke
laughter and hence the name ‘Loughing Kookaburra'. Groups of
kookaburras often call loudly ot dawn and dust and their calls are
known as the ‘Bushman’s Clock’.

T i i i

8. The Kookaburra’s call is to establish the territory of the family
unit and warn of f other kookaburras. And it is very much o social
behaviour: if a kookaburra is held alone in coptivity, without other
kookaburras around, it will not laugh.

g 9. Olly the Kookaburra was one of the three mascots chosen for the
2000 Summer Olympics in Sydney.

—
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DEVELOPMENT OF THE COCKBURN WETLANDS PRECINCT AND NEW WILDLIFE HOSPITAL
AND REHABILITATION FACILITY FOR NATIVE ARC

We are very excited to share with you the final design
of our new state of the art wildiife veterinary hospital,
rehabilitation facility and education centre. The City of
Cockburn is funding this exciting project, in addition
to the expansion of the site, with the Wetlands Centre
Cockbum and the Bibra Lake Scouts. Construction
started on 21 January and our vision is that through
ongoing partnerships and collaboration, we will be

a best practice wildlife hospital in Australia. Whilst

the City is funding the construction of this site,

Native ARC will fund the ongoing running costs of

this massive facility ourselves through donations,
fundraising and corporate sponsorship.

This wil be a wonderful asset for the Western
Australan community and support wildiife rehabiitators
and veterinarians across the State. We aim to be

to achieve best practice outcomes for our beautiful
wildiife and together we will ‘Help Wild Lives Live',

Please keep up your support - we need it now more
than ever as we take this massive leap and begin our
new chapter!

5
\
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g
IN THE COMMUNITY \

Do
LITTLE PENGUIN RESCUE \

Native ARC received a call last month about a Little Penguin that )
was being smashed against the rocks (by waves) at the beach. .

Dean and Dr Meg grabbed the kayak and attended the rescue
site immediately. When they arrived, the Penguin was about 50
metres offshore and appeared to be drowning. Every now and
then its head would surface but it was very weak.

Dean raced out into the strong waves (in the kayak) and was
finally able to reach the Penguin. From here, he coaxed it onto the
shore where Dr Meg caught it.

The Peguin spent the night in our ICU on fluids before being
transferred to Perth Zoo for specialised rehabilitation.

The bird was weak, exhausted and dehydrated. The Little Penguin
has since been released by Wildife Officers from the DBCA.

This was a great outcome for all nvolved!

As a result of the catastrophic fires in the East, thousands

of volunteers are working tirelessly to treat sick and injured
wildiife. Financial support is essential to provide the resources
necessary to heip wildife recover from devastating injries.
Together we can "Help Wild Lives Live'.

To raise funds for wildlife affected by the bush fires in the
East, Native ARC held a Bushfire Open Day on 26 January
and invited the public to come for tours of the Centre and
see the animals cared by us including Vinnie the Wombat,
Banjo and Bindi the Alpine Dingoes and Weitj and Weerlo
the Emus. Penny the Possum made a special appearance!

We completely sokd out each tour as the support was
overwhelming with $5500 raised after expenses. The
money was donated to the Zoo Aquarium Association
Australia.

A huge thanks to our guests that attended and the
volunteers who helped to make it such a success by
leading tours and donating cakes!
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FREE VETERINARY TREATMENT
FOR WILDLIFE INJURED IN WA

Native ARC will be providing free veterinary services for Wildlife Rehabilitators
who are treating burnt wildiife in WA. We are not normally able to provide
veterinary treatment to wildiife from other groups as we already provide

veterinary treatment to about 4,000 animals admitted to our own hospital each

year, However, due to the current overwhelming pressures placed on wildiife
rehabilitators, we have set aside funding to cover veterinary costs for other

groups who are treating burnt wildiife.

If you require veterinary services for burnt wildlife, please text 0487 922 484,

WATERBIRDS
RESCUED

T ——

In February Native ARC and
Western Australian Seabird

Rescue rescued 44 live waterbirds

from an artificial wetland in Perth
and 48 deceased waterbirds.

The 44 live birds were transported

by Native ARC volunteers and
taken to Native ARC's wildiife
hospital where they received
intensive care treatment for
suspected botulism. Thankfully,
we were overwhelmed with
volunteers coming in to ensure all
animals received their fluids and
treatments.

More than 30 birds were
successfully released in Perth
Wetlands after 7-10 days in care.

Native ARC received a generous
grant from the City of Melville for
$6000 to purchase life saving
medical equipment to assist
future botulism outbreaks in the
Perth regions.

Native ARC remains open to
provide the Western Australian
community with an essential
veterinary service for wildife.

We have reduced our volunteer
roster significantly to ensure we
are complying with all social
distancing requirements. Our
hospital is now being run by our
part time employees who have
been spit into 2 teams.

If you bring an animal to the
hospital, you will not be allowed in
our reception. You will be asked
to safely transfer the animal into a
triage container and we wil collect
all relevant rescue information
over the phone onoce you leave.

This process ensures the safety
and heaith of you and our staff,

Luckily, this is our quieter time of
the year for wildiife admissions
although we are still admitting, on
average, 9 animals each day.

We are committed to providing
best practice treatment and
rehabilitation to the animals in care
and all of our resident animals are
wel tended to.

It is our amazing team and our
loyal supporters that is keeping
our doors open and allowing us to
‘Help Wild Lives Live'.
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DID YOU KNOW?

ENRICHMENT FOR WILDLIFE

Enrichment refers to the ways in which we try

to improve the quality of the care we give to our
wildlife at Native ARC through their environment. It
is a vital component of good animal rehabilitation
practice and is essential for the animals’ health
and wellbeing. Having a native animal in-care is
not only about providing appropriate food, housing
and sheiter. Providing enrichment can help reduce
boredom and stress.

Some of the ways we provide enrichment at Native
ARC indude the following:

* Asnake enrichment board allows the snakes
can wind exercise and stretch. We use it to
display the natural movement of the snakes
when we go out to education sessions.

¢ Placing branches in the bird enclosures to
provide perching sites.
* Planting grass and native plants in enclosures.

e Putting fresh cuttings from native plants into the
encdlosures - of course, the type of native plants

must be appropriate to the wildife. For example,

kangaroos love woolly bush.

e Our dingoes' pen is sand — which they love to roll
In - and we have dug out a den for them. They
are also taken for a long wak every day to give
them a chance to sniff and stretch their legs.

* Vinnie, our resident wombat, takes great
pleasure in burrowing into and up-ending
the soil of his enclosure which our corporate
volunteers regularly flatten for him,

Parrot Enrichment
This is how we do parrot enrichment at Native ARC

Soft Release

A soft release is
where the animal

Is still fed following
their release until
they adjust to being
in the wild.

This Red Wattle
bird chick was
soft released and
is now feeding well and flying
beautifully.
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Gwen is a retred physiotherapist who grew up in

a country town near the border in northern NSW.
Although she trained as a physiotherapist she really
wanted to be a vet, going out with her local vet

on country cals. However, her parents were not
supportive of this as a career and so physiotherapy
it was! Gwen came to WA 50 years ago with her
husband where she continued her work as a
physiotherapist unti nine years ago.

On retirement Gwen came to the decision that now
was the time to go back to her original interests

in animal care and to do something that she really
wanted to so she decided to become a volunteer
with Native ARC nine years ago. Most of these nine
years have been spent in the Hospital with some
offsite rehabilitation. Unti the end of 2019 Gwen was
a supervisor in the Hospital but decided to step back
from this responsibility but stil continue working in the
Hospital and also as a mentor for new volunteers.

When asked what she gained from volunteering

at Native ARC, Gwen immediately said she loved
working and mixing with volunteers of different
age groups. She also valued the knowledge she
had gained over the years about our incredibie WA
wildife as well as the satistaction of belonging 10 a
community of like-minded individuals.

In terms of encouraging others to become volunteers,
Gwen emphasised the variety of roles people could
take up: not just dealng with injured animals in the
Hospital but also heiping with education programs,
with food preparation, in rehabilitation, with
maintenance tasks as well as with gardening.

-

Meet: Bec
A Member of the Frldoy mer ning and Thursday
ofternoon Vererinary Hospital Teams

Bec is a trained veterinary nurse with five years'
experience in this field. She cumrently works as

an emergency nurse at WAVES and, in addition,

Is studying conservation, biology and zoology at
university. As well as these commitments, Bec
volunteers in the Native ARC Hospital on a Thursday
afternoon and on Friday morning and has done

50 for the last three months. In the longer term

Bec would like to get employment with a wildlife
organisation or zoo.

As a trained veterinary nurse, Bec's work in the
Hospital includes giving medications, helping with
and monitoring anaesthetics, taking X-rays, tube
feeding and doing bandage changes. Bec loves
her work at Native ARC because it gives her the
opportunity to work with, and help, a variety of
animals - birds, reptiles, mammals and amphibians
- as well as the chance to be actively involved in
her passions for helping wildiife and conserving the
environment. Bec also values the many friendships
she has made with other like-minded volunteers
here at Native ARC.

In terms of reasons for encouraging others to
volunteer at Native ARC Bec mentioned the
following: the sense of satisfaction obtained from
helping wildlife regardiess of what task you do,
whether small or large; the chance to meet a wide
and interesting cross section of people and make
friends; working with a wide variety of native wildlife;
as well as the experience it provided when applying
for employment in this area.

222 of 227 I |

236 of 532
Document Set ID: 9674303

Version: 3, Version Date: 17/09/2(420




OCM 13/08/2020

ltem 13.1 Attachment 1

GAD 21/07/2020

Item 9.3 Attachment 2

NTEERS AT NATI

SrFeindcld

Meg grew up in the South West of WA on a farm near
Denmark, going to school in Walpole and Denmark.
She is currently in her last year of a universtty degree
in animal health, conservation and wildiife biology.

Her interests lie in the management side of animal
heatlth and conservation and, with this in mind, Meg is
considering doing some further study in this area,

Meg has been volunteering at Native ARC for two
years and has been a Rehabiltation Supervisor for the
last ten months. The role of Supervisor involves being
aware of the work to be done on a particular shift,
prioritising this work and allocating people 10 various
tasks. Training and mentoring of new volunteers

is also part of the role. In addition to her work in
Rehabiitation, Meg also works as part of the Reptie
Crew on Friday afternoon - this is one of the crews
responsile for looking after our Education reptiles.

Meg said she enjoys volunteering at Native ARC for

a variety of reasons: the experience it gives in terms

of pecple management; her nvolvement in a hands-
on and practical way with wildlife as a break from

her study; and, in particular, the feeling that you are
making a difference. She commented that people were
often overwheimed by negative reports about the state
of our planet to the extent they felt making a change
was out of their hands. However, working at Native
ARC put things into perspective and made you realise
that you could make a positive difference, no matter
how simple or small the work you do.

. Meet: Lauren
The Thursday morning Rehabilitation Supervisor
and Friday morning Hospital Supervisor

As wel as working as a merchandiser for David Jones
and Myers, Lauren is the Rehabiitation Supervisor on
Thursday mornings as well as the Hospital Supervisor on
Friday momings.

Before joning Native ARC, Lauren was known in the
Wattle Grove area as the 'Bird Lady": she was the go-to
person for locals who found injured or orphaned birds.
Working from home, she was supported by the vets at
the Wattie Grove Veterinary Hospital. However, with the
increasing demands of her family commitments and a
move to Atwell, Lauren decided to put her skills to good
use by volunteering at Native ARC.

Lauren still keeps an eye out for brds and has a nesting
box for pink and grey galahs in her garden. Seven years
ago she noticed that while the parents had raised their
youngster until it was ready to fly, it just didn't have any
success with flying. It tumed out it had been blind from
birth! So Lauren and her famiy took the young pink and
grey under thelr wing and it is still with them. And there is
another happy ending: when it is released in the garden
the youngster's parents and other siblings come down
from the trees to happly socialise with it.

When asked why she volunteers at Native ARC Lauren
said ‘because it rocks'. That is, Native ARC was made
up of a group of wonderful lke-minded peopie with a
love of widife and the environment who did tremendous
work. Being part of such a group was not only incredibly
humbing but also meant, through the skils you had to
offer, your individual footprint was helping to make the
bigger picture, It was about doing what you could.
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HOW YOU CAN HELP

Native ARC is a not for profit organisation which is open 365 days a year. Volunteers carry out the work of

’
the Centre which operates two shifts, seven days a week. While not everyone has the time to volunteer at the
Centre, there are other ways you can help.

As Native ARC is a non-profit organisation [we are registered with the Federal Government Australian Charities
and Not for Profits Commission or ACNC], all support and donations are greatly appreciated, We currently

don't receive State or Federal government funding and rely entirely on support from the public to sustain the
medication/medical, food, housing and utility costs.

SUPPORTING US THROUGH
A BEQUEST
E ]
-

One of the most valuable ways you can contribute
= to the ongoing work of Native ARC and all our
-9 voluntears is by supporting the environment and care

of widife by remembering Native ARC in your will.
= e — Ways to make a Gift or Bequest
=9 = 1 There are a number of different ways you can

provide a gift or bequest to Native ARC in your will:
—a D1v ou KNOW A
g habibtating wildlife is @ costly endeavevts * Abequest of a specific amount of money;
Troating ond re e 7 :
,:.h in terms of time ond money- e * Abequest of your entire estate or a specified
= Native ARC odmits over 100 Sout percentage of your estate;
thot f them
= ot 7005:':;“" {Quendas) everY Yca’! Mc:‘;’ed e e Aresiduary bequest - this is the balance of
et naned joeys iter their @UR B - g e your estate after all other gifts, taxes and debts
D com A end vpio Y0 e NS IO T have been fulfiled;
cot or vemcie. an consume a% 2
S ndaas it €
=B . orphoned joey Qv | O edhworms and fresh fruis- ¢ Abequest of specific assets, e.g. real estate,
of milk daily os well 0% Il ensure the 100
25ml ndos you will € shares, efc.
= gy sponsoring one k.00 ¢ receive the best quabty
=9 plus Quendos odmitted av:!‘l 1"': \Rerors released & If you have any questions, or would like to know
milk and foods to e"‘“;" ?,'\:b", possible chance of more about how a gift from you would help the
ve
=9 5 months of age they he work of Native ARC or have a tour of the Centre,
survival. + soft released for please contact our Manager, Dean Huxley,
=3 Did we mention some of ouf Ou::::s‘ P % ity durig on [08) 9417 7105.
we provi
=  geonthiThe :w‘vh;':;\cy have food availoble whis! As wils are legal documents we recommend that
this entire perioc 39 L sacts and fungl you seek appropriate legal advice when preparing
= they learn to hunt your will to ensure that all the requirements are met.
=3 -

Once you have made a bequest to Native ARC
please let us know so we are aware of your support.
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Each year we treat over 4000 native animals. We have four annual Sponsorship Packages available
By sponsoring one of our animals, either as an from $50 to $500, each with a range of extra bonuses
individual, family or business, you will have the such as guest passes to visit Native ARC. These are
satisfaction of knowing that you are helping with Bronze, Silver, Gold and Platinum.

m“‘ medccal a fogd mum@s ] See our website for further detais of each Sponsorship
malong b f:!lffemnce in terms of their treatment and Package and a ist of the animals, including Vinnie, you
rehabiitation. could sponsor together with an idea of the cost of their
One of the animals you could sponsor is Vinnie, our upkeep.

resident Wombat. If you sponsor Vinnie not only will T % 5
you meet Vinnie in person but you will also receive a :?:;i,mal o) o e bt
certfficate of appreciation and some cool merchandise.

A great gift idea for someone who loves wildiife!
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The City of Cockburn's strong leadership in environmental management
and support of Native ARC has enabled us to become one of the
strongest native animal rehabilitation centres in Australia. Our Hospital
currently admits approximately 4000 animals annually making us the
busiest wildlife rehabilitation facility in Western Australia.

ﬁ PRI - T I

The

Animal
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Hurdoch Urver vty VET HOSPITAL
Houndstooth =g :
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- ipest OLOSKATE [0/, L, © Boseh

Jor N _

BrandSuccess ..l -

2 spcilty Feds woolworths (g)

wewszec sltyleedscom approval services

Riiigroey, A
©ee @«
1omL & Gommarosl Gy Able

226 of 227 | |

240 of 532
Document Set ID: 9674303
Version: 3, Version Date: 17/09/2(420




OCM 13/08/2020 ltem 13.1 Attachment 1

GAD 21/07/2020

10. NEW BUSINESS OF AN URGENT NATURE INTRODUCED BY
MEMBERS OR OFFICERS

Nil

11. MATTERS TO BE NOTED FOR INVESTIGATION, WITHOUT
DEBATE

Nil

12. CLOSURE OF MEETING

The meeting closed at 6.19pm.
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(2020/MINUTE NO 0164) MINUTES OF AUDIT AND STRATEGIC
FINANCE COMMITTEE MEETING - 16 JULY 2020

Author(s) D Green

Attachments 1. Audit and Strategic Finance Committee Meeting
Minutes - 16 July 2020 I

RECOMMENDATION

That Council receive the Minutes of the Audit and Strategic Finance
Committee meeting held on Thursday, 16 July 2020, and adopt the
recommendations contained therein.

COUNCIL DECISION
MOVED Mayor L Howlett SECONDED Deputy Mayor L Kirkwood

That Council receive the Minutes of the Audit and Strategic Finance
Committee meeting held on Thursday, 16 July 2020, and adopt the
recommendations contained therein subject to a minor amendment in
the declaration of the meeting section to record Cr Allen as the
Presiding Member and not Mayor Howlett.

CARRIED 10/0

Reason for Decision

Cr Allen was the Presiding Member and therefore the statement
included in the Declaration of the Meeting needs to be amended to
reflect that circumstance.

Background

The Audit and Strategic Finance Committee conducted a meeting on 16
July 2020. The Minutes of the meeting are required to be presented.

Submission
N/A

Report

The Committee recommendations are now presented for consideration
by Council and if accepted, are endorsed as the decisions of Council.
Any Elected Member may withdraw any item from the Committee
meeting for discussion and propose an alternative recommendation for
Council’s consideration. Any such items will be dealt with separately, as
provided for in Council’'s Standing Orders.

242 of 532

Document Set ID: 9674303
Version: 3, Version Date: 17/09/2020




Item 13.2 OCM 13/08/2020

The primary focus of this meeting was to:

1. Receive an update on the City’s Strategic and Operational Risks,
and

2. Consider the findings and recommendations of the Privacy Impact
Assessment Audit Report

Strategic Plans/Policy Implications

Listening and Leading

A community focused, sustainable, accountable and progressive
organisation.

Ensure good governance through transparent and accountable,
planning, processes, reporting, policy and decision making.
Budget/Financial Implications

N/A

Legal Implications

Privacy Act 1988 (Commonwealth) refers (Item 16.1).
Section 71A of the Local Government Act 1995 refers.
Community Consultation

N/A

Risk Management Implications

There is a “Moderate” level of “Operations / Service Disruption” risk
associated with this item.

Advice to Proponent(s)/Submitters

N/A

Implications of Section 3.18(3) Local Government Act 1995
Nil
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City of

Cockburn

wetlands to waves

City of Cockburn
Audit & Strategic Finance Committee

Minutes

For Thursday, 16 July 2020

These Minutes are subject to confirmation

Presiding Member’s signature

Date: 19 November 2020
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CITY OF COCKBURN
SUMMARY OF MINUTES OF THE AUDIT & STRATEGIC FINANCE COMMITTEE
MEETING HELD ON THURSDAY, 16 JULY 2020 AT 6.00 PM

Page
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2. APPOINTMENT OF PRESIDING MEMBER (IF REQUIRED).......ccoeeiiieeceiiiiiee. 4
3. DISCLAIMER (TO BE READ ALOUD BY PRESIDING MEMBER) ............cooocevviiiienins 4
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6. PUBLIC QUESTION TIME ..ottt et ns e 4
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BUSINESS LEFT OVER FROM PREVIOUS MEETING (IF ADJOURNED,)............... 11
10. DECLARATION BY MEMBERS WHO HAVE NOT GIVEN DUE
CONSIDERATION TO MATTERS CONTAINED IN THE BUSINESS PAPER
PRESENTED BEFORE THE MEETING ......cccoiiiiiiiiiiiiesee e 11
11, COUNCIL MATTERS ...ttt ete e ete e essane e s seesteenee e seesseeeneeeneenns 12
11.1 (2020/MINUTE NO 0008) RISK INFORMATION REPORT .......coooviiiiiiiiiiins 12
12. PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT DIVISION ISSUES..........coiiiiiieeeeee e 21
13. FINANCE & CORPORATE SERVICES DIVISION ISSUES...........oooiiiiiiiiiiiieeien, 21
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16.  EXECUTIVE DIVISION ISSUES........coiiiiiiiiiiiie et 22
16.1 (2020/MINUTE NO 0008) AUDIT REPORT - DATA AND
INFORMATION ...ttt ettt es e e e en e en e e e e e emee e 22
17. MOTIONS OF WHICH PREVIOUS NOTICE HAS BEEN GIVEN ........cccocvvvviiiiiinnns 103
18. NOTICES OF MOTION GIVEN AT THE MEETING FOR CONSIDERATION
AT NEXT MEETING ... ottt ettt ettt ettt ettt e e eee e e eee e 103
19. NEW BUSINESS OF AN URGENT NATURE INTRODUCED BY MEMBERS
OR OFFICERS ...ttt ettt ee e st ee et e e sre e s e rs st eesseese e sreseaeensesanbe s eenseereee s 103
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CITY OF COCKBURN

MINUTES OF AUDIT & STRATEGIC FINANCE COMMITTEE

HELD ON THURSDAY, 16 JULY 2020

PRESENT

ELECTED MEMBERS

Mr L Howlett - Mayor

Mr K Allen - Councillor (Presiding Member)
Mr T Widenbar - Councillor

Dr C Terblanche - Councillor

Ms C Stone - Councillor

IN ATTENDANCE

Mr D Arndt - Acting Chief Executive Officer

Mr D Green - Director Governance & Community Services
Mr C Sullivan - Director Engineering and Works

Mrs G Bowman - Executive Manager, Strategy & Civic Support
Mr N Mauricio - A/Director Finance and Corporate Services
Ms R Pleasant - A/Director Planning and Development

Mr J Fiori - Risk and Governance Advisor

Mrs B Pinto - Governance Officer

Ms S D'Agnhone - Council Minute Officer

DECLARATION OF MEETING

The Presiding Member declared the meeting open at 6.00pm.
“Kaya, Wanju Wadjuk Budjar® which means “Hello, Welcome to Wadjuk Land”

The Presiding Member acknowledged the Nyungar People who are the
traditional custodians of the land on which the meeting is being held and pay
respect to the Elders of the Nyungar Nation, both past and present and extend
that respect to Indigenous Australians who are with us tonight.

The Audit and Strategic Finance Committee meeting will be electronically
recorded and live streamed on the City's website, except where Committee
resolves to go behind closed doors.

All recordings are retained in accordance with the General Disposal Authority
for Local Government Records produced by the State Records Office.

A copy of the recorded proceedings will be available on the City’'s website,
within two business days of the Council meeting. This will be easy to find from
the front page of the City's website.

Images of the public gallery are not included in the webcast, however the
voices of people will be captured and streamed.
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Mayor Howlett reminded everyone present to be mindful of their conduct as it
will be recorded. This is a Council initiative aimed at increasing our
transparency and openness, as well as making Council meetings more
accessible.

2. APPOINTMENT OF PRESIDING MEMBER (If required)

N/A

3. DISCLAIMER (Read aloud by Presiding Member)
Members of the public, who attend Council Meetings, should not act
immediately on anything they hear at the Meetings, without first seeking
clarification of Council's position. Persons are advised to wait for written
advice from the Council prior to taking action on any matter that they may
have before Council.

4, ACKNOWLEDGEMENT OF RECEIPT OF WRITTEN
DECLARATIONS OF FINANCIAL INTERESTS AND CONFLICT

OF INTEREST (by Presiding Member)
Nil

5. APOLOGIES & LEAVE OF ABSENCE
Mr S Downing, Director Finance and Corporate Services - Apology
THE EXECUTIVE MANAGER STRATEGY AND CIVIC SUPPORT LEFT THE
MEETING AT 6.02PM AND RETURNED AT 6.03PM.

6. PUBLIC QUESTION TIME
Susan Smith

Q1. As the former Independent Member of the Audit and Strategic Finance
Committee, my question is in regards to the minutes of the previous meeting,
and why the reappointment of the Independent Member was not discussed at
that previous meeting?

The Presiding Member advised the matter was not listed on the agenda, and
therefore not discussed at the meeting.

Q2. Why has the process for extending the period of the Independent Member that
was approved by both the Audit and Strategic Finance Committee and Council
in 2019, not been followed?

4 of 103

247 of 532
Document Set ID: 9674303
Version: 3, Version Date: 17/09/2020




ltem 13.2 Attachment 1 OCM 13/08/2020

ASFC 16/07/2020

Q3.

Q4.

Q5.
Q6.

Q7.

Q8.

The Presiding Member advised that, as the question does not relate to an
agenda item, the question would be taken on notice and responded to in
writing.

Note: responses to questions raised were subsequently provided in the
responses for question 5 to question 16 below.

At my first meeting in July 2019, | raised concerns over the adequacy of the
Strategic Internal Audit Program. It was advised to me that a report would
come back to the Audit Committee addressing those. We approved the
Strategic Internal Audit Plan on the basis of allowing the program of work to
continue with the queries being responded to subsequently with a report
coming back. That report has never come to the Audit and Strategic Finance
Committee. | would like to know how that is going to come forward?

The Acting CEO advised he would revisit the minutes from the Committee
Meeting in question and that the question would be taken on notice.

Can | have it noted that | have raised it at every meeting since then and there
has been no response on that matter. | can quote the minutes from July -
“receive a report...identifying the risks as part of the Strategic Risk Review
and be presented to the next Audit and Strategic Finance Committee”.

It makes it difficult for this Committee to provide effective oversight without
communicating to it an effective Internal Audit function that ensures ongoing
maintenance and governance processes.

Whoever the Independent Member that comes forward is, their ability to assist
good governance is limited by the information that comes to the Committee.

The Acting Director Finance and Corporate Services provided responses to
questions asked previously by Ms Smith:

What is the time allocated for each audit?
Are there additional hours allocated for ad hoc audits that are required?

Response

WALGA preferred audit service providers are generally used to conduct audits
listed in the Strategic Internal Audit Plan. The selected service provider
nominates a set number of hours to conduct an audit — this is not generally a
pre-determined time limit as it depends on the complexity of the audit being
conducted.

What is the annual budget for internal audits?

Response
Internal audit budget 2019-2020 was $70,000.

The Risk Management Plan states ‘audit services. The Internal Audit Program
is overseen by the Financial Services Department. What are the current
reporting lines? How can the Audit Committee be satisfied the Internal Audit is
independent and overseen by Risk and Governance?
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Response

Governance Service sets the objectives and manages the budget for the
Strategic Internal Audit Plan, which is then approved by the Audit and
Strategic Finance Committee.

Q9. Can the City’s Internal Audit Charter please be provided to the Committee?

Response
Audit and Strategic Finance Committee Terms of Reference are recorded in
OCM November 2019 minutes.

Q10. How does the Strategic Internal Audit Plan align with the Risk Register? For
example, Risk 2 Technology Use and Change, is rated Substantial. | would
have expected annual Security Audits.

Q11. What assurance do you have that the existing controls listed are working
effectively?

Response

The City was one of 10 local governments included in the first Local
Government Information Systems Audit by the Office of Auditor General. This
was tabled in parliament on 25 June and a report will be presented to the
November meeting addressing the findings and security gaps identified. City
Officers did not have enough time to read the report and prepare a report for
this meeting, given the agenda timelines.

Q12. Given the likely OSH legislative changes, | would have expected an internal
audit to provide assurance that policies and procedures are in accordance with
Worksafe Plan and preparation for the WA government's adoption of the
model act. What assurance does Council and Executive have that the City is
meeting the Worksafe Plan elements?

Response

LGIS undertook an audit of the City’s safety programs and procedures in
October 2019. The audit was undertaken against Worksafe’s ‘Worksafe Plan’
requirements. LGISs awarded the City a silver certificate with nil unsatisfactory
findings.

Q13. The Risk Management Plan states no appetite for non-compliance risk. Given
this, would an annual external review of the Compliance Annual Return
provide greater assurance?

Response

An independent audit will be scheduled for the next Compliance Annual
Return (2021) and it is proposed that this will be completed on a bi-annual
basis (annually is not deemed to be warranted).

Q14. The Risk Management framework refers to three lines of defence. How is this
reviewed and relied upon to ensure you have appropriate assurance? Link
between internal validation and assurance program.
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Response

The Risk Management framework is reviewed every two years. The last
review was conducted in October 2018 by Risk West and found “the three
lines of defence assurance model sections comprehensively illustrate the links
between risk, planning and operations”.

Q15. You have said that the nominated contactor nominates the hours for the audit
that they believe is adequate. | find that a little bit unusual. It's almost like
asking whoever is building your road to say what price you would like. If you
are not setting a budgeted hour or a day of audits, if you are just giving them
the scope, obviously there is some kind of budget process there, so you're
obviously going to be giving them some kind of guidance. But then for them to
be able to choose their own hours, that from somebody who has done this for
16 years, would be a great thing for any contractor to get that offer.

The Acting Director Finance and Corporate Services advised that the internal
audit function is governed by Governance Services, however in the past
Finance has overseen the function. From experience, when these audit
assignments are determined, it is not them determining the hours. It is more
the City provides a scope, and then meets with the Auditor to go through the
scope. The Auditor gives us an estimation of the hours to complete that scope.
We look at whether that scope and cost fits into our budget and our
requirements. Once we mutually agree that it's sufficient, we tick it off and
bring it to the Audit Committee.

Q16. Inthe meetings that | have attended in the past year, scope and objectives
have not come to the Committee once, for any audit. Also, your first comment
was that the objective had been set by Governance. In all the previous audits
that came up to the Committee in the last year, they were all approved by
Corporate Services.

The Acting Director Finance and Corporate Services advised that was
incorrect. The Strategic Internal Audit Plan has the general scope of every
internal audit that has been agreed, and the last Strategic Internal Plan was
developed by a working group that was overseen by Governance Services.
And then the scope comes to the Audit Committee and that is ticked off. The
Strategic Internal Audit Plan comes to the Audit Committee and it gets
approved by the Audit and Strategic Finance Committee.

Q17. That is one of my questions about the Strategic Internal Audit Plan is why the
scope and objectives for the audit is not outlined in it, and the response then
was that is what we agree with at the time, the area themselves agrees. Every
single report that has come up | have asked who signed off on the letter of
engagement to this, and it hasn’t been Governance.

The Presiding Member advised that Public Question Time does not allow for
debate and that if Ms Smith required any further clarification on these matters
she should submit her questions in writing to the Acting CEOQ.
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Q18. | put my guestions to the Committee in July, November, December, March,
and now | am standing here and voicing them.

The Presiding Member advised that an answer is not available this evening,
and that he has requested that the Acting CEO ensure these questions are
answered in a timely manner.

Q19. Could the answers come to the Committee so it is on public record?

The Presiding Member advised that a response would be provided.

Questions on the Agenda - ltem 11.1 — Risk Information Report

Q20. There is a statement that says the overall improvement that the City has made
in managing the risk is reflected in the risk level movements (page 8). A table
on page 9 shows the risk ratings are the inherit risk, not the residual risks.
How has the City’s management of the risks been shown in the change in risk
rating of the inherent risk, in terms of the inherit risk being before your
treatment plan?

The Risk and Governance Advisor advised that the current system used by
the City is strictly on residual risk. That was the adoption through the system
the City has, RMSS. The City deals primarily and only with residual risk. How
do we know that the risk is being managed accordingly? We can see through
the Risk Register where each Responsible Officer managing the risk
addresses the risk action that comes up. That risk action is based on the risk
rating (severity of risk). For example, if the risk is extreme it might be once a
month, if it is moderate, it might be every three months, and so on and so
forth, but it is strictly on residual risk.

The Australian Standard does not require the City to address inherent or
residual risk, which is left for the organisation to manage.

Q21. ltis not clear that is residual risk and the COVID risk in itself, you would have
to say that the risk of that has been the environment factors, world-wide global
environmental factors that have changed that risk. So that would be the
change in the inherent not the residual, for that risk to increase. So the
information report coming forward is not necessarily clear in that, to provide
enough information to the committee so that they know what they are dealing
with here.

The Risk and Governance Advisor advised that the COVID risk has been rated
as being extreme. It was previously not a specific COVID risk, it was a
strategic risk based on an emergency situation. It is fair to say that no
organisation on earth would have seen the COVID pandemic coming.
Therefore, when we were made aware by the Health Department of WA that
there was a pandemic, we met, according to the Business Continuity Plan,
and drafted a COVID Pandemic Plan, and we reviewed the risk rating of that.

The likelihood is almost certain, and the consequences are catastrophic,
which makes that risk an extreme risk. Based on the current situation in
Victoria, that is unlikely to change and the City will not change it until the State
Government of Western Australia says otherwise.
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Q22.

Q23.

| would agree with you on that, but the change has been in the inherent risk,
not the City’'s management of those matters.

The Risk and Governance Advisor reiterated that the City adheres to the ISO
Standard and that there is no requirement in the ISO Standards to have an
inherent or residual risk. It is primarily for the user to decide and the City has
chosen to stick to residual risk, and it works well for us.

The recommendation is that the Committee is to receive the report. In terms of
that as a recommendation, is the recommendation saying that they should be
approving it or endorsing it, or just noting it for information purposes?

The Risk and Governance Advisor advised that this is the way we report to
this Audit Committee, and it is full Council that endorses the report.

Questions on the Agenda - Iltem 16.1 — Audit Report- Data and Information

Q24.

Q25.

Q26.

Who signed off on the engagement letter for this engagement, and who
determined the scope and objectives of the audit? | note that the Terms of
Reference for the audit were preparing policies and procedures?

The Risk and Governance Advisor advised that the Strategic Internal Audit
Plan sets out a scope - very succinct. As the City developed the Terms of
Reference for this audit, that succinct statement is going to be taken and
expanded. We then write the full Terms of Reference on what is to be taken.
Then go and look at which Auditors to use. In this specific case, there is no
legislation in this state that requires us to comply with a privacy policy at all. It
is a progressive action that we have taken to ensure that if and when
legislation in this state changes, we comply.

The Auditor has called it a ‘privacy impact assessment’ because itis a
statement of how the City is faring thus far and what gaps there are if and
when legislation is introduced. The Auditor recommended that we follow the
Commonwealth Privacy Act 1988.

Again, we are not compelled to follow any Act, we have at the moment a
privacy statement, and we have taken the initiative to draft a policy in the
absence of legislation and the Terms of Reference for this audit describes
that, and that is recorded in ECM (the city’s record management system).

The letter of engagement that sets out the scope and objectives, and agrees
the hours and budget. That went to the Council, is that what you are
suggesting?

The Risk and Governance Advisor advised that there is a contract between
the Auditor and the City.

| am not questioning the procurement side of this, that is a different matter. |
am determining the independence of how the scope and objective and hours
of the arrangement have been agreed. It appears it is more of a consulting
work than an audit. Who signed the letter of engagement? When we do an
audit we have an entry meeting and we have a letter of engagement that is
signed off. So who put their pen to paper?
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The Risk and Governance Advisor advised that that he is he Authorised
Officer for audits.

Q27. What were the hours and budget for this audit.

The Risk and Governance Advisor advised that as previously stated, the
budget for an internal audit is $70,000 and the budget for an external audit is
$100,000.

This particular audit was budgeted at $13,000, and the invoice was for
$13,860. There were three tenders for the audit, and they were all in the
ballpark for that figure. We chose ES2 as it was a WALGA endorsed Auditor,
and ES2 were the only ones that had experience. As previously stated, there
is no legislation involved here. It is to see how we are going to meet legislation
if it is ever introduced. ES2 where the only Auditors with this experience that
came forward.

Q28. Would the hours correspond to about 70 hour?

The Risk and Governance Advisor advised that the question would be taken
on notice as he was not certain of the exact number of hours, however there
were 53 people interviewed and it was quite comprehensive.

Q29. Was there any audit sample testing from the information on the agenda and
the report and the summary? It was a great consulting piece of data gathering
by interview and drafting policies of City, but in terms of chewing up a fairly
hefty portion of the overall audit budget, there does not seen to be any sample
testing of any review of personal information held and destruction policies. It is
more just information gathering. Do you know whether there was any audit
sampling that has been conducted?

The Risk and Governance Advisor advised that there were numerous
documents audited by the auditor, including the way we store information, and
some of the information that was taken is through audio, video, USBs,
manually (people come in and write information about what they want Council
to do). There were tomes of evidence gathered by the Auditor for the audit,
and is all recorded in ECM.
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7. CONFIRMATION OF MINUTES

7.1 (2020/MINUTE NO 0007) MINUTES OF THE AUDIT &
STRATEGIC FINANCE COMMITTEE MEETING - 19/03/2020

RECOMMENDATION

That Committee confirms the Minutes of the Audit & Strategic Finance
Committee Meeting held on Thursday, 19 March 2020 as a true and
accurate record.

COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION
MOVED Mayor L Howlett SECONDED Cr C Terblanche

That the recommendation be adopted.
CARRIED 5/0

8. DEPUTATIONS
Nil

9. BUSINESS LEFT OVER FROM PREVIOUS MEETING (IF
ADJOURNED)

Nil

10. DECLARATION BY MEMBERS WHO HAVE NOT GIVEN DUE
CONSIDERATION TO MATTERS CONTAINED IN THE
BUSINESS PAPER PRESENTED BEFORE THE MEETING

Nil
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11. COUNCIL MATTERS
111 (2020/MINUTE NO 0008) RISK INFORMATION REPORT

Author(s) J Fiori
Attachments N/A

RECOMMENDATION
That Council receive the Risk Information Update Report.

COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION
